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IMPORTANT NOTICE 
 

This information memorandum (the "Information Memorandum") has been prepared in connection 
with Storebrand ASA's ("Storebrand" or the "Company" and, taken together with its consolidated 
subsidiaries, the "Group") indirect acquisition from Svenska Handelsbanken AB (publ.) 
("Handelsbanken") of (i) SPP Livförsäkring AB ("SPP"), and thereby indirectly in addition to the 
existing subsidiaries of SPP, (ii) Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), (iii) SPP 
Fonder AB, (iv) Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB, and (v) 50 per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben 
Life & Pension Insurance Co. Ltd. (the "Transaction").  SPP currently owns 50 per cent. of Nordben Life 
& Pension Co. Ltd's ordinary share capital, and this interest will hence also be acquired as part of the 
Transaction.  The Group, taken together with SPP and the other companies and interests to be acquired in 
the Transaction will be referred to herein as the "Enlarged Group". 

No shares or other securities are being offered or sold in any jurisdiction pursuant to this 
Information Memorandum. 

This Information Memorandum has been submitted to Oslo Stock Exchange for inspection and approval 
before it was published.  This Information Memorandum is not a prospectus and has neither been 
inspected nor approved by the Oslo Stock Exchange in accordance with the rules that apply to a 
prospectus. 

All inquiries relating to this Information Memorandum must be directed to Storebrand.  No other person 
is authorised to give any information about, or to make any representations on behalf of, Storebrand in 
connection with the Transaction.  If any such information is given or made, it must not be relied upon as 
having been authorised by Storebrand.  The information contained herein is as at the date hereof and is 
subject to change, completion and amendment without further notice.  The delivery of this Information 
Memorandum shall not imply that there has been no change in Storebrand's affairs or that the information 
set forth herein is correct as of any date subsequent to the date hereof. 

The contents of this Information Memorandum are not to be construed as legal, business or tax advice.  
Each reader of this Information Memorandum should consult with its own legal, business or tax advisor 
as to legal, business or tax advice.  If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Information 
Memorandum you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, lawyer, accountant or other 
professional adviser. 

The distribution of this Information Memorandum in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.  
Storebrand requires persons in possession of this Information Memorandum to inform themselves about, 
and to observe, any such restrictions. 

Storebrand has not registered any of its shares under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the "Securities Act"), and its shares may not be offered or sold in the United States of America absent 
registration or an exemption from registration.  Storebrand does not intend to register any of its shares 
pursuant to the Securities Act. 

Investing in the Company's shares involves risks.  See section 2 "Risk Factors" below. 

Currency Presentation 

Unless otherwise indicated, all references in this Information Memorandum to "Norwegian kroner" or 
"NOK" are to the lawful currency of Norway, all references to "Swedish kronor" or "SEK" are to the 
lawful currency of Sweden and all references to "EUR" are to the currency introduced at the start of the 
third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European 
Community, as amended. 

For the purpose of this Information Memorandum (other than the historical accounts incorporated by 
reference hereto or attached as appendices or as otherwise indicated herein), Storebrand has used an 
exchange rate of EUR 1 = SEK 9.37, and an exchange rate of EUR 1 = NOK 7.94.  All numbers 
contained in this Information Memorandum may be subject to rounding. 
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1. SUMMARY 

This Summary is only a very brief summary and must hence be read in conjunction with the rest 
of the Information Memorandum. 

Storebrand is a leading player in the Norwegian market for long-term savings and insurance.  The 
Group is an integrated financial services group, with pensions and life insurance, banking and 
asset management activities and property and casualty insurance carried out by subsidiaries of 
the holding company, Storebrand ASA. 

SPP is a leading Swedish life insurance and occupational pension provider.  SPP's businesses are 
active within the defined benefit and defined contribution occupational pension segment, the 
tick-the-box segment (mass market collectively agreed pension schemes in Sweden in which 
customers "tick the box" to get enrolled) and private pension segment.  In addition, SPP also 
provides advanced consulting services covering occupational pensions, as well as insurance and 
administrative solutions for municipalities and other organisations. 

On 3 September 2007, Storebrand Livsforsikring AS ("Storebrand Liv") entered into an 
agreement with Handelsbanken (dated 2 September 2007) for the acquisition, indirectly by way 
of a holding company subsidiary of (i) SPP, and thereby indirectly in addition to the existing 
subsidiaries of SPP, (ii) Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), (iii) SPP 
Fonder AB, (iv) Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and (v) 50 per cent. of the preference shares in 
Nordben Life and Pension Insurance Co. Ltd. ("Nordben") for a total cash consideration of SEK 
18.0 billion (EUR 1.92 billion/NOK 15.25 billion).  SPP currently owns 50 per cent. of the 
ordinary shares of Nordben and this interest will hence also be acquired as part of the 
Transaction. In addition to the purchase price, Storebrand Liv shall pay Handelsbanken interest 
on SEK 18 billion from the date of signing of the Transaction agreements until closing of the 
Transaction at an annual interest rate corresponding to STIBOR 90 days. 

Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken 
Varumärkes AB and 50 per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben are currently not part of 
SPP Livförsäkring AB, but will be transferred to SPP as part of the Transaction.  In addition, the 
asset management of SPP’s occupational pension assets (traditional life insurance and unit-
linked) as well as its PPM1 mutual funds and certain other SPP mutual funds, which is currently 
performed by Handelsbanken Asset Management, and will be for the next 12 months following 
closing of the Transaction, is also part of the Transaction. 

It is estimated that SPP currently has at least SEK 2.0 billion of excess capital.  It is intended that 
SPP will use SEK 600 million of this excess capital to finance the acquisition of Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB 
and 50 per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben from other entities within Handelsbanken 
prior to the closing of the Transaction, thereby reducing the purchase price payable by 
Storebrand for SPP to SEK 17.4 billion (EUR 1.86 billion/NOK 14.74 billion).  The purchase 
price will be further reduced to SEK 16.0 billion (EUR 1.71 billion/NOK 13.56 billion) through a 
special dividend, corresponding to SEK 1.4 billion (EUR 0.15 billion/NOK 1.18 billion), to be 
paid by SPP to Handelsbanken prior to the closing of the Transaction, provided that the Swedish 
Financial Supervisory Authority (the "Swedish FSA") approves or does not object to, such 
dividend. Such dividend will reduce the interest payment correspondingly. 

The combination of Storebrand and SPP and the other companies and interests being acquired 
through the Transaction will create a leading life insurance and pension provider in the Nordic 
region with premium income, on a pro forma basis, of NOK 27 billion in 2006. 

As a result of the Transaction, pre tax result of the Storebrand Group for the six months ended 30 
June 2007 would have increased by 5 per cent. from NOK 990 million to, on a pro forma basis, 
NOK 1,036 million.  Total assets as at 30 June 2007 would have increased by 62 per cent. from 

                                                           
1  Premium pension (PPM) is part of the Swedish public old age pension system and is based on a contribution rate of 

2.5 per cent on earnings.  Individuals choose, from a large number of mutual funds, how their money is to be invested 
during the saving period and can choose a fixed or variable annuity upon retirement 
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NOK 233,031 million to, on a pro forma basis, NOK 377,035 million.  Total equity capital as at 
30 June 2007 would have increased by 113 per cent. from NOK 9,341 million to, on a pro forma 
basis, NOK 19,871 million. For a further description of the pro forma figures and the basis for 
such figures, see section 7.4 below. 

Storebrand will finance the cash purchase price of NOK 13.6–15.3 billion as follows: 

• Rights issue of NOK 9.0–10.7 billion, fully underwritten as further described in section 4.6 
below. 

• Bridge loan of up to EUR 600 million, fully underwritten as further described in section 4.5 
below or issuance of subordinated debt in approximately the same amount. 

The Rights Issue is subject to approval by the Extraordinary General Meeting and necessary 
regulatory approvals.  The Extraordinary General Meeting is expected to be held on 24 October 
2007. 
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2. RISK FACTORS 

In addition to the other information set out in this Information Memorandum, the following risk 
factors should be carefully considered when deciding what action to take in relation to the 
Transaction.  Any of the risks described below could have a material adverse impact on the 
Group's or, following the Transaction, the Enlarged Group's, (and, accordingly, all references to 
the Group in this section shall also be construed as references to the Enlarged Group, unless the 
context otherwise requires) business, financial condition and results of operations and could 
therefore have a negative effect on the trading price of the shares of Storebrand and affect a 
prospective investor's investment.  The information below does not purport to be exhaustive.  
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to Storebrand or that Storebrand currently 
deems immaterial may also have a material adverse effect on the Group's or, following the 
Transaction, the Enlarged Group's business, financial condition and operating results. 

Financial and Markets Risk 

2.1 Economic conditions and markets risk 

Results are subject to fluctuations in the financial markets and interest rate levels 

Market levels and investment returns are an important part of the Group's overall profitability, 
and fluctuations in the financial markets such as the fixed income or equity markets as well as 
general interest rate levels can have a material effect on the Group's consolidated results of 
operations.  Changes in these factors can be very difficult to predict.  Any adverse changes in the 
economies and/or financial markets in which funds under management are invested could have a 
material adverse effect on the Group's consolidated financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows. 

The level of, and changes in, interest rates (including changes in the difference between the 
levels of prevailing short-term and long-term rates) can affect the Group's life insurance, banking 
and asset management results and interest payable on debt.  In particular, fluctuations in interest 
rates affect returns on, and the market values of, fixed income investments in the shareholder and 
general insurance portfolios.  Interest rates can also affect asset values, levels of bad debts, 
funding costs and interest margins.  Whilst rising interest rates increase the margin spread 
potential for the banking business, they are also likely to result in a decrease in fixed income 
asset values for the life insurance companies. 

In addition, the Group invests a portion of its assets in equities, which are generally subject to 
greater risks and more volatility than fixed income securities.  General economic conditions, 
stock market conditions and many other factors beyond the control of the Group can adversely 
affect the equity markets. 

The Group has substantial exposure to both fixed income securities and equities within its life 
insurance portfolios.  Fluctuations in the fixed income and equity markets will directly or 
indirectly affect the financial results of the life insurance operations, and such fluctuations will 
also impact the financial condition of the Group by way of changes to the capital requirements of 
the life insurance businesses. 

Furthermore, the revenue of the Group's asset management businesses are derived primarily from 
investment management fees, which are based primarily on the market value of funds under 
management and their performance.  Consequently, the asset management businesses' financial 
results are highly dependent on changes in the economic conditions and financial markets in 
which the funds under management are invested. 

Storebrand Livsforsikring AS has guaranteed a minimum annual return on a significant portion 
of its assets. If its investment return in any year is lower than this guaranteed rate then current 
legislation permits the equivalent of up to one years guaranteed return to be met by transfer from 
additional statutory reserves. Any negative return must be met from Storebrand Livsforsikring 
AS's equity. In 2006 the total average guaranteed interest rate was 3.6 per cent. New business is 
written at a lower level (2.75 per cent. in 2006).  As at 30 June 2007 Storebrand Livsforsikring 
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AS had available NOK 0.5 billion of additional statutory reserves in excess of one year's interest 
rate guarantee. 

Results are subject to fluctuations in exchange rates 

The Group currently presents its consolidated financial statements in Norwegian kroner.  A 
significant proportion of the Group's assets are denominated in currencies other than Norwegian 
kroner.  If the Transaction proceeds, a substantial proportion of the Group's operational earnings 
will be denominated in Swedish kronor. 

There can be no assurance that the Group's reported financial results will not fluctuate 
significantly from year to year as a result of changes in exchange rates. 

The Group is exposed to credit risk and reinsurance risk 

The Group has counterparty risk in relation to third parties. A failure by the Group's 
counterparties to meet their obligations could have a material impact on the Group's financial 
position.  The Group is exposed to credit risk, amongst other things, through holdings of fixed 
income instruments and loan advances, including loans from Storebrand Bank. 

Additionally, the Group's life insurance and other insurance businesses have exposure to 
reinsurers through reinsurance arrangements.  The availability, amount and cost of reinsurance 
depend on general market conditions and may vary significantly.  Any decrease in the amount of 
reinsurance cover purchased will increase the Group's risk of loss.  Furthermore, the inability or 
failure of reinsurers to meet their financial obligations could materially affect the Group's 
operations and financial condition. 

Catastrophes, including natural disasters and terrorist-related events, may cause Storebrand to 
incur substantial losses 

Storebrand's life insurance and savings operations are exposed to the risk of catastrophic 
mortality events, such as a pandemic or other catastrophe that causes a large number of deaths.  
In Storebrand's group insurance operations, a localized event that affects the workplace of one or 
more of its group insurance customers could cause a significant loss due to mortality or 
morbidity claims.  Consistent with industry practices, Storebrand establishes reserves for claim 
liabilities arising from a catastrophe only after assessing the probable losses arising from the 
event.  Storebrand cannot be certain that the reserves it has established will be adequate to cover 
actual claim liabilities.  From time to time, legislation has been passed that has the effect of 
limiting the ability of insurers to manage risk, such as legislation restricting an insurer's ability to 
withdraw from catastrophe-prone areas. 

While Storebrand attempts to limit its exposure to acceptable levels, subject to restrictions 
imposed by insurance regulatory authorities, a catastrophic event or multiple catastrophic events 
could have a material adverse effect on Storebrand's business, results of operations and financial 
condition. 

To mitigate this risk Storebrand currently has significant reinsurance programmes in place.  
Storebrand has proportional treaties for life- and pension business and for workmen's 
compensation business.  Storebrand has also bought extensive excess of loss reinsurance for both 
life- and non-life business including a catastrophe excess of loss programme which has higher 
capacity than the market average.  All reinsurance is bought from the world's major reinsurance 
companies with Swiss Re and Munich Re leading the major programmes.  Storebrand's ability to 
manage this risk and the profitability of its life insurance businesses depends in part on its ability 
to obtain catastrophe reinsurance, which may not be available at commercially acceptable rates in 
the future. 

2.2 Legal and regulatory risks 

The Enlarged Group's insurance, asset management and banking subsidiaries are subject to 
government regulation primarily in Norway and Sweden, but also in other jurisdictions in which 
they conduct business.  Regulatory agencies have broad jurisdiction over many aspects of these 
businesses, including, but not limited to, capital adequacy, premium rates, marketing and selling 



 - 5 -  
 

practices, advertising, licensing agents, policy forms, terms of business and permitted 
investments. 

Failure to comply with regulatory and minimum capital requirements could lead to intervention 
by the Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority (Kredittilsynet) (the "Norwegian FSA") or 
the Swedish FSA which could be expected to require the Group to take steps for the security of 
policyholders with a view to restoring regulatory capital to acceptable levels. 

Regulatory proceedings or investigations could result in adverse publicity for, or negative 
perceptions regarding, the Group, as well as diverting management's attention away from the 
day-to-day management of the business.  A significant regulatory action against any part of the 
Group could have a material adverse effect on the business of the Group, its results of operations 
and/or financial condition. 

Changes in government policy, legislation or regulatory interpretation applying to the financial 
services industry in the markets in which the Group operates may adversely affect the Group's 
product range, distribution channels, capital requirements and, consequently, reported results and 
financing requirements, and may result in increased costs to the Group due to it being required to 
set up additional compliance controls or due to the direct costs of compliance.  These changes 
include possible changes in government pension requirements and policies, the regulation of 
selling practices and solvency or other capital-related requirements. 

The new Insurance Act in Norway will have a significant impact on the Group's insurance 
business.  Failure by the Group to adopt appropriate changes in its business as a result of the 
Insurance Act could result in non-compliance or have other adverse consequences.  Other future 
changes in legislation or regulation, including Solvency II (as further defined in section 4.2 
below), may also involve significant cost or have other adverse effects.  Basel II may have 
similar effects on the Group's banking business. 

Changes in taxation law may impact the Group and may impact upon the decisions of 
policyholders 

The design of long-term insurance products is predicated on tax legislation existent at that time.  
However, future changes in tax legislation or interpretation of the legislation may, when applied 
to these products, have a material adverse effect on Storebrand's insurance businesses in which 
the policy was written and perhaps a consequent negative impact on policyholder returns. 

The corporate tax positions of insurance companies in both Norway and Sweden are favourable.  
There can be no assurance that this will not change adversely.  To the extent corporate tax rules 
change, this could have both a prospective and retrospective impact on the Group, both of which 
could be material. 

Norwegian and Swedish taxation laws have a variety of effects on the Group's businesses and 
taxation of policyholders.  In general, changes to, or in the interpretation of, existing Norwegian 
and Swedish tax laws, amendments to existing tax rates, or the introduction of new tax legislation 
in Norway or Sweden may adversely impact the business, results of operations and financial 
condition of the Group and the savings decisions of the policyholders.  Further, changes to 
specific Norwegian or Swedish legislation that governs the taxation of life insurance companies 
and the pension savings of individuals, might adversely affect the Group's business.  Whilst those 
risks may impact on the insurance sector as a whole, the impact on the Group in particular would 
depend upon the mix of business within its portfolio and other relevant circumstances at the time 
of the change. 

Operational risks 

2.3 Insurance risks 

The success of the long-term insurance business within the Group depends to a significant extent 
on the values of claims paid in the future relative to the assets accumulated to the date of claim.  
Typically, over the lifetime of a contract, premiums and investment returns exceed claim costs in 
the early years and it is necessary to set aside these amounts to meet future obligations.  The 
amount of such future obligations is assessed on actuarial principles by reference to assumptions 
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with regard to the development of interest rates, mortality rates, persistency rates (being the 
extent to which policies remain in force and are not for any reason surrendered or transferred 
prior to maturity) and future levels of expenses.  These assumptions may turn out to be incorrect. 

In addition, it is necessary for the boards of directors of the relevant companies to make 
decisions, based on actuarial advice, which ensure an appropriate build-up of assets and liabilities 
relative to one another.  These decisions include the allocation of investments among equity, 
fixed income, property, other internal and external unlisted investments and other asset classes, 
the setting of policyholder bonus rates (some of which are guaranteed) and the setting of 
surrender terms. 

The Group may not have sufficient reserves 

Although the Group monitors its actual experience against the actuarial assumptions it uses and 
applies the outcome to refine its long-term assumptions, actual amounts may vary from 
estimates, particularly when those payments do not occur until well into the future.  If the 
assumptions underlying the reserving basis were shown to be incorrect, the Group may have to 
increase the amount of its reserves, increase the amount of risk reinsured, or increase the amount 
of additional capital required (reducing the amount of capital which can be released from the 
businesses), which again could have a material adverse impact on the Group's business, results 
and/or financial condition. 

The Group may misprice its insurance products 

The assumption of insurance and reinsurance risk is, by its nature, a high risk business as it 
involves assuming the risk of uncertain events occurring.  If the Group charges premiums that are 
not sufficient for the cover provided, this would result in underwriting losses, leading to volatility 
in earnings and unpredictable results. 

2.4 Asset management 

Loss of customer mandates may have a material adverse effect on the Group's business 

In the event that the Group's asset management business does not provide satisfactory or 
appropriate investment returns in the future, or does not offer investment products which a 
customer requires, there may be a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of 
operations and/or financial condition due to existing customers reducing or liquidating mandates 
or moving mandates to other managers and an inability to sell new products to existing or new 
customers. 

Failure to address risks associated with managing customer assets could lead to the loss of 
customers or a liability to pay compensation 

There are risks associated with the process of managing customer assets.  For example, failure to 
properly define the investment mandate applicable to customer assets as a result of unclear 
agreed guidelines or inaccurate recording of customer communications could lead to investments 
being made in breach of a mandate.  Similarly, failure to manage the investment process or 
execute the trading activities properly could lead to poor investment decisions and poor asset 
allocation, the wrong investments being bought or sold and the incorrect monitoring of 
exposures.  Failures of this nature could lead to the loss of customers or a liability for the Group's 
asset management company to compensate customers for damages incurred. 

2.5 Other operational exposure 

The value of the Group's real estate portfolio may fluctuate as a result of factors outside the 
Group's control 

Property investments are subject to various risks.  Rents and values are affected (among other 
things) by changes in general economic conditions, changing supply within a particular area of 
competing space and attractiveness of real estate relative to other investment choices.  The value 
of the Group's property portfolio may also fluctuate as a result of other factors outside the 
Group's control, such as changes in political conditions, the condition of financial markets, 
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potentially adverse tax consequences, interest and inflation rate fluctuations and higher 
accounting and control expenses.  The Group's operating performance could be materially 
adversely affected by a downturn in the property market in terms of capital and/or rental values. 

General risks relating to the generation of cash and the service of debt 

The Group requires a significant amount of cash to service its financial commitments.  Its ability 
to generate sufficient cash depends on many factors beyond the Group's control. 

The Group's ability to make payments on and to refinance its debt, and to fund working capital 
and capital expenditures, will depend on future operating performance and ability to generate 
sufficient cash.  This depends, to some extent, on general economic, financial, competitive, 
market, legislative, regulatory and other factors, many of which are beyond the Group's control, 
as well as the other factors discussed in these "Risk Factors". 

If the Group's future cash flows from operations and other capital resources are insufficient to 
pay obligations as they mature or to fund liquidity needs, the Group may be obliged to reduce or 
delay its business activities and capital expenditures, sell assets, obtain additional debt or equity 
capital, or restructure or refinance all or a portion of its debt on or before maturity. 

Information Technology Risk 

The Group is highly reliant on the internet and the integrity and operation of its computer and 
communication systems for both sales of products and its operations.  Any failure or interruption of 
these systems could materially harm the Group's ability to operate its business.  In addition, the 
Group's business may be materially adversely affected by computer hacking, distributed denial of 
service attacks and other forms of cyber crime. 

The Group is vulnerable to adverse market perception as it operates in a highly-regulated 
industry where it must display a high level of integrity and have the trust and the confidence of 
its customers 

The Group is vulnerable to adverse market perception as it must display a high level of integrity 
and have the trust and the confidence of its customers.  Any mismanagement, fraud or failure to 
satisfy fiduciary or regulatory responsibilities, or the negative publicity resulting from such 
activities or allegations of such activities associated with the Group or a relevant industry sector 
generally could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations 
and/or financial condition. 

The markets in which the Group operates are highly competitive 

The markets in which the Group operates are highly competitive, with several factors affecting 
the Group's ability to sell its products, including price and yields offered, financial strength and 
ratings, range of product lines and product quality, brand strength and in some of its businesses 
name recognition, and investment management performance. 

The Group's ability to generate an appropriate return depends significantly upon its capacity to 
anticipate and respond appropriately to these competitive pressures. 

The Group's success will depend upon its ability to retain key personnel 

The continued success of the business of the Group depends on its ability to attract, motivate and 
retain highly skilled management.  As a result, the inability to retain the necessary highly skilled 
personnel could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations 
and/or financial condition. 
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2.6 Separation, integration and future strategy 

The Group will encounter separation and integration challenges as a consequence of the 
Transaction 

The Group will encounter risks connected with the separation of SPP from Handelsbanken, 
including risks related to transfer of employees, IT systems and legal obligations and contracts. 

The Group will also encounter numerous integration challenges including cultural, operational, 
technological, managerial, regulatory and other issues as a consequence of the Transaction and 
implementing the acquisition of SPP.  In particular, the Group's management and resources may 
be diverted from its core business activities to assist in the integration process.  The integration 
process may lead to temporary or sustained inefficiencies with the possibility of an increase in 
client complaints and/or regulatory actions, and negative publicity regarding the Transaction may 
result in damage to Storebrand and/or SPP’s reputation.  Furthermore, it may not prove possible 
to achieve the expected level of sales and synergy benefits on integration of the businesses of 
Storebrand and SPP and/or the cost of delivering such benefits may exceed the expected cost.  
There is, therefore, a risk that the expected enhancement to shareholder returns is not fully 
achieved. 

There will inevitably be costs involved in revising the current systems and structures of SPP 
following completion of the Transaction (including implementing potential outsourcing and 
infrastructure changes).  There is a risk that these costs could exceed current estimates. 

The increase in scale of the Enlarged Group and the possible impact of the overall business 
separation and subsequent integration may expose the business to greater specific operational 
risks 

The increase in scale of the Enlarged Group as a consequence of the Transaction and the possible 
impact of the overall business separation and subsequent integration may expose the business to 
greater specific operational risks including, but not limited to, risks relating to the following areas: 

• limited management capacity; 

• business continuity; 

• IT systems integrity:  the business is dependent on the effective operation of its information 
systems; 

• customer data security; and 

• internal control or compliance weaknesses. 

The occurrence of any or all of the above risk exposures could result in material reputational 
damage, the loss of customers and a consequent material adverse effect on the Group's business. 

2.7 Risks related to the Transaction 

Completion is subject to a number of conditions 

Although the Transaction agreement has been signed prior to publication of this Information 
Memorandum, completion of the Transaction is conditional, in addition to the passing of 
resolutions at the Extraordinary General Meeting, upon, among other things, obtaining the 
relevant regulatory clearances from the Norwegian Ministry of Finance and the Swedish FSA 
and other regulators, as well as clearances from the appropriate competition authorities. 

If any of the conditions are not satisfied (or not waived), the Transaction will not complete.  
Although, the Rights Issue is not conditional upon the Transaction it is a condition for 
completion of the Rights Issue that the Transaction Agreement remains in force when the Rights 
Issue is completed.  It is expected that closing of the Transaction will occur shortly after the 
completion of the Rights Issue. 
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In the event that the Transaction does not close within 180 days from the signing of the 
Transaction Agreement, Storebrand could incur material damages 

Storebrand currently anticipates that it will receive any necessary regulatory approvals and 
satisfy other closing conditions in sufficient time to close the Transaction by the end of 2007.  
However, if closing has not occurred within 180 days from the signing of the Transaction 
Agreement, then Storebrand will be liable to pay a break-up fee to Handelsbanken of SEK 200 
million, except if closing has not occurred due to failure to obtain the required resolutions by the 
Extraordinary General Meeting. 

Storebrand will face financial risks in funding the acquisition, which may have a material 
impact on results of operations and cash flow 

Storebrand intends to fund the acquisition purchase price with the proceeds from the Rights Issue 
and through the issuance of subordinated debt.  A fully committed bridge facility of EUR 600 
million has also been established to ensure funding in the event that subordinated debt issuance is 
postponed due to adverse conditions in the financial markets.  The bridge facility must be repaid 
within 364 days after 3 September 2007.  The purchase price is significant and this use of funds 
will impact the availability of cash flows from operations and the capacity for future issuances of 
debt or equity or both, all of which could reduce Storebrand's flexibility to pursue future 
acquisitions and other opportunities.  In addition, higher debt levels may make Storebrand more 
vulnerable to general adverse economic conditions.  Storebrand's credit ratings could also decline 
below their current levels.  The impact of such decline could increase the interest rate on 
Storebrand's short and long-term debt.  Any such increase in cost would negatively impact future 
cash flows and results of operations. 

Change of control or other contractual provisions may result from the Transaction 

Certain of SPP's licenses and collaboration, co-development, co-marketing and other agreements 
may have change of control provisions that may be triggered by the Transaction.  Should the 
final negotiation of these matters result in a loss of rights under these agreements, profits of the 
Enlarged Group may be materially and adversely affected. 

The success of the Enlarged Group is dependent on continued performance of outsourcing 
arrangements 

Key customer service, administration, IT and back office functions are provided by third party 
providers.  The Enlarged Group will be reliant in part on the continued performance and security 
of these providers.  Comprehensive outsourcer management functions are in place along with 
detailed contractual protections in the event of service failures or contractual defaults. 

Further, as a result of the Transaction, some back office and support services will be provided to 
the Enlarged Group by Handelsbanken for a transitional period.  Therefore, during this 
transitional period, the Enlarged Group will be reliant in part on the continued performance of 
Handelsbanken in relation to its obligations under the transitional services agreement. 

2.8 Risks Related to the Rights Issue 

The Rights Issue is not conditional upon Completion of the Transaction 

It is possible that following the Rights Issue becoming wholly unconditional, the Transaction 
could cease to be capable of completion.  Consequently, there is a risk that the Rights Issue will 
have been completed even if closing of the Transaction does not occur.  See also section 2.7 
above. 

2.9 Risks Related to the Rights Issue Pricing Structure 

The issue price of the new shares to be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue will not be determined 
by the Extraordinary General Meeting. However, it will be proposed to the Extraordinary 
General Meeting that the new shares to be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue will be issued at an 
issue price of not less than NOK 5 and not more than NOK 100 per new share.  The issue price 
will be finally determined by the Board of Directors shortly before commencement of the 
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Subscription Period in agreement with the Underwriters, but in any event shall not be below 
NOK 5. 

2.10 Risks Related to an Investment in the Subscription Rights and the Shares 

The market value of listed securities may fluctuate and may not reflect the underlying asset 
value of Storebrand or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group 

An investment in Storebrand may decrease as well as increase.  The market value of the shares 
can fluctuate and may not always reflect the underlying asset value.  A number of factors outside 
the control of Storebrand may impact on its performance and the price of the shares.  Such 
factors include the operating and share price performance of other companies in the industry and 
markets in which Storebrand operates, speculation about Storebrand's business in the press, 
media or investment community, changes to Storebrand's profit estimates, the publication of 
research reports by analysts and general market conditions. 

An active trading market in Subscription Rights may not develop on the Oslo Stock Exchange 

An active trading market in the subscription rights may not develop on the Oslo Stock Exchange 
during the trading period.  In addition, because the trading price of the subscription rights 
depends on the trading price of the shares, the subscription rights price may be volatile and 
subject to the same risks as noted in the section above.  The existing volatility of the shares may 
also magnify the volatility of the subscription rights. 

Storebrand's ability to pay dividends is dependent on the availability of distributable reserves 

The ability of Storebrand to pay dividends on the shares is dependent upon the availability of 
distributable reserves and therefore, amongst other things, upon receipt by it of dividends and 
other distributions of value from its subsidiaries and companies in which it has an investment. 

Any future share issues and sales of shares by major Shareholders may have an adverse effect 
on the market price of the shares 

Storebrand has no current plans for a subsequent offering of shares.  However, it is possible that 
Storebrand may decide to offer additional shares in the future.  An additional offering or a 
significant sale of shares by any of Storebrand's major shareholders could have an adverse effect 
on the market price of the outstanding shares. 

2.11 The Information Memorandum includes forward-looking statements regarding the Group, 
including projections and expectations, which involve risk and uncertainty 

When used in this document, the words "anticipate", "believe", "estimate", "expect" and similar 
expressions, as they relate to the Group, the Enlarged Group, or its management, are intended to 
identify forward-looking statements.  Such statements are included without any guarantee as to 
their future realization.  Although the Group believes that the expectations reflected in such 
forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, no assurance can be given that 
such projections will be fulfilled.  Any such forward-looking statement must be considered along 
with knowledge that actual events or results may vary materially from such predictions due to, 
among other things, political, economic, financial or legal changes in the markets in which the 
Group does business, and competitive developments or risks inherent to the Group's business 
plans.  Many of these factors are beyond the Group's ability to control or predict.  Given these 
uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking 
statements. 
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3. STATEMENTS  

3.1 Statement from the Storebrand ASA Board 

The Board of Directors of Storebrand ASA accepts responsibility for the information contained 
in this Information Memorandum. The Board of Directors of Storebrand ASA hereby declares 
that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in 
this Information Memorandum is, to the best of our knowledge, in accordance with the facts and 
contains no omission likely to affect its import. 

Oslo, 28 September 2007 

Leiv L. Nergaard (Chairman) 
 

Halvor Stenstadvold 
 

Knut G. Heje 
 

Camilla Grieg 
 

Birgitte Nielsen 
 

Barbara Rose Millian 
Thoralfsson 

 
Ann-Mari Gjøstein 

 
Erik Haug Hansen 

 
Knut Dyre Haug 

 
 

3.2 Statement from the managers 

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. ("J.P. Morgan") and UBS Limited ("UBS") and ABG Sundal Collier 
Norge ASA ("ABG") do not accept any responsibility whatsoever for the contents of this 
document or for any statement made or purported to be made by either of them or on their behalf 
in connection with the Transaction.  Each of J.P. Morgan, UBS and ABG accordingly disclaims 
all and any liability whether arising in tort, contract or otherwise which either of them might 
otherwise have in respect of this document or any such statement.  J.P. Morgan, ABG and UBS 
are acting as financial adviser to Storebrand and are not acting for anyone else and will not be 
responsible to anyone other than Storebrand for providing the protections offered to clients of 
J.P. Morgan, UBS and ABG or for providing advice in relation to the Transaction or the contents 
of this document. 
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4. THE ACQUISITION OF SPP BY STOREBRAND  

4.1 Overview of the Transaction 

On 3 September 2007, Storebrand Liv entered into an agreement with Handelsbanken (dated 2 
September 2007) for the acquisition, indirectly by way of a holding company subsidiary, of (i) SPP, and 
thereby indirectly in addition to the existing subsidiaries of SPP, (ii) Handelsbanken Life & Pension 
Limited (formerly Euroben), (iii) SPP Fonder AB, (iv) Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and (v) 50 per 
cent. of the preference shares in Nordben, for a total cash consideration of SEK 18.0 billion (EUR 1.92 
billion/NOK 15.25 billion). SPP currently owns 50 per cent. of the ordinary shares of Nordben and this 
interest will hence also be acquired as part of the Transaction.  In addition to the purchase price, 
Storebrand Liv shall pay Handelsbanken interest on SEK 18 billion from the date of the signing of the 
Transaction agreements until closing of the Transaction at an annual interest rate corresponding to 
STIBOR 90 days.  Storebrand ASA has, according to the agreement with Handelsbanken, guaranteed 
Storebrand Liv's performance under the agreement. 

Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited, SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and 50 per 
cent. of the preference shares in Nordben are currently not part of SPP Livförsäkring AB, but will be 
transferred to SPP as part of the Transaction.  In addition, the asset management of SPP’s occupational 
pension assets (traditional life insurance and unit-linked) as well as its PPM2 mutual funds and certain 
other SPP mutual funds, which is currently performed by Handelsbanken Asset Management, and will 
be for the next 12 months following closing of the Transaction, is also part of the Transaction.It is 
estimated that SPP currently has at least SEK 2.0 billion of excess capital.  It is intended that SPP will 
use SEK 600 million of this excess capital to finance the acquisition of Handelsbanken Life & Pension 
Limited (formerly Euroben), SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and 50 per cent. of the 
preference shares in Nordben from other entities within Handelsbanken prior to the closing of the 
Transaction, thereby reducing the purchase price payable by Storebrand for SPP to SEK 17.4 billion 
(EUR 1.86 billion/NOK 14.74 billion).  The purchase price will be further reduced to SEK 16.0 billion 
(EUR 1.71 billion/NOK 13.56 billion) through a special dividend, corresponding to  SEK 1.4 billion 
(EUR 0.15 billion/NOK 1.18 billion), to be paid by SPP to Handelsbanken prior to the closing of the 
Transaction, provided that the Swedish FSA approves of, or does not object to, such dividend. Such 
dividend will reduce the interest payment correspondingly. 

The following provides a brief description of the entities acquired by Storebrand: 

• SPP with subsidiaries is a leading Swedish life insurance and occupational pension provider. SPP's 
businesses are active within the conventional segment as well as in the tick-the-box market (a mass 
market collectively agreed pension scheme in Sweden in which customers "tick the box" to get 
enrolled) and the private pension segment.  In addition, SPP also provides consulting services 
covering occupational pensions, as well as insurance and administrative solutions for municipalities 
and organisations. 

• Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) is a Dublin-based entity that offers 
larger companies tailor-made pension plan solutions.  This company is currently owned by 
Handelsbanken Liv Försäkringsaktiebolag ("Handelsbanken Liv"). 

• SPP Fonder AB is a limited liability company incorporated in and existing under the laws of 
Sweden.  The company currently has no active operations or employees. 

• Handelsbanken Varurmärkes AB is the company owning the trademark SPP and is currently a 
subsidiary of Handelsbanken Liv. 

• Nordben is a Guernsey based niche company offering flexible group and individual life and pension 
insurance solutions for expatriates, third country nationals and internationally mobile employees. 50 
per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben are currently held by Handelsbanken AB. 

                                                           
2  Premium pension (PPM) is part of the Swedish public old age pension system and is based on a contribution rate of 2.5 per 

cent on earnings.  Individuals choose, from a large number of mutual funds, how their money is to be invested during the 
saving period and can choose a fixed or variable annuity upon retirement 
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In addition, the asset management of SPP’s occupational pension assets (traditional life insurance and 
unit-linked) as well as its PPM mutual funds and certain other SPP mutual funds is also included in the 
Transaction. At the end of June 2007, SPP had assets under management of SEK 155.7 billion, of which 
SEK 94.5 billion were traditional life assets, SEK 31.0 billion were unit linked assets and SEK 30.2 
billion were in mutual funds (PPM and other mutual funds excluding unit-linked). The asset 
management is currently performed by Handelsbanken Asset Management, but Storebrand expects to 
assume this asset management after a period of 12 months from closing of the Transaction. An asset 
management agreement will be put in place between SPP and Handelsbanken for a transitional period 
whereby Handelsbanken will continue to manage SPP's investment assets for one year after closing. 
Selected Handelsbanken funds will be distributed by Storebrand and Handelsbanken funds will be a part 
of Storebrand's unit-linked portfolio offering.   

Handelsbanken and SPP will also enter into an agreement governing the provision of certain transitional 
services for a period of 24 months from closing of the Transaction, with an option to extend for a further 
period of up to a maximum of 18 months. 

As part of the Transaction, Storebrand has agreed a two year exclusive right from the closing of the 
Transaction to acquire Handelsbanken Liv's occupational pension business through a portfolio transfer.  
The purchase price shall equal 1.2 times the embedded value of the portfolio at the closing date of the 
acquisition of the portfolio. Furthermore, Storebrand will have a three year exclusive distribution 
agreement with Handelsbanken for the sale of occupational pensions through the Handelsbanken 
network. The parties have undertaken to negotiate in good faith to enter into a more detailed agreement 
for these exclusive rights prior to the closing of the Transaction. 

Storebrand will partly finance the Transaction through a Rights Issue and partly through a bridge loan 
facility or the issuance of subordinated debt, each as further described in sections 4.5 and 4.6 below. 

4.2 Background and the reasons for the Transaction 

Storebrand believes that the consolidation already seen in the Nordic region within the banking and 
P&C (property and casualty) markets will also occur in the life insurance / pension market.  This belief 
stems from: 

• the development of more harmonised regulatory regimes and similar products across the Nordic 
region, as well as Europe, which makes cross-country synergies more visible and easier to realise, 
especially within the growing markets for Defined Contribution and Unit Linked pension products; 

• the advantages of long term economies of scale within IT, underwriting, administration, product 
development and asset management; 

• the advantages of revenue synergies from using the "best" product, personnel and processes from a 
combined entity; 

• the advantages of capital synergies arising from geographic diversification of the portfolio, which is 
encouraged in Solvency II; and 

• the enhanced strategic and financial flexibility resulting from larger market capitalisation. 

Storebrand believes that the Transaction offers an opportunity to create a leading Nordic life insurance 
and pension provider and a platform for future growth.  The combination of Storebrand and SPP is 
expected to create a strong player in the Nordic occupational pensions market, building on the skill sets, 
experience, market position and product offerings of both entities.  The combined group will have a 
strong dual-home market structure with an estimated 10.3 per cent.3 market share in Sweden for 2006 
and 39 per cent.4 in Norway for occupational pensions in the first half of 2007.  The combined entity is 

                                                           
3 Market share of the occupational pension market, based on the total premium written (ex public market) for the year ended 

31 December 2006.  Source:  SPP Annual Report 2006. 

4 Market share of the occupation pension market, based on total premiums written (ex public market) for the six months ended 
30 June 2007.  Source:  Norwegian Financial Services Association (FNH) Livstatistikk 04/07, Table 1a. 
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also expected to be well positioned to participate in the further consolidation of the fast growing Nordic 
life insurance and pensions sector. 

Storebrand believes that a combination of the two businesses will provide the opportunity to capitalise 
on the skills and experience of the two companies.  For example, Storebrand believes it can use its 
experience in managing broker relationships to significantly strengthen SPP's distribution capabilities in 
the Swedish market.  Storebrand's more than 15 years of experience in the pensions transfer market in 
Norway is also expected to greatly assist SPP when the Swedish market opens up for transfers of 
occupational pensions (expected in 2008).  The Transaction will also enable each of Storebrand and SPP 
to broaden its life and pension product range.  In addition, Storebrand intends to further build on SPP's 
strong brand to expand its retail offering and asset management business.  Furthermore, Storebrand 
intends to optimize SPP’s risk management and asset/liability management policy to seek to improve 
returns to customers and owners. Based on Storebrand’s experience and results in the Norwegian 
market, it is expected that by applying Storebrand’s policies in this respect, both returns and the 
attractiveness of the products will be enhanced. 

Storebrand believes that SPP will be a good fit with Storebrand in respect of product offerings, customer 
profiles and company culture.  The history of the two companies is similar and both are significant 
participants in their domestic markets for occupational pensions.  Storebrand and SPP have co-operated 
with each other previously when founding Euroben (now Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited) and 
are co-owners of Nordben.  The similarities between the two businesses are expected to result in a 
smooth integration, a key consideration of the Transaction. 

Storebrand has undertaken a thorough due diligence process focused on the identification of key risks, 
assessment of synergies and development of an integration plan. 

Cost synergies:  Cost synergies are expected to amount to approximately NOK 100 million pre-tax per 
annum and are expected to be phased in 35 per cent. in 2008, 75 per cent. in 2009 and full effect in 
2010.  Cost synergies are expected to arise in the following areas:  IT infrastructure and shared IT 
development; sales and marketing; integration of the asset management function of the two businesses; 
consolidation of HR, finance and other shared services; shared and coordinated product development 
through the integration of Storebrand Sweden into SPP.  Furthermore, Storebrand intends to introduce 
its operational improvement programme and increase the level of automation in SPP's processes. 

IT Separation Costs:  The project cost of separating SPP's IT systems from Handelsbanken's platform 
and transition into Storebrands IT infrastructure is estimated at NOK150 million. The separation process 
will start to run on the closing date, and the transition period is expected to be up to two years. This cost 
is not taken into account in the calculation of amongst others IT cost synergies above. 

Tax benefits:  Based on current tax legislation (which may change in the future), Storebrand also expects 
to extract approximately NOK 100 million in tax synergies per annum as a result of the Transaction 
from utilising tax positions, including tax losses carried forward.  The tax synergies are expected to have 
full effect from 2008.  Storebrand will endeavour to establish a legal structure where the Storebrand 
Group will be able to indirectly utilise the existing tax loss carried forward in the Storebrand Group 
against future taxable income in SPP.  

Revenue synergies:  Storebrand expects to grow SPP's revenue base through:  (1) developing the broker 
distribution channel by using Storebrand's experience in Norway, (2) increase sales by SPP's own sales 
force through "best of breed" sales force management, and (3) increase sales in the "tick-the-box" 
market through intensified marketing efforts of SPP's products. furthermore, Storebrand and SPP will 
explore oppertunites to introduce Norwegian and Swedish law based pension and savings products in 
each other’s markets  In total, these initiatives are expected to generate in excess of NOK 100 million in 
additional new business profit by 2010. 

Investment management synergies:  The integration of SPP into Storebrand's asset and liability 
management processes and principles is expected to lead to increasing investment returns and improved 
yield estimated at more than NOK 100 million per annum.  The value is expected to result from better 
diversification through improved asset allocation and risk budgeting; reduced risk management costs 
through long term optimisation; and increased returns from the profit sharing model through optimised 
risk/return management.  This expectation does not include the value of any additional new business 
volumes resulting from the more attractive product offering. 
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Distribution synergies:  The relationship with Handelsbanken, an important distributor of Storebrand's 
products in the Swedish market, is expected to be further strengthened by the Transaction.  
Handelsbanken is already an important distributor of Storebrand Health insurance, and it is a firm 
intention to further develop this cooperation not only within distribution but also within product 
development.  Storebrand believes this will create value for customers, shareholders and employees. 

Capital synergies or diversification benefits:  The Transaction is also expected to provide capital 
synergies by way of a number of diversification benefits.  The Transaction will materially diversify 
Storebrand's geographic focus.  Storebrand's business portfolio will be diversified through the 
Transaction with defined benefit, defined contribution and unit-linked assets accounting for 
approximately 66 per cent., 21 per cent. and 13 per cent., respectively, of its product portfolio after the 
Transaction compared to approximately 88 per cent., 7 per cent. and 5 per cent., respectively, prior to 
the Transaction. 

The Transaction is also expected to provide a number of market related diversification benefits as a 
result of low correlations between financial drivers in Norway and Sweden. Although the models for 
Solvency II reporting have not been completed, and as such the diversification effects have not been 
specifically quantified from a Solvency II perspective at this time, it is expected that the benefits arising 
from diversification will be significant. 

Solvency II ("Solvency II") is the updated set of regulatory requirements for insurance firms that 
operate in the European Economic Area.  Initiated by the European Commission, the purpose of 
Solvency II is to create an international standard (and supervisory framework) that insurance regulators 
can use when creating regulations regarding the amount of capital an insurance firms needs to put aside 
for unforeseen events.  Although the European Union is still working on the detailed provisions of 
Solvency II, the proposed framework has three main pillars:  quantitative requirements (such as the 
amount of capital an insurer should hold); requirements for the governance and risk management of 
insurers, including effective supervision of insurers; and disclosure and transparency requirements.  The 
Solvency II requirements are expected to be implemented in 2012 or later. The capital requirements are 
expected to be based on modern economic principles where diversification benefits of operating in 
different markets with different economic cycles is expected to be recognised.  

Storebrand anticipates that the Transaction will be marginally accretive in 2008 and more than 5 per 
cent. accretive in 2009 (excluding separation costs, amortisation of purchased value of in-force and 
other deal related intangibles, including value-of-inforce amortisation, the earnings per share will be 
approximately 10 per cent. dilutive in 2009). 

4.3 Structuring of the Transaction 

SPP and the other companies and interests acquired through the Transaction will be acquired by a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Storebrand Liv ("Storebrand Holding AB").  Storebrand Holding AB will 
be a Swedish limited liability company or a Swedish limited liability insurance company. 

4.4 Conditions to the Transaction 

The Transaction is subject to: (1) Storebrand's shareholders approving the Rights Issue with a two-thirds 
majority of the votes present at the Extraordinary General Meeting scheduled to be held on 24 October 
2007, (2) the Swedish FSA approving the direct transfer of SPP Livförsäkring and the indirect transfer 
of SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB; (3) the Norwegian Ministry of Finance and the Norwegian FSA 
approving the Transaction and the financing of the Transaction; (4) each competition authority having 
jurisdiction over the Transaction and to which notification of such transactions is mandatory under 
applicable merger control law (i.e. the Swedish and Norwegian competition authorities) clearing the 
Transaction; and (5) the Underwriting Agreement (as described in sections 4.6 and 5.10(c) below) not 
having been terminated by the underwriters. 

Handelsbanken has the right to terminate the transaction agreement in the event that said conditions 
have not been satisfied or waived within 180 days from the signing of the agreement.  Storebrand has 
agreed to pay Handelsbanken a break-up fee of SEK 200 million should the conditions not be satisfied, 
except if closing of the Transaction does not occur due to failure to obtain the required shareholder 
approval for the share capital increase in Storebrand referred to in section 4.6 below. 
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Completion is expected by year-end 2007. 

4.5 Financing of the Transaction 

Storebrand will finance the cash purchase price of NOK 13.6–15.3 billion as follows: 

• Rights issue of NOK 9.0–10.7 billion, fully underwritten as further described in section 4.6 below. 

• Bridge loan of up to EUR 600 million, fully underwritten, or the issuance of subordinated debt as 
further described in this section 4.5 below. 

Storebrand has undertaken steps to ensure that the purchase price will not significantly fluctuate with 
movements in the foreign exchange markets. 

The Rights Issue is subject to approval at the Extraordinary General Meeting and necessary regulatory 
approvals.  The Extraordinary General Meeting is expected to be held on 24 October 2007. 

Storebrand Livsforsikring AS is contemplating a subordinated debt issue in an amount of approximately 
NOK 4.6 billion, consisting of hybrid tier 1 capital and lower tier 2 capital.  The bridge loan of EUR 600 
million will be utilised if such issue has not taken place prior to completion of the Transaction.  If the 
subordinated debt is issued following the completion of the Transaction the proceeds will be used to 
repay the bridge loan. 

The bridge loan is governed by a credit facility agreement (the "Credit Facility Agreement") dated 3 
September 2007, between Storebrand as borrower and J.P. Morgan plc and UBS Limited as mandated 
lead arrangers and joint bookrunners and J.P. Morgan Europe Limited acting as facility agent. 

The Credit Agreement provides for the bridge loan, being an unsecured term facility of up to EUR 600 
million (the "Facility").  Storebrand must apply all amounts borrowed by it under the Facility towards 
financing or refinancing (whether directly or through a subsidiary) the consideration payable for the 
Transaction.  The Facility will become available for drawing at completion of the Transaction, assuming 
all conditions to drawdown are fulfilled by that time.  Such conditions will be customary but with 
certain funds provisions meaning that only limited events of material default and breaches of 
representations will prevent the Facility from being drawn. 

Storebrand must repay all loans under the Credit Agreement on the date falling 364 days after 3 
September 2007.  Interest on each loan is payable on the last day of each interest period.  In the absence 
of any agreement to the contrary or selection of a 2 or 3 month period, interest periods will be 1 month.  
Each loan will bear each interest period at a rate per annum equal to the sum of EURIBOR (or, in the 
event that loans are denominated in currencies other than euro, LIBOR), certain mandatory costs plus a 
margin. 

The Credit Agreement allows for voluntary prepayments to be made and will require mandatory 
prepayments in full or in part in certain circumstances, including: 

1. a change of control; 

2. upon the issue of certain subordinated debt; and 

3. the receipt of proceeds resulting from the disposal of assets or the receipt of claim proceeds 
under the sale and purchase agreements for the Transaction (subject to certain agreed minimum 
threshold levels and exceptions). 

The Credit Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and undertakings and there is a 
financial covenant requiring that Storebrand complies with the capital ratio requirements prescribed by 
Norwegian law or regulation (except to the extent that appropriate exemptions have been obtained).  The 
Credit Agreement also contains customary undertakings preventing the principal companies in the 
Group from creating security interests, disposing of assets, entering into mergers and acquisitions and 
incurring financial indebtedness.  These undertakings are subject to certain agreed minimum threshold 
levels and exceptions.  The Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default.  At any time 
after the occurrence of an event of default, the lenders will be able to terminate the availability of the 
facilities, declare any outstanding advances due and payable, or declare that the facilities are payable on 
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demand.  The events of default are subject, where appropriate to grace periods, thresholds and 
exceptions and a clean up period for defaults relating to the target group for a period of 90 days 
following the Transaction. 

The financing described above will be downstreamed by Storebrand Livsforsikring AS to Storebrand 
Holding AB, the acquiring entity, as a combination of equity and debt. 

4.6 The Rights Issue 

Storebrand will partly finance the Transaction through a Rights Issue.  The new shares will be ordinary 
shares in Storebrand having a par value of NOK 5 each and with International Securities Identification 
Number (ISIN) NO 0003053605 and will be registered with the VPS. 

It will be proposed to the Extraordinary General Meeting of Storebrand, expected to be held on 
24 October 2007, to resolve the Rights Issue and increase Storebrand's share capital through the issuance 
of a minimum of 90,000,000 and a maximum 2,140,000,000 ordinary shares, each with a par value of 
NOK 5.   

It will be proposed that the Board of Directors be authorised to determine the issue price, within a range 
of a minimum of NOK 5 and a maximum of NOK 100 per new share, and to determine the number of 
new shares to be issued, being such number of new shares which when subscribed for and paid will raise 
between NOK 9 and 10.7 billion in gross proceeds to the Company.  The Board of Directors in 
agreement with the Underwriters will determine the issue price following the regulatory approvals 
having been obtained (subject to completion of the Rights Issue), taking into consideration the 
prevailing market conditions, the prevailing market price of the Storebrand shares, as well as an 
appropriate discount in line with market practice for rights offerings.  It is expected that the regulatory 
approvals (subject to completion of the Rights Issue) will be obtained by mid November 2007 and that 
the issue price will be determined not less than two trading days thereafter. 

The new shares issued in the Rights Issue will, upon issue, rank equally in all respects with the currently 
outstanding shares, carry one vote each and be listed on Oslo Stock Exchange under the Company's 
symbol "STB".  The new shares will be eligible for any dividends as Storebrand may declare on the 
shares after registration of the new shares with the Norwegian Register of Business Enterprises. 

Total gross proceeds from the Rights Issue will be NOK 10.7 billion, potentially reduced to NOK 9 
billion depending on the intended payments of SEK 600 million for the acquisitions by SPP from 
Handelsbanken as part of the Transaction and the special dividend of up to SEK 1.4 billion to be paid to 
Handelsbanken, if any, prior to the completion of the Transaction. 

Existing holders of the Company's shares as of the record date, other than the Company, will be granted 
rights to subscribe for the new shares to be issued in the Rights Issue. Oversubscription and subscription 
without subscription rights will be allowed, although with no guarantee that such shares will be 
awarded.  The record date for determining the shareholders who will receive subscription rights will be 
on or about the second trading date on Oslo Stock Exchange following Storebrand's announcement of 
receipt of regulatory approvals subject to completion of the Rights Issue and its acceptance of the 
conditions set for such approvals, if any (hereinafter referred to as "the regulatory approvals").  On the 
record date, the shares will trade with subscription rights on the Oslo Stock Exchange.  From the 
following trading day the shares will be traded ex-rights.  The subscription rights will be independently 
tradable and will be listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange during the subscription period for the Rights 
Issue.  Persons interested in trading or purchasing subscription rights should be aware that the exercise 
of rights by holders who are located in countries other than Norway may be subject to restrictions.  The 
subscription rights that otherwise could have been allocated to such persons will be sold and the net 
proceeds resulting from such sale will be distributed proportionally between such persons based on their 
shareholding on the record date. 

The Rights Issue will be fully underwritten. On 3 September 2007, Storebrand entered into an 
agreement with J.P. Morgan and UBS (the “Underwriters”) for the underwriting. The underwriting 
commitment will be evidenced by a final Underwriting Agreement (the "Underwriting Agreement"), 
which amongst other things will contain representations and warranties linked to this Information 
Memorandum and the prospectus for the Rights Offering. The Underwriting Agreement will contain 
certain conditions and termination rights that are customary for this kind of agreement. If any or all of 
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the conditions for the underwriting are not met or waived prior to delivery of the new shares, the 
Underwriters may, at their discretion, terminate the Underwriting Agreement.  In such event, the Rights 
Issue will be withdrawn. 

The subscription period in the Rights Issue is expected to commence on or about the sixth trading day 
following the regulatory approvals and end two weeks thereafter, provided, however, that the 
subscription period shall commence on 11 January 2008 if the timing of the regulatory approvals 
otherwise had resulted in any part of the subscription period falling in the period from 15 December 
2007 to 10 January 2008.  In the latter event, the record date for entitlement to subscription rights shall 
be 3 January 2008.  The new shares issued in the Rights Issue are expected to be listed on Oslo Stock 
Exchange on or about the eight trading date after the expiry of the subscription period. 

Description of certain shareholder rights 

Dividends may be paid in cash or in some instances in kind.  The Public Limited Companies Act 
provides several constraints on the distribution of dividends: 

• Dividends are payable only out of distributable reserves.  Section 8–1 of the Public Limited 
Companies Act provides that distributable reserves consist of the profit for the prior fiscal year (as 
reflected in the income statement approved by the Annual General Meeting of shareholders) and the 
retained profit from previous years (adjusted for any reclassification of equity), less (i) uncovered 
losses, (ii) the book value of research and development, goodwill and net deferred tax assets (as 
recorded in the balance sheet, as of the most recent fiscal year end, approved by the Annual General 
Meeting of shareholders), (iii) the total nominal value of treasury shares which the company has 
acquired for ownership or as security in previous fiscal years, as well as credit and security which, 
pursuant to Sections 8–7 to 8–9 of the Public Limited Companies Act, fall within the limits of 
distributable equity, and (iv) that part of the profit for the prior fiscal year which, by law or pursuant 
to the company's Articles of Association, must be allocated to the undistributable reserve or cannot 
be distributed as a dividend. 

• Dividends cannot be distributed if the company's equity at the end of the last financial year amounts 
to less than 10 per cent. of the total assets, unless a two-month creditor notice period provided for 
under the Public Limited Companies Act Sections 12–4 and 12–6 is invoked. 

• Dividends can only be distributed to the extent compatible with good and careful business practice, 
with due regard to any losses which the Company may have incurred since the balance sheet date 
(i.e. the prior fiscal year end) or which the Company may expect to incur. 

• The amount of dividends the Company can distribute is calculated on the basis of the Company's 
annual financial statements, not the Group's consolidated financial statements. 

According to the Public Limited Companies Act, there is no time limit after which entitlement to 
dividends lapses.  Further, there are no dividend restrictions or specific procedures for non-Norwegian 
resident shareholders in the Act. 

In connection with an increase in the Company's share capital by a subscription for shares against cash 
contributions, Norwegian law provides the Company's shareholders with a preferential right to subscribe 
for the new shares on a pro rata basis in accordance with their then current shareholdings in the 
Company. 

Shareholders holding in the aggregate 5 per cent. or more of the Company's share capital have a right to 
demand that the Company convenes an extraordinary general meeting to discuss or resolve specific 
matters, and to request that the district court set a higher dividend than decided by the general meeting.  
The shareholders consequently have a right to a share of the Company's profits. 

Under Norwegian law, a company may be wound-up by a resolution of the Company's shareholders in a 
general meeting passed by the same vote as required with respect to amendments to the Articles of 
Association.  The shares rank equally in the event of a return on capital by the company upon a 
winding-up or otherwise. 
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The Company’s shares are freely transferable. The Norwegian Financial Institutions Act does, however, 
include ownership control rules. Pursuant to these rules, a shareholding of 10 per cent. or more in the 
Company requires the prior authorisation of the Norwegian Ministry of Finance. 

Net proceeds and expenses 

The total net proceeds of the Rights Issue are estimated to be between NOK 10.38 billion and NOK 8.6 
billion, depending on the reduction in purchase price as described in section 4.1 above. 

The total expenses of the Rights Issue and for completing the Transaction are estimated to NOK 750 
million, of which NOK 420 million are estimated expenses of the Rights Issue (based on a rights issue 
of NOK 10.7 billion). The balance of NOK 330 million in other transaction expenses includes all 
estimated fees related to transaction advisory, and estimated arrangement, underwriting and 
participation fees relating to the bridge loan facility, but excludes interest on the purchase price to 
Handelsbanken.5 

4.7 Information on the Storebrand Group after the Transaction 

4.7.1 Legal structure after the Transaction6 
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5  The figures herein have been converted to NOK based on exchange rate as at 30 June 2007. 

6 This structure does not show the complete structure of the Storebrand Group, only the ownership of Storebrand Holding AB 
and how the SPP Group will be structured after the Transaction. 
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Storebrand currently holds 25 per cent. of the shares in Nordben Life and Pension Ins. Co Ltd.  

This is in addition to the 50 per cent. being acquired through SPP. 

4.7.2 The Storebrand Group's position in its markets after the Transaction 

Storebrand places importance on customer satisfaction, and in the four year period up to and 
including 2007, achieved the highest score in the Norwegian Customer Survey ("Norsk 
Kundebarometer") of customer satisfaction and loyalty in the corporate pensions market.  This 
customer satisfaction in part contributed to Storebrand's market share in the occupational 
market of 36 per cent.7 in new premiums written in 2006 and 39 per cent.8 in the first half of 
2007.  Storebrand, through SPP, will aim to achieve this level of customer satisfaction also in 
Sweden. 

Storebrand believes that the Transaction offers an opportunity to create a leading Nordic life 
insurance and pension provider and a platform for future growth.  The combination of 
Storebrand and SPP is expected to create a strong player in the Nordic occupational pensions 
market, building on the skill sets, experience, market position and product offerings of both 
entities.  The combined group will have a strong dual-home market structure with an estimated 
10.3 per cent.9 market share in Sweden for 2006 and 39 per cent.10 in Norway for occupational 
pensions in the first half of 2007.  The combined entity is also expected to be well positioned to 
participate in the further consolidation of the fast growing Nordic life insurance and pensions 
sector. 

4.7.3 The Transaction's significance for the earnings, assets and liabilities of the Group11 

                                                           
7 Market share of the mandatory occupational pension market, based on the premium income for the year ended 31 December 

2006. Source:  Norwegian Financial Services Association (FNH) Livstatistikk 02/07, Table 2a. 

8  Market share of the occupation pension market, based on new premiums written for the six months ended 30 June 2007.  
Source:  Norwegian Financial Services Association (FNH) Livstatistikk 04/07, Table 1a. 

9 Market share of the occupational pension market, based on the premium income for the year ended 31 December 2006.  
Source:  SPP Annual report 2006. 

10 Market share of the occupation pension market, based on new premiums written for the six months ended 30 June 2007.  
Source:  Norwegian Financial Services Association (FNH) Livstatistikk 04/07, Table 1a. 

11  Source:  The 2006 Annual Reports of each of Storebrand and SPP. 
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As a result of the Transaction, pre-tax profit based on the last twelve months will be 
significantly diversified as illustrated in the figure below: 

Life Norway
74%

Banking
12%

AM Norway
11%

Other  3%

Life Norway
43%

Life Sweden
36%

Banking
7%

AM Sweden
5%

AM Norway
6%

Other  2%

 

 

As a result of the Transaction, pre tax result of the Storebrand Group for the six months ended 
30 June 2007 would have increased by 5 per cent. from NOK 990 million to, on a pro forma 
basis, NOK 1,036 million.  Total assets as at 30 June 2007 would have increased by 62 per cent. 
from NOK 233,031 million to, on a pro forma basis, NOK 377,035 million.  Total equity capital 
as at 30 June 2007 would have increased by 113 per cent. from NOK 9,341 million to, on a pro 
forma basis, NOK 19,871 million. For a further description of the pro forma figures and the 
basis for such figures, see section 7.4 below.
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5. STOREBRAND ASA 

5.1 Corporate information 

Storebrand ASA is a Norwegian Public Limited Liability Company incorporated under the laws of 
Norway and in accordance with the Norwegian Public Limited Companies Act of 13 June 1997 no. 45 
with company registration number 916 300 484. 

The Company is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange with STB as ticker designation.  The share capital is 
NOK 1,249,095,525 divided into 249,819,105 shares each with a par value of NOK 5.  The shares in 
Storebrand are registered in the Norwegian Central Securities Depository (the "VPS") with the 
Securities Identity Number ISIN NO 0003053605.  The Company's Registrar is Nordea Bank Norge 
ASA.  The table below shows the development in the Company's share capital from 1 January 2004 until 
the date of this Information Memorandum: 

Date Type of 
change 

Capital 
increase/decrease 
(NOK) 

(NOK) New 
Share capital 

New 
shares 

Total no. of 
shares 

14 
September 
2005 

Capital 
reduction 

98,278,185 1,292,631,225 — 258,526,245 

3 May 2006 Capital 
reduction 

43,535,700 1,249,095,525 — 249,819,105 

 

The Company has its company address at Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 Oslo, Norway and its telephone 
number is +47 22 31 50 50. 

5.2 Business overview 

The Company is a holding company responsible for the strategy and structure of the Group, a leading 
player in the Norwegian market for long-term savings and insurance.  The Company owns 100 per cent. 
of the shares in the four main operating companies of the Group:  Storebrand Livsforsikring AS 
("Storebrand Life Insurance"), Storebrand Skadeforsikring AS ("Storebrand P&C"), Storebrand 
Kapitalforvaltning AS ("Storebrand Investments") and Storebrand Bank ASA ("Storebrand Bank").  
The Group carries out the major part of its business activities in Norway, and its head office is in Oslo.  
Additionally, the Group has recently established life insurance, asset management and health insurance 
activities in Sweden. 

In addition to the four main operating companies, Storebrand also owns 50 per cent. of Storeband 
Helseforsikring AS, which offers health insurance products in the Norwegian and Swedish markets.  
Storebrand Skadeforsikring AS which operates the groups P&C business, is also the 100 per cent. owner 
of Oslo Reinsurance Company ASA. Oslo Reinsurance Company ASA is principally involved in the 
run-off of its own reinsurance business and managing other companies' run-off business. It has worked 
actively to reduce its reinsurance risk through early settlement of liabilities (commutation agreements). 

History of the Storebrand Group 

The Storebrand Group can trace its origins back to 1767, when Norges Brannkasse was established to 
write non-life insurance.  The first life company in the Storebrand Group was Idun Life, which began 
operations in 1861. 

Through mergers and acquisitions, the Storebrand Group has, over the years, been an active participant 
in the restructuring of the Norwegian insurance industry.  In 1982, Storebrand-Idun and Norden merged 
to create a significant life insurance company in Norway.  In 1991, Storebrand merged with UNI to 
create UNI Storebrand, which retained its name until the change to Storebrand in 1996.  From its 
creation, the new group has been a significant player in both the life insurance and the non-life insurance 
markets in Norway. 
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In 1999, Storebrand and Skandia announced the creation of a new non-life insurance group by 
combining their existing non-life businesses, to form If.  In 2001 Sampo's Property and Casualty 
("P&C") business was also incorporated into If.  At this time property and casualty insurance was 
considered to fall outside Storebrand's core business of long-term savings and life insurance, and 
Storebrand sold its shares in If to Sampo in May 2004.  However, the Storebrand brand name continued 
to be closely linked to P&C insurance in the mind of Norwegian consumers, and in 2006 Storebrand 
therefore decided to re-launch P&C operations.  The re-launch extends the Storebrand Group's product 
range and strengthens its commitment to the retail market. 

Today the Group is an integrated financial services group, with pensions and life insurance, P&C 
insurance, banking and asset management activities carried out by subsidiaries of the Company. 

Business of the Storebrand Group 

The Storebrand Group is made up of four business areas:  life insurance, banking, asset management and 
P&C insurance, each of which is more fully described below. 

The Group distributes its products through four channels:  financial advisors, direct sales, insurance 
agents and external distributors.  The financial adviser channel is the Group's largest and most important 
distribution channel, with around 160 advisers located in 40 company-owned offices throughout 
Norway, it offers customers comprehensive financial advice on savings, banking and insurance.  The 
direct sales channel serves customers through a customer centre staffed by around 60 advisers handling 
both incoming and outgoing service and sales dialogue, and also through the Group's website.  Sales of 
P&C insurance products take place over the Internet and from a separate customer centre.  Insurance 
agents are independent insurance brokers who have exclusive distribution agreements with the Group. 

Sales through non-exclusive external distributors are an important part of the Group's focus on the retail 
market.  The share of new sales to the retail market arranged through this channel, including insurance 
agents, has increased to 40 per cent. in the year ended 31 December 2006.  In order to further increase 
its distribution capacity in this market, Storebrand has invested in selected external distributors as a part 
owner.  In December 2006, Storebrand Life Insurance acquired a 34 per cent. interest in Caveo ASA, a 
firm with 65 advisers working from 12 offices around Norway.  Prior to this, Storebrand Life Insurance 
already held a 34 per cent. stake in Økonomiforvaltning, a firm with 23 advisers.  These two companies 
will continue as independent distributors, but will collaborate with Storebrand both operationally and 
strategically. 

Life Insurance 

Storebrand Life Insurance offers a wide range of products for occupational pensions, individual pension 
savings, life insurance and health insurance for companies, public sector entities and private individuals.  
Storebrand Life Insurance had a 27.5 per cent.12 share of the Norwegian market measured in terms of 
customer's funds under management for the financial year ended 31 December 2006.  Additionally, in 
each of the three years ending in 2006, Storebrand Life Insurance was the highest-scoring company in 
the Norwegian Customer Survey ("Norsk Kundebarometer") of customer satisfaction and loyalty in 
the corporate pensions market.  For the year ended 31 December 2006, group pension insurance 
accounted for 72 per cent. of Storebrand Life Insurance's policyholders' funds, with individual pensions 
and life insurance products representing 28 per cent. of total policyholders' funds. 

New areas of focus for Storebrand Life Insurance in recent years include defined contribution pensions 
for the corporate market, pension schemes for Norwegian municipalities and independent public sector 
entities, and health insurance products.  Storebrand Life Insurance has also opened a branch office in 
Sweden, which offers defined benefits and unit linked pensions solutions to the Swedish market. 

With the introduction of Mandatory Occupational Pensions in 2006 in Norway, Storebrand Life 
Insurance reinforced its strong position for occupational pension schemes, and took a market share of 26 
per cent. for these new products (source:  Norwegian Financial Services Association). 

                                                           
12 Source:   Norwegian Financial Services Association 
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Banking 

Storebrand Bank is a commercial bank offering traditional banking services such as accounts and 
lending to the retail market, as well as project financing for selected corporate customers.  As at 31 
December, 2006, Storebrand Bank had total assets of NOK 34.2 billion and a loan portfolio totalling 
NOK 31.2 billion. Of the loan portfolio, 63 per cent. consisted of retail lending, 32 per cent. was real 
estate corporate financing and 5 per cent. consisted of other corporate lending.  Storebrand Bank focuses 
solely on the Norwegian market and aims to actively recruit new customers by offering "no-fees" 
banking for routing banking services. 

Storebrand Bank is primarily a retail bank, but with a niche corporate strategy in real estate financing 
where Storebrand Bank retains particular expertise and has traditionally had very low loan losses.  In 
addition to standardised banking products, Storebrand Bank also offers capital guaranteed equity-linked 
bonds.  These are bonds issued by Storebrand Bank and sold to retail customers, where the coupon is 
linked to performance of a selected market or group of equities.  Customers often borrow to finance 
their purchases of these bonds (secured by mortgages on the bonds), and this largely represents 
Storebrand Bank's "other retail" loan book. 

In 2005 and 2006, new savings products, including a real estate fund and a combination real estate and 
international equities fund, were also developed by Storebrand Bank.  These products are structured to 
minimise wealth tax whilst producing a strong investment return, and have been very popular amongst 
customers. 

In the corporate market, Storebrand Bank primarily offers lending products to real estate investors and 
developers backed by mortgages on properties located primarily in Oslo and the surrounding areas. 

Asset Management 

Storebrand Investments offers a complete asset management concept with a clear socially responsible 
investment profile for Norwegian and international institutional investors and the Norwegian retail 
market.  Asset management products include discretionary management of Norwegian and international 
securities, global specialist products with a target absolute return and cost-efficient management of 
market risk.  For the year ended 31 December 2006, Storebrand Investments managed assets totalling 
NOK 217 billion in mutual funds and client portfolios under the brand names Storebrand and Delphi. 

Storebrand Investments relies on a separate unit of investment advisers working closely with major 
institutional customers to develop customised investment strategies that meet customers' financial 
objectives, investment time horizons and risk profiles.  Fund products for the retail market are 
distributed through the Group's network of financial advisers, external distributors and direct sales 
channels such as the Internet and customer call centres.  Storebrand Investments also offers its products 
through defined contribution pension products and savings-related life insurance products, areas in 
which Storebrand Life Insurance enjoys a strong position. 

P&C Insurance 

In March 2006, the Group resolved to re-launch P&C insurance for the retail market through Storebrand 
P&C. Insurance sales started in October 2006 following a rapid period of preparation, with external 
launch in December 2006.  Distribution is primarily made through the Internet, and Storebrand P&C is 
experiencing a good inflow of customers.  Storebrand P&C offers standard property and casualty 
insurance products to the Norwegian retail market.  Of the 15 areas of insurance offered, the most 
important are motor, buildings and contents and second homes. 

5.3 Market summary13 

Overview of Norwegian life insurance and pensions market 

The Norwegian life insurance and pension market is currently dominated by the top five life and 
pensions insurers, who account for over 95 per cent. of the market in terms of premium income.  Vital 

                                                           
13   Source of market information is from the Norwegian Financial Services Associations (FNH), unless otherwise indicated 



 

 - 25 -  
 

and Vital Link, the subsidiaries of DnB NOR Bank ASA, are the leaders in the Norwegian life and 
pensions insurance market, based on premium income in 2005, trailed by Storebrand Life Insurance.  
The other three top players are KLP, although it only competes in the municipality segment, Nordea Liv 
& Link, focusing on bancassurance, and Sparebank 1 Liv & Fondsforsikring, also with a focus on 
bancassurance, and owned by one of the largest savings bank's group in Norway. 

Industry dynamics and growth 

The Norwegian life and pensions market expanded by a compounded annual rate of 14.5 per cent. 
between 2002 and 2005, as a consequence of a similar growth in premium income between 2001 and 
2005, primarily driven by growth in pensions.  However, premium income from unit-linked insurance 
was negligible throughout the 2001—2005 period, despite substantial growth, but such income is 
expected to increase as contributions in 2006 and 2007 year-to-date have increased.  The Norwegian life 
and pensions market is expected to expand by a compounded annual rate of 6.4 per cent. between 2006 
and 2010 due to expected wage growth, growing employment and the introduction of mandatory 
occupational pensions in 2006. 

Outlook 

The Norwegian FSA regulates financial markets in Norway, including life and pensions, and currently 
follows EU legislation which will continue to shape the market in the future.  The new legislation 
adopted by the Norwegian FSA will lower the guaranteed interest rate in life insurance and pensions, 
and has created compulsory pension schemes and the Insurance Mediation Directive which creates a 
single passport for insurance intermediaries and enhances consumer choice.  Additional laws which take 
effect in 2008 are expected to further enhance consumer protection. 

Overview of Norwegian banking market 

The Norwegian banking market is dominated by three nation wide banks, DnB NOR, Nordea and Fokus 
Bank with a combined market share of approximately 50 per cent. In addition, the market is 
characterised by local and regional savings banks, including the saving banks groups Sparebank 1 
Gruppen and Terra Gruppen ASwith a combined market share of approximately 20 per cent. The local 
savings banks generally have a larger exposure towards the retail market compared to the nation wide 
banks. Storebrand bank is one of the largest commercial banks with a market share of 1.2 per cent. 

Industry dynamics and growth 

The long upturn in the Norwegian economy has contributed to strong growth in corporate and household 
income and unusually low loan losses at banks. From 2002 to 2006, net loans to customers grew 33 per 
cent. The cyclical upturn is now in a mature phase. Unemployment has declined further and is now on a 
par with levels recorded in earlier cyclical peaks. Limited available resources in the Norwegian 
economy, higher interest rates and lower growth internationally may dampen growth in the Norwegian 
economy ahead. The period without losses on bank loans is expected to eventually come to an end. 

Outlook 

The new capital adequacy rules that have recently been introduced (Basel II) will contribute to 
improving risk management in the banking markets. Differences in estimated risk of individual loans 
trigger different capital requirements. Consequently, the level of capital at financial institutions will to a 
further extent reflect the risk associated with financial institutions’ activities. Given the asset 
composition at Norwegian banks, the new capital adequacy rules will result in a considerable reduction 
in the minimum capital requirements for most banks in the coming years. As provided for in the 
transitional rules, the reduction will occur gradually in the period to 2010. Lower minimum 
requirements free up capital at banks and may contribute to sustaining lending growth. 

The overall outlook is considered satisfactory. Given the solid financial position of banks and most 
borrowers, the Norwegian banks seem to be robust to economic disturbances. Banks’ liquidity risk, 
market risk and credit risk are still considered to be relatively low in the short term. 
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Overview of the Norwegian P&C market 

The four largest players in the Norwegian property and casualty insurance market have a market share 
of approximately 91 per cent. The two pre-dominant players, If Skadeforsikring and Gjensidige, have a 
combined market share in excess of 62 per cent. of premium income in the non-marine P&C market. 
The two other dominant players are Vesta and Sparebank 1 Skadeforsikring with a combined market 
share of approximately 28 per cent. The three major players, If Skadeforsikring, Gjensidige and Vesta, 
are all non-life players while Sparebank 1 Skadeforsikring has a focus on bancassurance, being owned 
by one of the largest saving banks groups.  

Storebrand re-launched its P&C insurance in 2006, and despite its short history, has become a strong 
competitor in short time, with 10,000 new clients as of July 2007, and obtains a majority of its sales 
through the Internet. Storebrand expects to benefit from its brand name as a non-life player.  

Industry dynamics and growth 

The Norwegian P&C market has experienced strong results as a consequence of strong underwriting 
results and positive financial results. The premium income has grown 11 per cent.14 between 2002 and 
2006, while the total number of claims has increased with 3 per cent.15  In recent years, the market share 
of the four largest players has been relatively stable.  

On 1 January 2006 a new act came into force in Norway which allows customers to change their P&C 
insurance provider at any time (prior to this customers could only change at the time of the policy 
renewal). 

Market research has demonstrated that price is the most important criteria when Norwegians buy P&C 
insurance. 

Outlook 

The market is estimated to grow with general GDP in the years to come. 

The Norwegian P&C insurance market is currently dominated by relatively few companies and 
Storebrand’s return to this market has paved the way for increased price competition and greater 
mobility among customers. Storebrand P&C will focus on profitable and steady growth, and its target is 
to win a 15 per cent. share of the market over the next seven to nine years.  

Overview of the Norwegian asset management/mutual funds market 

Norwegian equity funds exceeded NOK 257 billion in assets under management as of 30 June 2007. 
The five largest players have a combined market share of approximately 72 per cent., with Storebrand 
being the fourth largest player with a market share of approximately 11 per cent.  The overall market 
consist of NOK 108 billion from Norwegian retail customers, 109 billion from institutional investors 
and 40 billion from foreign investors.  Storebrand has a 7 per cent. market share in the retail market, 17 
per cent. market share in the institutional market and 1 per cent. amongst foreign investors.  

Industry dynamics and growth 

The Norwegian mutual funds market has experienced a growth of approximately 300 per cent. from 
2002 to 2006 as a consequence of a combination of growth in net new sales and increased values 
resulting from the strong equity markets.  

The market appears to be experiencing a trend in which the historical main suppliers for mutual funds 
are losing market share to smaller providers. 

                                                           
14  Storebrand's interim report Q2, 2007 

15  Storebrand's interim report Q2, 2007 
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Outlook 

The market for long-term savings continues to grow in Norway. The introduction of a new pension 
reform has made Norwegians more aware of the need for private savings, and together with strong 
economic growth, the market is expected to grow in the years to come. 

5.4 Breakdown of total revenue 

The table below specifies revenue by business activity and geographic split. 

 Total revenues 

NOK million 
H1 2007 

(unaudited) 2006 2005 200416 

Life insurance activities, of which:................................  18,877 33,191 30,609 27,517 
Norway .......................................................................  18,783 33,088 30,602 27,517 
Sweden .......................................................................  94 103 7  — 

Asset management activities of which: .........................  232 436 257 329 
Norway .......................................................................  223 419 257  329 
Luxembourg ...............................................................  9 17 — — 

Storebrand Bank ............................................................  249 498 541 686 
Other activities (including P&C)...................................  3 –50 317 1774 

Total revenues................................................................  19,361 34,075 31,724 30,306 

 

5.5 Breakdown of total profits 

The table below specifies Group profit from ordinary activities before tax: 

 
Six months ended 

30 June Year ended 31 December 

NOK million 
2007 

(unaudited) 
2006 

(unaudited) 2006 2005 200417 

      

Financial result.......................................................................  3,955 2,608 5,523 4,402 3,128 
Risk result ..............................................................................  198 192 220 365 209 
Administration result .............................................................  -252 -218 -551 -384 -198 
Other.......................................................................................  -20 -22 -30 133 -202 
Funds allocated to policyholders - life insurance ..................  -3,148 -1,974 -3,964 -3,287 -1,996 
Total life activities ................................................................  734 586 1,198 1,229 941 
Banking activities...................................................................  134 107 190 241 121 
Asset management activities..................................................  95 52 156 24 47 
Other activities .......................................................................  27 77 41 -31 1462 
Group profit from ordinary activities before tax .............  990 822 1,585 1,463 2,571 
Tax..........................................................................................  -42 -53 -79 -41 -22 

Profit/loss for the period......................................................  948 770 1,506 1,422 2,353 

. 

5.6 Board and management 

(a) Board of representatives 

The Board of Representatives gives recommendations to the general meetings of shareholders 
(the "General Meeting") concerning approval of the profit and loss statement and balance sheet 
proposed by the Board of Directors, in addition to the allocation of profit or the manner of 
covering losses.  The Board of Representatives also elects directors, including the chairman of 
the Board of Directors, and determines the directors' fees, and appoints members to the election 
committee.  Finally, the Board of Representatives issues instructions concerning the activities 
of the Control Committee and receives their reports. 

                                                           
16  The figures for 2004 to first half year 2007 are based on IFRS 

17  The figures for 2004 to first half year 2007 are based on IFRS 



 

 - 28 -  
 

The following table presents the members of the Board of Representatives of Storebrand ASA, 
their principal position/activities, and business addresses, and the number of shares that they 
hold, if any, in the Company: 

Name Position Business address Number of shares 

Terje R. Venold - 
Chairman 

CEO Veidekke ASA Utsiktsveien 4, 1369 
Stabekk 

500 

Inger Lise Gjørv – 
Deputy Chairman 

Chief administrative 
officer of a county 

Sandvollan, 7670 Inderøy 0 

Stein Erik Hagen 
- Member 

Independent 
industrialist 

Voksenkollveien 14 A, 
0790 Oslo 

0 

Trond Bjørgan – 
Member 

Director of 
Sporveien AS 

 0 

Johan H. 
Andersen jr. – 
Member 

CEO Ferd AS C/O Ferd, 1324 Lysaker 0 

Arvid Gunderkjøn 
- Member 

Independent 
industrialist 

Vesteråsveien 12, 0382 
Oslo 

0 

Vibeke Hammer 
Madsen- Member 

Managing director 
in HSH 

Heggelibakken 69, 0374 
Oslo 

0 

Merete Egelund 
Valderhaug – 
Member 

Financial director in 
Coop Norge AS 

Bestemorstien 11, 1177 
Oslo 

0 

Margareth Øvrum 
– Member 

Group director in 
Statoil ASA 

Hammerslandsgrenda 31, 
5251 Søreidgrend 

0 

Roar Engeland – 
Member 

Group director in 
Orkla ASA 

Møllefaret 48 B, 0750 Oslo 0 

Olaug Svara – 
Member 

Managing director 
of Folketrygdfondet 

Sollerudveien 36, 0283 
Oslo 

0 

Karen Helen 
Ulltveit-Moe – 
Member 

Professor in 
economy at Oslo 
University 

 0 

Randi Paulsrud Employee elected Oslo Reinsurance 
Company ASA, 
Ruseløkkveien 14, 0250 
Oslo 

300 

Rune Pedersen Employee elected Storebrand 
Kapitalforvaltning AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 
Oslo 

910 

Arild Thoresen Employee elected Storebrand Livsforsikring 
AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 
Oslo 

0 

Paul Eggen jr. Employee elected Storebrand Livsforsikring 
AS, 

3 
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Name Position Business address Number of shares 

Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 
Oslo 

Unn Kristin 
Johnsen 

Employee elected Storebrand Livsforsikring 
AS,  
Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 
Oslo 

0 

Tor Haugom Employee elected Storebrand Livsforsikring 
AS, Fililpstad Brygge 1, 
0114 Oslo 

5 

 

There are no conflicts of interest between the members of the Board of Representatives' duties 
to Storebrand ASA and their private interests and/or other duties as far as the Company is 
aware. 

The Business address of each member of the Board of Representatives is: 

The Board of Representatives of Storebrand ASA 
Attn.: Chairman Terje R. Venold 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
N-0114 Oslo 
Norway 
 

(b) Board of Directors 

The following table presents the members of the Board of Directors of Storebrand ASA, their 
principal positions/activities, and business addresses, and the number of shares that they hold, if 
any, in the Company: 

Name Position Business address Number of 
shares 

Leiv Lea 
Nergaard – 
Chariman 

Partner at Norscan 
Partners AS 

Norscan Partner AS, 
Rådhusgaten 17, 0158 
Oslo 

60,000 

Halvor 
Stenstadvold – 
Member 

Independent Advisor Utgarveien 12, 1368 
Stabekk 

3,593 

Knut 
Gregardsøn 
Heje – Member 

CEO in Agra Group and 
Managing Director in AS 
Agra Industrier 

AS Agra Industrier , 
Sofenberggt 19, 0506 
Oslo 

8,500 

Camilla 
Marianne 
Grieg – 
Member 

Co-owner and CEO of 
Grieg Shipping Group AS 

Grieg Shipping AS, C. 
Sundts gate 17/19, 
5807 Bergen 

0 

Birgitte 
Nielsen – 
Member 

Partner in JMI Invest II 
A/S 

JMI Invest II A/S, 
Lejrvej 19 3560 
Væløse - Denmark 

830 

Barbara Rose 
Milian 
Thoralfsson - 

Director in Fleming 
Invest AS 

Fleming Invest AS, 
Rådhusgaten 27, 0110 

1,000 
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Member Oslo 

Ann-Mari 
Gjørstein – 
Member 

Employee elected Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 
0114 Oslo 

0 

Erik Haug 
Hansen – 
Member 

Employee elected Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 
0114 Oslo 

2,153 

Knut Dyre 
Haug - 
Member 

Employee elected Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 
0114 Oslo 

1,618 

 

The remuneration to the Board of Directors in 2006 was a total of NOK 2,332,000. 

(c) No member of the Board of Director has service contracts with the Company that provide for 
benefits upon termination of their employment.Management 

The following table presents members of Group management, their positions and business 
addresses, and the number of shares that they hold, if any, in the Company: 

Name Position Business address 
Number of 
shares 

Post-termination 
salary (months) 

Idar Kreutzer CEO Storebrand 
ASA and Managing 
Director Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 

Storebrand ASA 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo  

29,788 24 

Klaus-Anders 
Nysteen 

Managing Director 
Storebrand Bank 
ASA 

Storebrand ASA 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

700 18 

Hans Aasnæs Managing Director 
Storebrand 
Kapitalforvaltning 
AS 

Storebrand 
Kapitalforvaltning 
AS 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

2,582 18 

Lars Aa. 
Løddesøl 

Executive Vice 
President, Corporate 
Life 

Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

2,713 18 

Maalfrid Brath Executive Vice 
President Retail 
Market 

Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

2,413 18 

Odd Arild 
Grefstad 

Executive Vice 
President, CFO 

Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

4,578 18 

Egil Thompson Executive Vice 
President, Corporate 

Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 

2,013 18 
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Name Position Business address 
Number of 
shares 

Post-termination 
salary (months) 

Communications Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

Roar Thoresen Executive Vice 
President, Chief 
Operating Officer 

Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
0114 Oslo 

1,538 18 

 

Benefits of Management upon termination of their employment 

The termination period of the CEO Idar Kreutzer is 6 months irrespective of the reason for the 
termination of his employment contract. He is also entitled to severance payment equal to 24 
months salary upon the Company's termination of his employment contract and upon his own 
termination of the employment contract if the nature of his employment changes due to 
significant changes in the ownership structure of the Company or similar circumstances that 
makes it unnatural that he continues in his position. These provisions will not apply if his 
employment is terminated due to material violation of his obligations towards the Company or 
due to any other material breach by him of his employment contract. Furthermore, he is not 
entitled to severance payment (i) upon his death, (ii) if he sues the Company according to § 61 
of the Norwegian Employment Act in order to have the termination invalidated and/or claim 
damages, (iii) immediate dismissal according to § 66 of the Norwegian Employment Act unless 
it is established that the dismissal was unjustified, (iv) if he retires from the Company at his 
retirement age or (v) violation of his non-compete or quarantine undertakings. Any salary 
earned by employment (including payments for services or assumption of other positions) shall 
be deducted from his severance payment. 

The other members of the Management have a termination period of 6 months and right to 
severance payment for 18 months. Their terms and conditions are otherwise similar to the terms 
of the CEO described above. 

(d) Control committee 

The Control Committee exercises supervision over the activities of Storebrand.  The 
committee's task is to ensure that Storebrand complies with the laws, regulations, and the 
Articles of Association and resolutions adopted by the decision-making bodies in the Bank.  
The Control Committee may take up for consideration any issue concerning Storebrand. 

The following table presents the members of the Control Committee of Storebrand ASA, their 
principal position/activities, and business addresses, and the number of shares that they hold, if 
any, in the Company: 

Name Position Business address Number of 
shares 

Elisabeth Wille – 
Leader 

Lawyer Den norske advokatforening, 
Kr. Augusts gate 9, 0164 Oslo 

0 

Harald Moen – 
Member 

Independent 
industrialist 

Creditinfo, Chr. Fredriks plass 
6,  
0051 Oslo 

0 

Ida Hjort Kraby – 
Member 

Lawyer Regjeringsadvokaten, 
Pilestredet 19, 0164 Oslo 

0 

Ole Klette – 
Member 

Independent 
industrialist 

Bjørnveien 78, 0773 Oslo 0 
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The remuneration to the members of the Control Committee in 2006 was a total of 
NOK 761,000. 

There are no potential conflicts of interest between the members of the Control Committees' 
duties to Storebrand and their private interests and/or other duties. 

The business address of each member of the Control Committee is: 

The Control Committee of Storebrand ASA 
Attn.:  Chairman Elisabeth Wille 
Filipstad Brygge 1 
N-0114 Oslo 
Norway 
 

 

(e) Election committee 

The Company's Articles of Association regulate the company's election committee, which has 
four members:  Terje Venold, Dag J. Opedal, Johan H. Andresen, Jr. and Olaug Svarva.  In 
accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association the Company's 
employees also elect an observer to the committee, who participates as a full member in making 
recommendations for the election of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.  The election 
committee is independent of the Company's Board of Directors and Managers, and its 
composition ensures a broad representation of shareholder interests. 

(f) Options 

5.7 None of the members of the Board of Representatives, Control Committee, Board of Directors or the 
Management hold stock options in respect of the Company’s stock.Statutory auditors 

The Company's statutory auditor is Deloitte AS, Karenslyst Allé 20, P.O. Box 347 Skøyen, 0213 Oslo 
with company registration number 980 211 282.  Deloitte AS is a member of Den Norske 
Revisorforening (The Norwegian Institute of Public Accountants). 

The annual financial statements for the Company included in this Information Memorandum have been 
audited by Deloitte AS.   

Deloitte AS has issued review reports on the interim financial statements for the periods ended 31 
March and 30 June 2007. 

5.8 Corporate governance 

As a large stock exchange listed company and an important participant in society, Storebrand is 
committed to building good relationships with its stakeholders, who include shareholders, corporate 
bodies, management, employees, customers, lenders, and society as a whole.  Corporate governance 
plays a central role in this objective, and defines the legal and operational framework by which 
Storebrand directs and controls its activities in order to create value for its stakeholders. 

Storebrand's principles for corporate governance correspond in all material respects with the Norwegian 
Code of Practice of 28 November 2006.  The deviations from the Code of Practice are set out below: 

Deviation from Section 7 of the Code of Practice:  Storebrand's Articles of Association stipulate that the 
Chairman of the Board of Representatives is a permanent member of the Election Committee and is the 
Committee's chairman.  This means that the chairman of the Election Committee is not directly elected 
to this position by the AGM.  However, the AGM elects 2/3 of the Board of Representatives, which 
elects the chairman.  The arrangement is therefore assumed to satisfy the principle that the composition 
of the election committee should be decided by the AGM. 
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Deviation from Section 9 of the Code of Practice:  There is no requirement in legislation or the 
company's Articles of Association for the appointment of a Deputy Chairman to the Board of Storebrand 
ASA.  The Board may elect a Deputy Chairman if it so requires.  The question of electing a Deputy 
Chairman was considered in 2006, but was not considered necessary.  The Board considers that such an 
appointment could cause undesirable differentiation between members of the Board.  When necessary, 
for example due to the absence of the elected Chairman or because the Chairman is not able to 
participate in a particular matter, the Board considers it sensible and appropriate to elect one of its 
members as chairman of the meeting in question. 

(a) Audit committee 

The Company has an audit committee.  The audit committee comprises two shareholder elected 
and one employee elected Board member.  This helps to ensure thorough and independent 
attention to matters such as financial reporting.  The audit committee assists the Board of 
Directors by reviewing, evaluating and where necessary proposing appropriate measures in 
respect of the Group's overall controls, financial and operational reporting, risk management 
and internal and external auditing.   

The following table presents the members of the Audit Committee of Storebrand ASA, their 
principal position/activities, and business addresses, and the number of shares that they hold, if 
any, in the Company: 

Name Position Business address Number 
of shares 

Halvor 
Stenstadvold – 
Member 

Independent 
Advisor 

Utgarveien 12, 1368 Stabekk 3,593 

Barbara Rose 
Milian 
Thoralfsson - 
Member 

Director in 
Fleming Invest 
AS 

Fleming Invest AS, Rådhusgaten 27, 
0110 Oslo 

1,000 

Erik Haug 
Hansen – 
Member 

Employee 
elected 

Storebrand Livsforsikring AS, 
Filipstad Brygge 1, 0114 Oslo 

2,153 

 

No member of the (i) Board of Representatives; (ii) Board of Directors; (iii) Control Committee; 
or (v) Audit Committee has service contracts with the Company that provide for benefits upon 
termination of their employment. 

(b) Remuneration committee 

The Company has a remuneration committee.  The remuneration committee comprises two 
shareholder elected and one employee elected Board member.  The Remuneration Committee 
monitors the remuneration of the Group's senior managers and assists the Board of Directors in 
setting terms and conditions for the Group's Chief Executive Officer.  The current members are 
Leiv L. Nergaard, Ann-Mari Gjøstein and Birgitte Nielsen. 

5.9 Legal and arbitration proceedings 

The Group is not involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such 
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) which may have 
significant effects on the Company and/or the Group's financial position or profitability, nor has the 
Company been involved in any such proceedings during the past 12 months. 
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5.10 Material contracts 

(a) Bridge loan 

On 3 September 2007, the Company entered into a bridge loan governed by a credit facility agreement 
(the "Credit Facility Agreement") with J.P. Morgan plc and UBS Limited as mandated lead arrangers 
and joint bookrunners and J.P. Morgan Europe Limited acting as facility agent.  For a description of the 
Credit Facility Agreement, please refer to section 4.5. 

(b) Transaction agreement 

On 3 September 2007, Storebrand Liv entered into an agreement with Handelsbanken (dated 2 
September 2007) for the indirect acquisition of (i) SPP, and thereby indirectly in addition to the existing 
subsidiaries of SPP, (ii) Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), (iii) SPP Fonder 
AB, (iv) Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and (v) 50 per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben, for a 
total cash consideration of SEK 18.0 billion (EUR 1.9 billion/NOK 15.3 billion).  SPP currently owns 
50 per cent. of the ordinary shares of Nordben and this interest will hence also be acquired as part of the 
Transaction. 

It is estimated that SPP currently has at least SEK 2.0 billion of excess capital.  It is intended that SPP 
will use SEK 600 million of this excess capital to finance the acquisition of Handelsbanken Life & 
Pension Limited, SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and 50 per cent. of the preference 
shares in Nordben from other entities within Handelsbanken prior to the closing of the Transaction, 
thereby reducing the purchase price payable by Storebrand for SPP to SEK 17.4 billion (EUR 1.86 
billion/NOK 14.74 billion).  The purchase price will be further reduced to SEK 16.0 billion (EUR 1.71 
billion/NOK 13.56 billion) through a special dividend conrresponding to SEK 1.4 billion (EUR 0.15 
billion/NOK 1.18 billion), to be paid by SPP to Handelsbanken prior to the closing of the Transaction, 
provided that the Swedish FSA approves or does not object to, such dividend. 

The Transaction is subject to:  (1) Storebrand's shareholders approving the Rights Issue with a 
two-thirds majority of the votes present at the Extraordinary General Meeting scheduled to be held on 
24 October 2007, (2) the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority approving the direct transfer of SPP 
Livförsäkring and the indirect transfer of SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB; (3) the Norwegian Ministry of 
Finance and the Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority approving the Transaction and the 
financing of the Transaction; (4) each competition authority having jurisdiction over the Transaction and 
to which notification of such transactions is mandatory under applicable merger control law clearing the 
Transaction; and (5) the Underwriting Agreement (as described in sub-section 5.9(c) below) not having 
been terminated by the underwriters. 

Handelsbanken has the right to terminate the transaction agreement in the event that said conditions 
have not been satisfied or waived within 180 days from 2 September 2007.  Storebrand has agreed to 
pay Handelsbanken a break-up fee of SEK 200 million should the conditions not be satisfied, except if 
closing of the Transaction does not occur due to failure to obtain the required shareholder approval for 
the share capital increase in Storebrand referred to in section 4.5 below (in relation to the Rights Issue 
description). 

(c) Underwriting Agreement 

The Rights Issue will be underwritten by J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd and UBS Limited (the 
"Underwriters").  On 3 September 2007, Storebrand entered into an agreement with the Underwriters 
for the underwriting. The underwriting commitment will be evidenced by a final Underwriting 
Agreement, which amongst other things will contain representations and warranties linked to this 
Information Memorandum and the prospectus for the Rights Offering. The Underwriting Agreement 
will contain certain conditions and termination rights that are customary for this kind of agreements.  If 
any or all of the conditions for the underwriting are not met or waived prior to delivery of the new 
shares, the Underwriters may, at their discretion, terminate the Underwriting Agreement.  In such event, 
the Rights Issue will be withdrawn. 

5.11 Selected financial information of the Group 

(a) Accounting principles 
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Storebrand’s 2007 consolidated financial statements was approved in the general meeting held on 25 
April 2007.  

The consolidated financial statements of Storebrand ASA are prepared in accordance to the 
internationally EU-approved, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  

The financial statements are prepared based on the historical cost principle, with the exception of: 

• Investment properties valued at fair value 

• Property valued at fair value 

• Financial instruments valued at fair value 

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance to IFRS requires management to make 
valuations and estimates and decide upon assumptions that affect assets, liabilities, revenue, costs, the 
notes to the accounts and information on potential liabilities. The final values realised may differ from 
these estimates.  

Changes to accounting principles in 2006: 

• From the second quarter of 2006, estimated discrepancy regarding pension benefit obligations will 
be recorded against stockholders’ equity. The effects of this change are displayed on the 
reconciliation of changes in equity, and comparable historical figures have been restated. 

• The accounting principle for valuing security reserves with very high security margin in P&C 
insurance is changed. Such reserves are not treated as liabilites. The change is displayed on the 
reconciliation of equity, and comparable historical figures have been restated.  

Storebrand has elected to use the following standard: 

• IFRS 7 introduces new additional information in respect of financial instruments.  The standard 
does not affect the evaluation or classification of financial instruments. (IFRS 7 is obligatory from 
2007).  

• On 1 January 2005, Storebrand ASA implemented IFRS, performing a restatement of the 
comparable figures. See the quarterly report for the first quarter of 2005 for further description of 
the effects of implementation.  

For a complete description of the accounting principles, see the quarterly and annual financial 
statements for the period. 

(b) Selected financial information Storebrand Group 

The table below shows selected financial information for the Group as at the dates and for the years 
indicated, which have been extracted without material adjustment from the Company's audited annual 
reports for 2004, 2005, 2006 and the Company's interim reports for the second quarter of 2007 and 2006 
which are incorporated by reference. 

Profit and loss statement Storebrand Group 

 As at or for the six 
months ended 
(Unaudited) 

As at or for the year ended 
31 December 

NOK million 2007 2006 2006 2005 200418 

Net premiums — insurance.........................................  10,733 11,443 19,539 19,383 18,741

Interests income...........................................................  194 209 419 447 427

Financial income .........................................................  7,957 3,789 13,186 11,429 10,598
                                                           

18  Profit and loss for 2004 reported in Norwegian GAAP, all other periods reported in IFRS 
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 As at or for the six 
months ended 
(Unaudited) 

As at or for the year ended 
31 December 

NOK million 2007 2006 2006 2005 200418 

Other income ...............................................................  477 363 931 464 693

Operating income ......................................................  19,361 15,804 34,075 31,724 30,458

Insurance benefits, reserve allocations........................  (13,207) (13,159) (23,732) (23,246) (22,258)

Interests costs ..............................................................  (127) (99) (213) (197) (247)

Loan losses — banking ...............................................  49 30 47 34 7

Operating expenses......................................................  (1,263) (1,245) (2,521) (2,169) (2,149)

Other costs ...................................................................  (61) (44) (80) (256) (299)

Costs and expenses ....................................................  (14,608) (14,517) (26,498) (25,834) (24,946)

To (from) market price adjustment reserve.................  (619) 1,508 (2,027) (1,150) (1,078)

Operating profit.........................................................  4,135 2,795 5,549 4,740 4,435

Fund allocated to policyholders — life insurance ......  (3,148) (1,974) (3,964) (3,287) (2,019)

Group profit/loss........................................................  987 821 1,585 1,453 2,415
Changes in security reserves etc. — non life insurance
.....................................................................................  3 2 0 10 57

Pre-tax result..............................................................  990 822 1,585 1,463 2,472

Tax ...............................................................................  (42) (53) (79) (41) (113)

Profit/loss ....................................................................  948 770 1,506 1,422 2,360

Balance sheet Storebrand Group 

 

As at or for the six 
months  ended 

(Unaudited) 

As at or for the year ended 
31 December 

NOK million 2007 2006 2006 2005 200419

 
unaudited  

Intangible assets...........................................................  730 722 748 798 642

Shares in associated companies...................................  238 129 237 138 70

Loans ...........................................................................  36,966 29,413 33,203 26,984 24,129

Bonds held to maturity ................................................  41,259 45,132 43,099 40,672 39,352

Real estate at market value..........................................  18,336 15,779 17,447 13,504 12,138

Financial assets at market value ..................................  113,927 101,166 106,869 104,329 84,310

Bank deposits...............................................................  11,301 8,063 13,216 5,769 6,003

Other assets..................................................................  10,274 11,182 7,940 9,685 6,129

Total assets .................................................................  233,031 211,586 222,758 201,878 172,771

Equity...........................................................................  9,341 8,547 8,900 9,108 8,917

Subordinated loan capital ............................................  3,778 3,518 3,712 3,525 3,610

Market value adjustment reserve ................................  6,508 2,354 5,890 3,863 2,767

Technical reserves ......................................................  161,438 149,457 155,877 143,374 126,422

Liabilities to financial institutions...............................  22,126 16,667 19,181 17,118 14,386

Deposits from and liabilities to customers ..................  15,386 13,477 13,534 11,187 11,476

                                                           
19  Accounts for 2004 reported in Norwegian GAAP, all other periods reported in IFRS 
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Derivatives...................................................................  2,023 1,076 1,797 1,719 1,693

Other allocations and liabilities...................................  12,431 16,492 13,868 11,984 3,499

Total liabilities and equity capital ...........................  233,031 211,586 222,758 201,878 172,771
 

5.11.3 Key figures 

 

NOK million 

Second 
quarter 

2007 

First 
quarter 

2007 

Fourth 
quarter 

2006 

Third 
quarter 

2006 

Second 
quarter 

2006 

First 
quarter 

2006 

Fourth 
quarter 

2005 

Third 
quarter 

2005 

Group ........................................         
Earnings per ordinary share 
(NOK)........................................ 3.82 1.48 6.03 4.19 3.01 1.72 5.41 3.73 
Equity ........................................ 9,341 9,277 8,900 8,615 8,478 9,328 9,108 8,965 
Capital ratio ............................... 10.5% 10.6% 10.6% 10.4% 10.6% 10.6% 11.2% 12.6% 
Life Insurance ..........................         
Storebrand Livsforsikring20          
Premiums for own account........ 10,735 6,340 19,619 15,816 11,384 8,445 19,227 16,120 
-of which products with 
investment choice ...................... 1,257 675 1,763 1,158 833 490 992 641 
Policyholders' fund inc. 
accrued profit............................. 159,030 155,377 153,490 150,740 146,866 146,855 140,228 138,428 
-of which products with 
investment choice ...................... 8,449 7,777 7,364 6,684 6,281 6,392 5,719 5,317 
Investment yield I21  
annualised .................................. 9.0% 6.2% 7.1% 6.5% 7.0% 6.6% 6.9% 6.5% 
Investment yield II22  year to 
date............................................. 4.6% 2.1% 8.3% 4.7% 2.4% 2.8% 7.6% 7.7% 
Capital ratio (Storebrand life 
group) ........................................ 9.4% 9.7% 9.7% 10.3% 10.4% 10.7% 10.9% 11.8% 
Operating costs as % of 
policyholders' funds................... 0.96% 1.15% 1.10% 10.06% 1.14% 1.12% 1.10% 0.94% 
Storebrand Bank .....................         
Interest margin % ...................... 1.06% 10.8% 1.32% 1.36% 1.36% 1.41% 1.59% 1.59% 
Cost/income % .......................... 66% 70% 71% 70% 68% 74% 62% 60% 
Non-interest income/total 
income %................................... 22% 20% 16% 15% 14% 16% 17% 18% 
Net lending ................................ 34,512 32,274 30,748 28,118 27,490 26,797 26,286 25,082 
Capital ratio ............................... 10.5% 10.5% 11.0% 9.7% 9.8% 10.3% 10.5% 11.9% 
Storebrand Investments 
(asset management) .................      

   

Total funds under management . 225,826 219,722 216,902 215,056 206,355 209,276 204,825 177,048 
Funds under mgmt. For 
external clients............................. 60,116 56,389 54,825 55,962 50,707 50,790 49,716 24,688 

 

Borrowing and funding 

In addition to shareholder capital, Storebrand funds itself through the issuance of bonds and commercial 
paper in the Norwegian and international markets, bank loans, deposits from customers and through the 
issuance of subordinated debt.  

Storebrand ASA has issued bonds in the Norwegian market. Storebrand Livsforsikring has issued 
subordinated bonds in the international market. Storebrand Bank makes use of all the funding types 

                                                           
20  Figures presented in accordance with Norwegian GAAP except for premium and policyholders' fund, which is presented in 

accordance with IFRS. 

21  Investment yield I:  realised financial income including revaluations (positive or negative) of real estate. 

22     Investment yield II: the same as Investment yield I but including change in unrealised gains on financial current assets. 
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mentioned above, including deposits from retail and corporate customers, bank debt, commercial paper 
and bonds sold to institutional investors, and structured (index linked) bonds sold to retail investors.  

Storebrand ASA and Storebrand Bank also have committed credit facilities totalling EUR 625 million in 
place to secure access to liquidity and working capital at short notice (split between Storebrand Bank: 
EUR 400 million, and Storebrand ASA: EUR 225 million). The facilities are undrawn as at 1 October 
2007.   

Overview of financial liabilities:  

 Storebrand Group Storebrand ASA 

Amount (NOK million) 30 June 2007 31 December 2006 30 June 2007 31 December 2006 

Subordinated Loan Capital 3,778.1 3,711.7 0 0 

Liabilities to financial institutions 2,319.1 2,786.0 0 0 

Deposits from customers 
(banking) 15,386.4 13,533.7 0 0 

Securities issued: 19,806.4 16,395.3 1,998.6 1,998.6 
 

The bond loans are all senior unsecured loans issued using standard documentation.  Standard covenants 
include pari passu ranking with other senior unsecured debt, cross default and material adverse change. 
Loans and deposits from financial institutions and customers include both overnight (current account 
type) deposits and loans and deposits and loans with notice or fixed term maturities.  

On 3 September 2007, the Company entered into a credit facility agreement with J.P. Morgan plc and 
UBS Limited as lenders, pursuant to which the lenders agreed to provide to the Company an unsecured 
term facility in the amount of up to EUR 600 million for use in the Transaction.  For more information 
see section 4.5 above. 

Restrictions on use of capital 

The Company is subject to the Financial Institutions Act and other legal and regulatory limits on the use 
of its capital.  The Company has no other restrictions on the use of its capital.  

Trend information 

The Group has not experienced any changes or shifts in trends outside the Group's ordinary activities 
that have influenced the Group in any significant manner in the period from 31 December 2006 up to the 
date of this Information Memorandum. 

Working capital 

The Company has sufficient working capital for its present requirements, that is, for at least the 12 
months following the date of publication of this Information Memorandum.  

If the Transaction is completed, the financing described in section 4.5 and 4.6 above will be required. 
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6. DESCRIPTION OF SPP 

6.1 Corporate information 

SPP Livförsäkring AB, a limited liability life insurance company incorporated in and existing under the 
laws of Sweden with corporate identity number 516401-8524, has its head office in Stockholm. SPP is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Handelsbanken, corporate identity number 502007-7862.  

SPP has its registered address at Box 1325, SE-111 83 Stockholm, Sweden and its telephone number is 
+46 8 701 71 00. 

6.2 Subsidiaries and affiliates 

SPP holds 100 per cent. of the following subsidiaries, all of which are being limited liability companies 
incorporated in and existing under the laws of Sweden:  

• SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB, corporate identity number 516401-8524, is a unit linked insurance 
company active on the Swedish market, SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB provides, inter alia, unit linked 
insurance products to the white-collar occupational life and pension market.   

• SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB, corporate identity number 556254-6969, provides consultancy services 
within the field of pension plan management and –administration to corporations and municipalities. 
Under the secondary name “Benefit World” SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB provides Internet-based 
services to individuals within the field of white-collar occupational life and pension plans.  

• SPP Konsult AB, corporate identity number 556045-7581, is a wholly owned subsidiary of SPP Liv 
Pensionstjänst AB.  SPP Konsult AB offers consulting and other services to employers and 
employees within the field of pensions and financial security in Sweden and abroad.   

• SPP Kundcenter AB, corporate identity number 556550-1243, until 2001 provided customer service 
over telephone and the Internet to SPP’s customers, but is now dormant.  

Furthermore, SPP holds 50 per cent. of Nordben Life and Pensions Insurance Co Limited, a limited 
liability life and pension insurance company incorporated in and existing under the laws of Guernsey, 
Channel Islands.  The surplus 50 per cent. are held by Storebrand (25 per cent.) and the Finnish 
insurance companies Sampo (15 per cent.) and Varma (10 per cent.). Nordben provides occupational life 
and pension products to expatriates and third country nationals to the Nordic multinational industry. 
Nordben has its registered address at Harbour House, South Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 
1AP, telephone no. +44 (0)1481 702901. 

The following companies are also being acquired by Storebrand in the Transaction. 

• Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (previously named Euroben Life & Pension Limited), 
corporate identity number 314239, a limited liability life insurance company incorporated in and 
existing under the laws of the Republic of Ireland. Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited offers 
occupational life and pension solutions to multinational corporations under the trade name 
“EuroPlan”.  Handelsbanken Life and Pension Limited was founded by SPP and Storebrand in 1999, 
and Handelsbanken acquired Storebrand’s shares it in 2003. Handelsbanken Life & Pension 
Limited’s registered office is at 1 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland, telephone no. +353 1 829 08 
52. It also has a registered branch office in Sweden, Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited Irland 
Filial, with branch identity number 516403-0081, and with the registered address Box 6700, SE-113 
85 Stockholm, Sweden. The branch office markets Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited’s 
products to the Swedish industry.  

• Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB, corporate identity number 556594-9517, is a limited liability 
company incorporated in and existing under the laws of Sweden. The company is the holder of the 
SPP trade-marks and domain name.  

• SPP Fonder AB, corporate identity number 556397-8922, is a limited liability company 
incorporated in and existing under the laws of Sweden.  The company currently has no active 
operations or employees. 
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The subsidiaries domiciled in Sweden have their registered address at Box 1325, SE-111 83 Stockholm, 
Sweden and their telephone number is +46 8 701 71 00. 

6.3 Business overview 

SPP is a leading Swedish life insurance and pension provider with a 10.3 per cent. market share in the 
open competitive Swedish occupational pensions market in 2006.  SPP believes it has a strong position 
in the conventional segment with a 12.6 per cent. market share as well as in the tick-the-box market (a 
mass market collectively agreed pension scheme in Sweden in which customers "tick the box" to get 
enrolled) with a 6.3 per cent. market share.  In addition, SPP has a 3.5 per cent. market share in the 
private pension segment.  SPP also provides advanced consulting services covering occupational 
pensions, as well as insurance and administrative solutions for municipalities and organisations.  Sales 
mainly take place via SPP's own sales team, insurance agents and direct marketing.  SPP currently 
purchases IT services and asset management from its parent company Handelsbanken. 

SPP was acquired by Handelsbanken in 2000 as a mutual company and was subsequently demutualised 
on 1 January 2006.  Consequently, 2006 was the first year of operating as a profit-distributing company.  
The profit sharing between SPP and the policyholders with respect to traditional life insurance is 
performed by means of a well-defined model, approved by the Swedish Financial Supervisory 
Authority.  The profit sharing model within traditional life insurance means that SPP receives at most 10 
per cent. of the return on the policyholders' assets.  The profit sharing model means that SPP bears the 
administration and risk results in full.  The policyholders pay fees to SPP for operating expenses and the 
risk attributable to the insurance risk as agreed in the terms of the insurance contracts. 

SPP is active in all segments of the Swedish occupational pension market (defined benefit, defined 
contribution, unit-linked and disability) and has the ability to provide a "one-stop shop" for all the 
pension needs of its customers, providing a strong competitive advantage.  SPP's extensive experience 
and customer base in all sectors is expected to provide scope for increasing its market share. 

SPP's four key products are defined contribution, defined benefits, unit-linked pension and occupational 
health insurance ("disability insurance") products. 

SPP's defined contribution business consists of occupational pension savings products, but does not 
include collective elements or group-profit sharing schemes.  Defined contribution plans offer 
guaranteed interest rates (before annual management charges and tax) ranging from 2.5 per cent. to 5.2 
per cent.  The defined contribution business consists of with-profits group annuities sold to 
employer-sponsored occupational pension plans.  As of 30 June 2007 defined contribution insurance 
contracts had assets under management of SEK 44 billion. 

Defined benefits products cover both accumulation (active employees) and payout (retirees) phases.  
SPP is liable for both a guaranteed reserve (calculated prospectively as the amount required to pay all 
future guaranteed benefits) and a conditional bonus (the difference between a retrospective reserve and 
the guaranteed reserve) under defined benefits contracts.  Defined benefit plans offer guaranteed interest 
rates (before annual management charges and tax) of 3.5 per cent.  New business is written to a small 
extent. Defined benefit contracts do not have surrender or transfer provisions.  As of 30 June 2007 
defined benefit insurance contracts had assets under management of SEK 38 billion. 

SPP's unit-linked business consists of occupational pension plans that have no underlying financial 
guarantees, with all of the investment risk born by the policyholder.  Under unit-linked plans, at 
retirement, policyholders purchase payout annuities at the then-current purchase rates.  Profits on the 
unit-linked business are derived primarily from premium fees and annual management fees on the fund 
balance. As of June 2007 the unit-linked assets contributed SEK. 

SPP's disability insurance offers individuals long-term disability coverage.  Under the occupational 
pension plans the disability coverage is available as a benefit on an optional basis to participants.  
Benefits include waiver of premium and replacement of salary triggered by disability resulting from 
sickness or accident.  It is primarily profit on disability insurance which has contributed to the risk 
result.  As of 30 June 2007 disability insurance contracts had assets under management of SEK 2 billion. 

SPP believes it has a strong brand and customer franchise in Sweden.  SPP also has long standing 
relationships with unions, particularly white-collar unions, and employer organisations such as Svenskt 
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Näringsliv.  Furthermore, SPP believes it has a strong position in fee driven business, in particular 
pensions consulting and administration and specialized products (for example for expatriates).  

SPP believes it has strong distribution capabilities through a highly experienced sales force as well as 
separate specialist organisations for municipalities and international businesses.  The direct and Internet 
distribution channels are also considered important by SPP and it is currently seeking to reinvigorate its 
participation in the broker channel, providing it with access to all key distribution channels.  SPP's own 
sales force comprises 117 people split into six regions:  Umeå, Gävle, Stockholm, Linköping, Göteborg 
and Malmö.  SPP is one of the few companies in the Swedish market with the capability to serve 
municipalities and to offer a full range of product solutions.  The Electum brand, which is included in 
the Transaction, is important to SPP when serving the municipality segment.  Through Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension Limited, SPP offers larger companies tailor-made multi-national solutions to their 
financial and insurance risk-related issues.  Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited's strength and 
capabilities were evidenced when it was awarded the Swedish SAS pilot contract, the largest single 
pension contract ever awarded in the Nordic region.  SPP Konsult and its 16 consultants, including the 
brand name "Benefit World", is an important component of SPP's full service offering given its well 
recognized name within the pension advice market.  Of new business premiums written during the first 
half of 2007, direct and Internet, brokers and own-sales force constituted 6 per cent., 16 per cent. and 78 
per cent., respectively.  SPP currently has approximately 600 employees in total, of which 
approximately 440 are currently employed by SPP and the remaining approximately 160 are currently 
formally employed by Handelsbanken but are envisaged to be employed by SPP after the Transaction.   

At the end of June 2007, SPP had assets under management of SEK 155.7 billion, of which SEK 94.5 
billion were traditional life assets, SEK 31.0 billion were unit-linked assets and SEK 30.2 billion were in 
PPM and other mutual funds (excluding unit linked). SPP enjoys an excellent position in the PPM 
market with SPP being a top 3 electable asset manager with total PPM assets under management of SEK 
22 billion as of 30 June 2007.  PPM (premium pension) is part of the Swedish public old age pension 
system and is based on a contribution rate of 2.5 per cent on earnings.  Individuals choose, from a large 
number of mutual funds, how their money is to be invested during the saving period and can choose a 
fixed or variable annuity upon retirement. 

6.4 Board and management 

(a) Board of Directors 

The following are the members of the Board of Directors of SPP: 

(i) Håkan Sandberg (Chairman); 

(ii) Yonnie Bergquist; 

(iii) Björn Bergman; 

(iv) Carl-Johan Tibblin; 

(v) Kerstin Wahlund; 

(vi) Ann-Kristin Jönsson; and 

(vii) Åke Danielsson. 

The following are members of the Board of Directors of Handelsbanken Life & Pension 
Limited: 

(i) Björn C. Andersson, chairman; 

(ii) Michael Zell; 

(iii) David Kingston; and 

(iv) Hans Hagman.  



 

 - 42 -  
 

The following are members of the Board of Directors of SPP Fonder AB: 

(i) Carl Hårleman, chairman; 

(ii) Fredrik Luhr; and 

(iii) Joachim Spetz. 

The following are members of the Board of Directors of Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB: 

(i) Bo Frogner, chairman; 

(ii) Anders Blennå; and 

(iii) Birgitta Månsson. 

The following are members of the Board of Directors of Nordben Life & Pension Insurance Co. 
Ltd 

(i) Björn C. Andersson, chairman; 

(ii) Paul Cutter; 

(iii) Ian Morris; 

(iv) Arve Myrvang; 

(v) Petri Niemisvirta; and 

(vi) Michael Zell. 

(b) Management 

The following are the Management of SPP: 

(i) Göran Holgerson; 

(ii) Jan Larsson; 

(iii) Pehr Wissén; 

(iv) Björn G. Olofsson; 

(v) Bo Frogner; 

(vi) Gun Ternstedt; and 

(vii) Gunnar Brännstam. 

Kenth Eldebrink is a member of Management of Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited. 

There are no members of Management of SPP Fonder AB. 

There are no members of Management of Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB 

Paul Cutter is a member of Management of Nordben Life & Pension Insurance Co. Ltd 

(c) Employees 

There are currently approximately 440 employees employed by SPP.  There are no employees 
employed by SPP's subsidiaries.  Furthermore, there are no employees employed by SPP 
Fonder AB or Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB.  In Nordben the average number of persons 
including executive directors and part time employees employed by the company during 2006 
was 33.  Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited had during 2006 an average of 5 employees.  
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Approximately 160 employees formerly employed by Handelsbanken also work in staff and IT 
functions for SSP. 

6.5 Market summary 

The Swedish life insurance and pensions market 

The Swedish life insurance and pensions market is characterised by the ability to provide a one stop 
shop capability for all the pension needs of customers, giving it a strong competitive advantage over 
other markets.  

Industry dynamics and growth 

The Swedish life insurance market has historically enjoyed strong growth, a trend which is currently 
expected to continue.  In the past 20 years, changes in the regulatory framework and high wage growth 
were the main drivers of an average annual 10 per cent. growth this industry experienced.  Growth is 
likely to remain strong as these key growth drivers remain.  As a result, the occupational pensions 
market is likely to form an increasing share of the Swedish life insurance market (from 35 per cent. of 
total life insurance in 2000 to 61 per cent. in 2006).  In addition, occupational pensions have seen more 
stable growth than other segments, which have shown greater sensitivity to financial markets, tax and 
other factors. 

As the pensions market becomes more complex, the full knowledge of all sectors that Swedish insurance 
firms operate in is expected to provide scope for increasing market share.  The key competitors in this 
market include Skandia, SEB TL, Alecta, AMF, Folskam-KPA and Länsförsäkringar.  SPP is the only 
player active in all segments of the Swedish occupational pensions market. 

Outlook 

Looking forward, there appear to be growth opportunities in the Swedish life insurance market, as a 
result of the shifts in the market following the demutualisation phase.  The competitive occupational 
pensions market continues to grow and pension transfer rights will become standard, driving product 
development and pricing.  Furthermore, the increased size of the Swedish municipalities market (SEK 
300 billion), together with the new Solvency II regulations leading to increased consumer protection 
should provide new growth prospects. 

Additionally, unit linked business is expected to increase, as unit linked solutions continue to increase in 
volume and relative share and the market is generally appreciative of and willing to pay extra for 
tailored solutions.  In the future, a separation of mass market and advisory markets is expected.  The 
mass market products are currently putting pressure on pricing, whereas the advisory market continues 
to be significant, with sustained profitability.  Lastly, the Swedish market should come to expect 
individually driven and defined contribution plans, taking as an example the new ITP-election central 
system is fully defined contribution. 

6.6 Selected financial information 

The tables below show selected financial information for SPP Livförsäkring AB and Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), as at the dates and for the years indicates, extracted from 
their accounts. In SPP Fonder AB the activities were transferred to Handelsbanken Fonder AB from 2 
October 2006. At year end there is no activity in this company. For information purposes the historical 
figures for SPP Fonder AB has no relevance in the transaction. 

Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB is the owner of the trademark SPP but otherwise does not engage in 
other business activities. For information purposes historical figures for this company is not relevant 
based on the preliminary purchase price allocation ("PPA") performed in accordance with the 
acquisition.  

SPP was demutualised in 2006. The demutualised traditional life insurance operations in SPP have been 
carried out in the same company as the unit-linked operations since 1 January 2006. It is not possible to 
recalculate the comparative figures for 2005 and 2004 in order to show how the traditional mutual 
operations would have performed if the company had been demutualised at this time.  
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6.5.1 SPP Livförsäkring AB 

Profit & loss and balance sheet 

 
For the six months ended 30 

June (unaudited) 

For the year 
ended 31 

December 

SEK Million 2007 2006 2006 

Financial result ...........................................................................................  -3 1,426 1,578 
Risk result ...................................................................................................  128 213 353 
Administration result ..................................................................................  63 -12 42 
Other ...........................................................................................................  148 3 244 

Profit before tax ........................................................................................  336 1,630 2,217 
Tax ..............................................................................................................  185 (-45) (-46) 

Profit/Loss for the period.........................................................................  521 1,585 2,171 

Intangible assets..........................................................................................  859 893 876 
Investment assets ........................................................................................  91,297 89,435 112,732 
Investments for which policyholders bear the investment.........................  30,954 23,454 26,864 
Other assets .................................................................................................  16,159 10,773 4,068 

Total assets ................................................................................................  139,269 124,555 144,540 

Equity..........................................................................................................  8,550 9,614 10,200 
Subordinated loan capital ...........................................................................  1,600 1,600 1,600 
Technical provisions gross of reinsurance .................................................  69,381 67,563 71,504 
Conditional bonus.......................................................................................  16,556 14,084 14,334 
Technical provisions Unit-linked commitments ........................................  30,954 23,454 26,864 
Other allocations and liabilities ..................................................................  12,228 8,240 20,038 

Total liabilities and equity capital...........................................................  139,269 124,555 144,540 

 

Key figuresSEK million 
For the six months ended 

30 June 

 2007 2006 

Financial result........................................................................................................................  1 2 
Risk result ...............................................................................................................................  (1) 0 
Administration result ..............................................................................................................  11 7 
Other........................................................................................................................................  13 4 

Profit before tax ....................................................................................................................  24 12 
Financial assets at far value through profit or loss .................................................................  14,969 4,523 
Other assets .............................................................................................................................  381 65 

Total assets.............................................................................................................................  15,350 4,588 
Shareholders funs....................................................................................................................  541 249 
Technical provisions for policies where the investment ........................................................  14.752 4.312 
Other allocations and liabilities ..............................................................................................  57 27 

Total liabilities .......................................................................................................................  15,350 4,588 

  

 
For the six months ended 

30 June (unaudited) For the year 31 December 

SEK million 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004 

Premium incl. Reserves transferred      
Guaranteed yield and risk insurance.................. 2,199 2,132 4,416 4,406 4,790 
Unit-Linked insurance23..................................... 1,779 1,742 3,124  1,815 
Total................................................................... 3,978 3,874 7,540 4,406 6,605 
      
Asset under management ...................................      
Guaranteed yield and risk insurance.................. 85,937 81,647 85,434 83,073 79,369 
Unit-Linked insurance24..................................... 30,954 23,454 26,864   

                                                           

23  SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB is not included in the above figures for the period 1 July 2004 to 31 December 2005, as the 
company was owned by Handelsbanken Liv during that time. 

24    Source quarterly Internal reporting to Handelsbanken. 
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For the six months ended 

30 June (unaudited) For the year 31 December 

SEK million 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004 

Total................................................................... 116,891 105,101 112,298 83,073 79,369 

Total yield, %..................................................... 2.15% 0.17% 6.80% 6.60% 5.99% 

  

6.6.2 Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben Life & Pension Limited) 

Profit & loss and balance sheet 

SEK thousand For the year 31 December 

 2006 2005 2004 

Balance on technical account - life assurance business 35,633 17,624 3,169 
Administrative expenses .............................................................................  -654 -664 -540 
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation..........................................  34,979 16,960 2,629 
Tax on profit on ordinary activities ............................................................  -6,472 -6,194 -4,645 
Profit for the year......................................................................................  28,507 10,766 -2,016 
    
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss....................................  5,469,665 3,429,203 1,597,371 
Other assets .................................................................................................  73,128 151,361 363,267 
Total assets.................................................................................................  5,542,793 3,580,564 1,960,638 
Shareholders fund .......................................................................................  310,620 236,180 125,414 
Technical provisions for policies where the investment ............................  5,163,183 3,316,707 1,296,679 
Other allocations and liabilities ..................................................................  68,990 27,677 538,545 

Total liabilities ...........................................................................................  5,542,793 3,580,564 1,960,638 

 
Half year figures 

SEK million 
For the six months ended 30 

June (unaudited) 

 2007 2006 

Financial result 1 2 
Risk result -1 0 
Administration result 11 7 
Other 13 7 

Profit before tax 24 12 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 14,969 4,523 
Other 381 65 

Total assets 15,350 4,588 

Shareholders fund 541 249 
Technical provisions for policies where the investment 14,752 4,312 
Other allocations and liabilities 57 27 

Total liabilities 15,350 4,588 

 

6.6.3 Trend information 

SPP has not experienced any changes or shifts in trends outside SPP's ordinary activities that have influenced 
SPP in any significant manner from 31 December 2006 to the date of this Information Memorandum. 
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6.7 Legal and arbitration proceedings 

Save as set out below, SPP is not involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings 
(including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which SPP is aware) which may 
have significant effects on SPP's financial position or profitability, nor has SPP been involved in any 
such proceedings during the last 12 months. 

There are two potential disputes relating to SPP and SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB, for which the said 
companies have set up reserves in their accounts amounting to SEK 208,400,000. 

6.8 Material contracts 

(a) Shareholder Loan Agreements 

In August 2002 SPP entered into two shareholder loan agreements with Handelsbanken, one 
providing a loan of SEK 600 million and the other providing a SEK 1 billion loan (each an 
"SPP Shareholder Loan Agreement").  The terms of the SPP Shareholder Loan Agreements 
are identical.  Permission was given by the Swedish FSA to include the loans under the 
Shareholder Loan Agreements in the capital base of SPP and SPP was granted an exception 
from the statutory restriction on borrowing (Swedish: upplåningsbegränsningen i 5 Kap 1 § 
andra st. försäkringsrörelselagen). Exception from the restriction on borrowing was not granted 
on the grounds stated in SPP’s application, as the loan were considered insignificant (Swedish: 
ringa), however the exception was granted by the Swedish FSA for other reasons.  The loans 
under the Shareholder Loan Agreements were borrowed to strengthen the capital base of SPP. 

(b) Shareholders' Agreement 

In order to regulate the joint ownership of Nordben, SPP (as holder of 50 per cent. of the share 
capital and votes), Storebrand Livsforsikring AS (25 per cent. holder), Sampo Life Insurance 
Company (15 per cent. holder) and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company (10 per cent. 
holder) entered into a shareholders’ agreement (the "SPP Shareholders' Agreement") on 28 
April 2004.  Pursuant to the SPP Shareholders' Agreement, SPP is entitled to appoint two 
members to the board of Nordben; Storebrand is entitled to appoint one board member and 
Sampo and Varma are entitled to jointly appoint one board member. SPP also has the right to 
appoint the chairman of the board of Nordben. The SPP Shareholders' Agreement requires 
Nordben to provide a reasonable dividend to the shareholders. The SPP Shareholders' 
Agreement further states that a unanimous decision of the shareholders is required for: (i) 
amendments to the memorandum and articles of association; (ii) a substantial change of the 
business of Nordben; (iii) change in, or payment of unpaid, share capital; and (iv) appointment 
or removal of the CEO. Shares of Nordben held by any shareholder may be transferred to an 
associate company of such shareholder and any new shareholders must adhere to the SPP 
Shareholders' Agreement. The SPP Shareholders' Agreement does not contain any change of 
control provision. 
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7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

7.1 Historical financial information on Storebrand ASA and summary of accounting policies 

The historical consolidated financial information for the Company is prepared according to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The Company's audited annual reports for 2004, 2005 and 2006, including an overview of the 
Company's accounting policy, explanatory notes and auditor's statement are incorporated by reference 
(see section 8.3 below).   

7.2 Auditing of historical annual information 

Deloitte AS has audited the annual financial statements for the Company during the period covered by 
the historical financial information without any qualifications or disclaimers. Deloitte AS has issued 
review reports on the interim financial statements for the periods ended 31 March and 30 June 2007 
without any qualifications or disclaimers.  

There is no other information in the Information Memorandum which has been audited by the uditors, 
provided however, that the annual accounts for SPP Livforsäkring AB and Handelsbanken Life & 
Pension Limited have been audited by KPMG.  

7.3 Interim financial information 

The Company has released financial information for the first and second quarter of 2007 with 
comparative statements for the first and second quarter of 2006.  This financial information has not been 
audited, but Deloitte has reviewed the information for 2007.  The Company's first and second quarter 
2007 Interim Reports are incorporated by reference (see section 8.3 below). 

There has not been any significant change in the financial or trading position of the Company since 
30 June 2007 and to the date of this Information Memorandum, expect for those related to the 
acquisition of SPP which are described in this Information Memorandum. 

7.4 Unaudited pro forma financial information related to the Acquisition 

7.4.1 General information and purpose of the unaudited pro forma consolidated accounts 

On 3 September 2007, Storebrand Livsforsikring AS ("Storebrand Liv") entered into an 
agreement with Handelsbanken (dated 2 September 2007) for the acquisition of (i) SPP, and 
thereby indirectly in addition to the existing subsidiaries of SPP, (ii) Handelsbanken Life & 
Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), (iii) SPP Fonder AB, (iv) Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB 
and (v) 50 per cent. of the preference shares in Nordben for a total cash consideration of SEK 
18.0 billion (EUR 1.9 billion).  Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben), 
SPP Fonder AB, Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB and 50 per cent of the preference shares in 
Nordben are currently not part of SPP Livförsäkring AB, but will be transferred to SPP 
Livförsäkring AB as part of the Transaction.  In addition, the asset management of the assets in 
the entities to be acquired, which is currently performed by Handelsbanken Asset Management, 
is also part of the transaction. SPP Livförsäkring AB including the other companies and 
activities comprised by the Transaction will in this section 7.4 be referred to as the "SPP 
Business".The unaudited pro forma consolidated accounts have been prepared for Storebrand 
ASA in connection with the acquisition of the SPP Business as if they had been operating as 
one unit for the year ended 31 December 2006, and for first six months ended 30 June 2007. 

The pro forma financial information is based on certain assumptions that would not necessarily 
have been applicable if Storebrand and SPP Business were one group from the beginning of the 
periods presented in the pro forma financial information.  

The information is prepared solely for guidance, and describes a hypothetical situation. The pro 
forma consolidated accounts therefore do not reflect the Enlarged Group’s actual financial 
position and results. The pro forma information must not be considered final or complete, and 
may be amended in the prospectuses which are to be prepared as well as in future publication of 
accounts etc. The pro forma information has not been audited.   
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The pro forma consolidated financial information does not include all of the information 
required for financial statements under IFRS, and should be read in conjunction with the 
consolidated financial statements of Storebrand ASA, SPP Livförsäkring AB and the financial 
statements of the remaining companies comprising the SPP Business. The pro forma 
consolidated financial information does not represent the actual combination of the financial 
statements of Storebrand and the SPP Business in accordance with IFRS, since certain 
simplifications and uncertain estimates and assumptions have been made as set out in the 
subsequent sections.  

7.4.2 Basis for preparation 

The historical consolidated financial statements for Storebrand are for the period from the 
financial year beginning 1 January 2005 prepared in accordance with IFRS principles approved 
by the EU.    

The consolidated financial statements of SPP Livförsäkring AB have been prepared in 
accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Companies (ÅRLF) and the 
instructions and general guidelines regarding the annual accounts of insurance companies 
issued by the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority (FFFS 2005:34). FFFS 2005:34 implies 
that the Swedish Accounting Standards Board’s recommendation no. 32 and international 
accounting standards have been applied, with certain limitations (statutory IFRS). The financial 
statements for the related companies and activities of SPP Livförsäkring AB included in the 
Transaction have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Ireland or Sweden.  

The unaudited pro forma consolidated accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 
are prepared based on the compilation of the audited consolidated financial statements of 
Storebrand, SPP Livförsäkring AB and the financial statements for the remaining companies 
comprising the SPP Business. The unaudited pro forma consolidated accounts for the six 
months period ended 30 June 2007 are prepared based on the compilation of the unaudited 
consolidated financial statements of Storebrand ASA, SPP Livförsäkring AB and the financial 
statements for the remaining companies comprising the SPP Business.  

The pro forma consolidated accounts are prepared on the basis of the IFRS accounting 
principles applied by Storebrand. Material known differences between the accounting principles 
applied by the SPP Business and those adopted by Storebrand are adjusted in the preparation of 
the pro forma consolidated financial statements. Identified differences are disclosed in the 
accompanying notes to the pro forma statements. A final IFRS conversion has not been 
prepared as only limited time and information has been available in the preparation of the pro 
forma consolidated accounts. A complete IFRS conversion might have resulted in alternative 
considerations and adjustments related to material differences to IFRS. 

7.4.3 Pro forma consolidated financial statements 

The pro forma profit and loss accounts for the Enlarged Group for the financial year ended 31 
December and for the first six months ending 30 June 2007, as well as the pro forma balance 
sheet as at 30 June 2007 are displayed below. The pro forma consolidated profit and loss 
accounts indicate how the results of operations might have looked had the acquisition of the 
SPP Business been completed as at 1 January 2006, including asset management which will 
continue to be conducted by Handelsbanken for a period of 12 months after completion of the 
Transaction. The pro forma balance sheet at 30 June 2007 indicates how the balance sheet 
might have looked had the acquisition of the SPP Business been completed as at 30 June 2007. 
The information is prepared solely for guidance, and describes a hypothetical situation. The pro 
forma consolidated accounts therefore do not reflect the Enlarged Group’s actual financial 
position and results.  

Official currency rates from Norges Bank (Norwegian Central Bank) have been utilized when 
preparing the pro forma profit and loss accounts and balance sheet. The profit and loss accounts 
are based on average rates and the balance sheet is based on the daily rate at the relevant point 
in time. 
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The following exchange ratios from the Norwegian Central Bank have been used: 

 
As of 

30.06.2007 

First six 
months 

2007 
As of 

31.12-2006 Year 2006 

NOK / SEK........................................................ 86.17 88.23 91.12 87.02 
 

The pro forma adjustments are merely direct effects caused by the acquisition of SPP Business. 
The pro forma adjustments are described below.  

7.4.3.1 Unaudited pro forma condensed profit and loss statement and balance sheet 

Unaudited pro forma condensed profit and loss account for the six months ended 30 June 2007 

NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 

Pro forma 
SPP 

Business25 
Pro forma 
adjustment Note 

Pro Forma 
Enlarged 

Group 

Net premiums – insurance ...................................  10,733 4,338 110 11 15,181 
Interests income ...................................................  194    194 
Financial income..................................................  7,957 3,502 -49 11 11,410 
Other income........................................................  477 228   705 

Operating income...............................................  19,361 8,068 61  27,490 

Insurance benefits, reserve allocations ................  -13,207 -7,091 -40 11 -20,338 
Interests costs .......................................................  -127 -38 -154 6 -319 
Loan losses - banking ..........................................  49    49 
Operating expenses ..............................................  -1,263 -476 57 8, 9, 11 -1,682 
Amortisation intangible assets.............................    -242 1, 2, 3 -242 
Other costs ...........................................................  -61 -98   -159 

Costs and expenses.............................................  -14,608 -7,704 -379  -22,690 

To (from) market price adjustment reserve .........  -619    -619 

Operating Profit .................................................  4,135 364 -318  4,181 

Fund allocated to policyholders - life insurance .  -3,148    -3,148 

Group profit/loss ................................................  987 364 -318  1,033 

Changes in security reserves etc. - non life insurance  3    3 

Pre-tax result ......................................................  990 364 -318  1,036 

Tax .......................................................................  -42 149 33 4,10 140 

Profit/loss ............................................................  948 513 -285  1,176 

 

                                                           
25  See section 7.4.4 for a specification of the figures. 
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Unaudited pro forma condensed profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2006 

NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 

Pro forma 
SPP 

Business26 
Pro forma 
adjustment Note 

Pro forma 
Enlarged 

Group 

Net premiums - insurance....................................  19,539 6,973 219 11 26,731 
Interests income ...................................................  419    419 
Financial income..................................................  13,186 6,480 -124 11 19,542 
Other income........................................................  931 413   1,344 

Operating income...............................................  34,075 13,866 96  48,037 

Insurance benefits, reserve allocations ................  -23,732 -10,613 -80 11 -34,426 
Interests costs .......................................................  -213 -66 -269 6 -548 
Loan losses - banking ..........................................  47    47 
Operating expenses ..............................................  -2,521 -936 137 8, 9, 11 -3.320 
Amortisation intangible assets.............................    -477 1, 2, 3 -477 
Other costs ...........................................................  -80 -247   -327 

Costs and expenses.............................................  -26,498 -11,862 -690  -39,050 

To (from) market price adjustment reserve .........  -2,027    -2,027 

Operating Profit .................................................  5,549 2,004 -594  6,959 

Fund allocated to policyholders - life insurance .  -3,964    -3,964 

Group profit/loss ................................................  1,585 2,004 -594  6,959 

Changes in security reserves etc. - non life insurance  0    0 

Pre-tax result ......................................................  1,585 2,004 -594  2,995 

Tax .......................................................................  -79 -61 37 4, 10 -103 

Profit/loss ............................................................  1,506 1,943 -557  2,892 

 
Pro forma unaudited condensed balance sheet as of 30 June 2007 

NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 

Pro forma 
SPP 

Business27 
Pro forma 
adjustment Note  

Pro forma 
Enlarged 

Group 

Intangible assets..........................................................  730 2,688 7,102 1, 2 10,520 
Shares in associated companies ..................................  238 112 -191 11 159 
Loans...........................................................................  36,966    36,966 
Bonds held to maturity................................................  41,259    41,259 
Real estate at market value .........................................  18,336 134   18,470 
Financial assets at market value .................................  113,927 113,646 6,302 11 233,874 
Bank deposits ..............................................................  11,301 11,471 -750 5 22,022 
Other assets .................................................................  10,274 2,642 848 11 13,765 

Total assets.................................................................  233,031 130,694 13,310  377,035 

Equity ..........................................................................  9,341 8,867 1,664 7 19,871 
Subordinated loan capital ...........................................  3,778 1,379 4,624 6 9,781 
Market value adjustment reserve................................  6,508    6,508 
Technical reserves.......................................................  161,438 109,086 5,372 11 275,896 
Liabilities to financial institutions ..............................  22,126    22,126 
Deposits from and liabilities to customers .................  15,386    15,386 
Derivatives ..................................................................  2,023 1,435   3,458 
Other allocations and liabilities ..................................  12,431 9,927 1,651 2, 4, 11 24,009 

Total liabilities and equity capital...........................  233,031 130,694 13,310  377,035 

 

                                                           

26  See section 7.4.4 for a specification of the figures 

27  See section 7.4.4 for a specification of the figures 
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7.4.3.2  Pro forma adjustments 

The accompanying notes to the pro forma accounts, describe the pro forma adjustments made.   

Purchase accounting  

A final purchase price allocation ("PPA") has not been prepared as only limited information and time 
has been available. However, a preliminary PPA has been prepared identifying assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities. The PPA in the unaudited pro forma financial information is based on the 30 June 
2007 balance sheet of the SPP Business. The final purchase price allocation may vary from the one 
which is presented in the pro forma information.  

In addition, the pro forma financial information has been prepared on the following basis: 

The consideration related to the acquisition of the SPP Business amount to SEK 18 billion, converted 
into NOK 15.5 billion based on exchange rates as at 30 June 2007, with additional NOK 330 million in 
transactions costs. Total acquisition costs will therefore amount to NOK 15.8 billion. An additional 
issuance cost of NOK 420 million related to the Rights Issue will be deducted from equity. The excess - 
value analysis is based on currency exchange rates from Norges Bank (Norwegian Central Bank) at 30 
June 2007.  

Identified excess value 

Estimated 
amortisation 

period NOK million  

Goodwill..................................................................................................  1,142  
Value of business in force (VIF)............................................................. 20 7,480  
Other intangible assets ............................................................................ 10 986  
Total excess value ...................................................................................  9,608  
Intangible assets recognised in Storebrand ASA Group ........................  730  
Other intangible assets in the SPP Business……………………………….  182  
Total intangible assets in Enlarged Group..............................................  10,520  
    

Further discussion of the various items and its related amortization period follows. 

1. The insurance liabilities acquired have been individually incorporated as liabilities in the pro forma 
accounts at values equal to the recorded values as set out in the accounts of the SPP Business. The 
estimated fair value of the acquired insurance liabilities is significantly lower than the booked 
value. The difference between the booked value and the fair value represents the so-called “value of 
business in-force” ("VIF"). The VIF, NOK 7.5 billion, is classified as an intangible asset. Based on 
the estimated life of the insurance contracts, VIF will be amortized over a period of about 20 years. 
The intangible value will be considered in connection with related insurance contracts, with the 
result that the total values are sufficient to meet the related insurance commitments, according to 
IFRS 4, liability adequacy test insurance contracts.  

2. Acquired intangible assets in addition to VIF represents goodwill of NOK 1,142 million and other 
intangible assets in the form of, for example, the brand name and customer lists amounting to NOK 
986 million. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment testing. Other intangible 
assets have an estimated lifetime of 10 years and will be amortized over this period. 

3. Total amortization amounts to NOK 478 million in 2006, of which NOK 378 million represents 
amortization of VIF and NOK 100 million represents amortization of other intangible assets. For 
the first half of 2007 total amortization amounted to NOK 242 million of which NOK 191 million 
represents amortization of VIF and NOK 50 million represents amortization of other intangible 
assets.  

4. Deferred tax on temporary differences arising from the acquisition of the SPP Business is 
calculated, based on a nominal tax rate of 28 per cent.. Due to the tax treatment of life insurance 
businesses in Sweden, only approximately 10 per cent. of the cash flows from the VIF are 
considered to create taxable income.  
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Financing of the Transaction 

Storebrand will finance the acquisition of the SPP Business of SEK 18 billion equivalent to NOK 15.5 
billion based on exchange rates as at 30 June 2007 and transaction costs of NOK 0.33 billion as 
follows:28 

5. Rights issue of NOK 10.7 billion with issue costs of NOK 0.42 billion reducing equity directly.  

 NOK billion 

Purchase price........................................................................ 15.5 
Transaction costs ................................................................... 0.3 
Total purchase price............................................................... 15.8 
Financing:  
Right Issue (10.7-0.42) .......................................................... 10.3 
Exchange rate differences29 ................................................... 0.2 
Subordinated debt .................................................................. 4.6 
Use of excisting funds ........................................................... 0.7 
 

6. Issuance of subordinated debt of EUR 580 million, equivalent to NOK 4.6 billion, and use of 
existing funds of NOK 0.75 billion. The pro forma accounts assume increased interest costs on new 
debt issued. The interest rate is based on market conditions as at 31 August 2007, but adjusted for 
the actual 10 year mid swap for the respective pro forma periods. The effective interest rate used on 
the subordinated loan will be 5 per cent. - 6 per cent. for the pro forma periods. Total interest 
expense amounts to NOK 269 million in 2006 and NOK 154 million  for the first half of 2007.  

Conversion of the subordinated debt is based on currency exchange rates of NOK / EUR 7.97, from 
Norges Bank (Norwegian Central Bank) as at 30 June 2007.  

7. Pro forma equity adjustments are made up of the following: 

 NOK million  

Rights Issue............................................................................  10,700 Note 5 
Rights issue expenses ............................................................  (420) Note 5 
Exchange rate differences30 ...................................................  187  
Capital increase Storebrand ASA..........................................  10,467  
   
Group elimination..................................................................  (8,867)  
Minority interest Nordben .....................................................  64 Note 11 
Net pro forma adjustments ....................................................  1,664  

 
Other pro forma adjustments: 

8. Amortization of recorded intangible assets in the SPP Business is reversed with NOK 164 million in 
the year ended 31 December 2006 and NOK 83 million in the first year 2007 respectively. The 
items are included under operating expense in the profit and loss accounts, see note 9 below. 
Related tax effects are reversed. 

9. It is expected that the SPP Business will buy an increased amount of services from third parties 
compared with previous periods. These services will, to a large extent, be charged with VAT 
resulting in increased operating expenses estimated at NOK 11 million and NOK 6 million in the 
year ended 31 December 2006 and the first half of 2007. Such adjustments are included in 

                                                           
28  Based on a purchase price amounting to SEK 18 billion, note that purchase price will be reduced to SEK 16 billion subject to 

(i) the acquisition of certain entities included in the Transaction by SPP Livförsäkring AB and (ii) the payment of a special 
dividend from SPP to Handelsbanken prior to completion of the Transaction.  The special dividend is subject to Swedish FSA 
approval.  If the purchase price is reduced by SEK 2 billion, the Rights Issue will be reduced by a corresponding amount 

29  In the consolidated pro forma accounts the acquisition price of SEK 18 billion is translated to NOK using the currency rate at 
30 June 2007. In other parts of the information memorandum currency rate at 31 August 2007 have been used 

30  In the consolidated pro forma accounts the acquisition price of SEK 18 billion is translated to NOK using the currency rate at 
30 June 2007. In other parts of the information memorandum currency rate at 31 August 2007 have been used. 
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“Operating expenses” in the profit and loss accounts, see note 8 above. In the pro forma accounts 
there has been made no adjustments for any IT separation expenses (“one-offs”). 

10. The SPP Business is expected be acquired by a wholly owned subsidiary of Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS, Storebrand Holding AB. The equity/debt-ratio in the new legal structure is not 
finalised and will have an impact on the tax postion. In the pro forma accounts it is assumed that 
taxable income within the SPP Business will partly be offset by deductible interest expences.  

11. Nordben Life and Pension Insurance Co. Ltd. is 50 per cent. owned by SPP Livförsäkring AB and 
25 per cent. owned by Storebrand Livsforsikring AS prior to the Transaction. Nordben is recorded 
based on the equity method in both SPP and Storebrand Livsforsikring AS. Storebrand 
Livsforsikring AS will own a total of 75 per cent. of Nordben Life and Pension Insurance Co. Ltd. 
after the Transaction. In the pro forma accounts, Nordben is consolidated, and minority interests are 
classified under equity.    

All of the adjustments listed above (note 1 – 11) will also apply for, and impact, the financial statements 
going forward. 

7.4.4 Pro forma adjustments to the SPP Business  

A specification of the SPP column in the Storebrand pro forma accounts is shown below. 
Historical financial information for the entities included in the specification, are based on actual 
financial information. However, premium income has been reclassified in accordance with 
Storebrand’s presentation in Profit and Loss, thereby presenting gross premiums (mainly 
savings element of the premium) over the profit and loss account. In addition, 28 per cent. of 
untaxed reserves in Handelsbanken Varumärkes AB are reclassified to deferred tax. 

The columns titled ”Pro forma Adjustment” in the tables below, represent corrections to the 
actual numbers of the various SPP entities to indicate how the SPP Business would appear if the 
transactions had occurred on 1 January 2006 including asset managementwhich will continue to 
be conducted by Handelsbanken for a period of 12 months after completion of the Transaction. 
The information is solely developed for guiding purposes, describing a hypothetical situation 
and does not reflect the SPP’s actual financial position or results of operations. 

Pro forma adjustments are merely developed as a direct effect of the acquisition itself. Pro 
forma adjustments are specifically described below.  

Unaudited condensed profit and loss account for the SPP Business for the six months ended 30 
June 2007  

NOK million SPP 

Handelsbanken 
Varumärkes 

AB 

 
Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension 

Ltd. 

SPP 
Fonder 

AB 

Pro forma 

Adjustment Note 

Pro 
forma 

SPP 
Business 

Net premiums - 
insurance ............................ 3,510  1,623  -795 2 4,338 
Financial income................ 3,522  363  -383 2 3,502 
Other income ..................... 111 0 6  111 3, 4 228 

Operating income ............ 7,143 0 1,992  -1,067  8,068 

Insurance benefits, 
reserve allocations ............. -6,316  -1,943  1,168 2 -7,091 
Interests costs..................... -38 0     -38 
Operating expense ............. -461  -27  12 2, 4 -476 
Other costs ......................... -31 -66 -1    -98 

Costs and expenses........... -6,846 -66 -1,971  1,180  -7,704 

Group profit/loss.............. 297 -66 21  113  364 

Tax ..................................... 163 19 0  -33 3 149 

Profit/loss .......................... 460 -48 21  80  513 
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Unaudited condensed profit and loss account for the SPP Business for the year ended 
31 December 2006  

NOK million SPP 

Handelsbanken 
Varumärkes 

AB 

 
Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension 

Ltd. 

SPP 
Fonder 

AB 

Pro forma  

Adjustment Note 

Pro 
forma 

SPP 
Business 

Net premiums - 
insurance ............................ 6,425  1,780  -1,231 2 6,973 
Financial income................ 6,434  401  -355 2 6,480 
Other income ..................... 199 1 2 90 123 3, 4 413 

Operating income ............ 13,058 1 2,182 90 -1,464  13,866 

Insurance benefits, 
reserve allocations ............. -10,043  -2,127  1,557 2 -10,613 
Interests costs..................... -62 -3     -66 
Operating expense ............. -913 0 -26 -13 16 2, 4 -936 
Other costs ......................... -109 -137 -1    -247 

Costs and expenses........... -11,128 -140 -2,155 -13 1,573  -11,862 

Group profit/loss.............. 1,930 -140 28 77 109  2,004 

Tax ..................................... -40 37 0 -22 -36 3 -61 

Profit/loss .......................... 1,890 -102 27 55 73  1,943 

 

Unaudited condensed balance sheet for the SPP Business as of 30 June 2007  

NOK million SPP 
Handelsbanken 

Varumärkes 

 
Handelsbanken 
Life & Pension 

Ltd. 

SPP 
Fonder 

AB 
Pro forma 

Adjustment Note 

Pro 
forma 

SPP 
Business 

Intangible assets.....................  911 1,777     2,688 
Shares in associated 
companies ..............................  112      112 
Rates estate at market value ..  134      134 
Financial assets at market 
value.......................................  105.098  12,899  -4,350 2 113,646 
Bank deposits.........................  11,225 21 215 10   11,471 
Other assets ............................  2,529  114    2,642 

Total assets ...........................  120,008 1,798 13,227 10 -4,350  130,694 

Equity.....................................  7,368 1,272 466 10 -249 1,2 8,867 
Subordinated loan capital ......  1,379      1,379 
Technical reserves .................  100,725  12,712  -4,350 2 109,086 
Derivatives .............................  1,426  9    1,435 
Other allocations and 
liabilities ................................  9,111 526 40 1 249 1,2 9,927 

Total liabilities and equity 
capital ....................................  120,008 1,798 13,227 10 -4,350  130,694 

 

1. The pro forma consolidated accounts are prepared on the basis of the IFRS accounting principles 
applied by Storebrand. Material known differences between the accounting principles applied by 
the SPP Business and Storebrand are adjusted in the preparation of the pro forma consolidated 
financial statements. The only identified differences relate to pensions, giving an increased pension 
liability as at 30 June 2007 of NOK 246 million. 

2. According to the agreement with Handelsbanken, the Unit Link business in Handelsbanken Life & 
Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) will be retained by Handelsbanken and spun off from 
Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited.  This results in a net profit and loss account effect of NOK 
4 million in the first half of 2007 and NOK 19 million in 2006 and a reduction of assets and 
liabilities of NOK 4.35 billion for the six months ended 30 June 2007. 

3. Handelsbanken will continue to manage SPP’s investment assets until 1 January 2009. However, 
the pro forma accounts are based on the assumption that the investment assets are managed by the 
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acquired business from 1 January 2006. The net asset management profit relating to SPP’s 
investment assets was for the year ended 31 December 2006 NOK 205 million, of which NOK 77 
million is already included in the SPP Fonder net result (the asset management activity was 
transferred from SPP Fonder AB to Handelsbanken Fonder AB from 2 October 2006). The pro 
forma adjustment is thereby NOK 128 million pre tax. The net asset management result relating to 
SPP investment assets was for the first half of 2007 NOK 116 million, which equals the pro forma 
adjustment. In addition, related tax effects are adjusted for. 

4. Some minor eliminating entries relating to internal transactions within SPP are included as pro 
forma adjustments. None of these have net result effects.  

7.5 Auditor’s report 

Deloitte’s Assurance Report on the pro forma financial information in section 7.4 is attached in 
Appendix 5 to this Information Memorandum. 

7.6 Other financial information related to the Enlarged Group 

7.6.1 Profit and loss analysis per activities 

Unaudited pro forma profit and loss account of Storebrand Group for the six months ended 30 June 2007 

NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 
SPP 

Business 
Pro forma 

adjustments 

Pro forma 

Enlarged 
Group 

Financial results ............................................................................  3,955 1,564  5,519 
Risk result......................................................................................  198 112  310 
Administrasjon result ....................................................................  -252 46  -206 
Other..............................................................................................  -20 -55 -298 -372 
Funds allocated to policyholders —-life insurance ......................  -3,148 -1,420  -4,567 
     
Total life activities .......................................................................  734 248 -298 684 
Banking activities..........................................................................  134   134 
Asset management activities.........................................................  95 116  211 
Other activities ..............................................................................  27  -21 6 
Pre-tax result ...............................................................................  990 364 -318 1,036 
Tax.................................................................................................  -42 49 33 140 

Profit/loss for the period.............................................................  948 513 -285 1,176 

 

Unaudited pro forma profit and loss account of Storebrand Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 

NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 
SPP 

Business 
Pro forma 

adjustments 

Pro forma 

Enlarged 
Group 

Financial results ............................................................................  5,523 5,746  11,269 
Risk result......................................................................................  220 306  526 
Administration result.....................................................................  -551 3  -548 
Other..............................................................................................  -30 -128 -558 -716 
Funds allocated to policyholders —-life insurance ......................  -3,964 -4,128  -8,092 
     
Total life activities .......................................................................  1,198 1,800 -558 2,440 
Banking activities..........................................................................  190   190 
Asset management activities.........................................................  156 204  360 
Other activities ..............................................................................  41  -36 5 
Pre-tax result ...............................................................................  1,585 2,004 -594 2,995 
Tax.................................................................................................  -79 -61 37 -103 

Profit/loss for the period.............................................................  1,506 1,943 -557 2,892 

 
7.6.2 Estimated capital adequacy 

Unaudited pro forma Storebrand Group for the six months ended 30 June 2007 
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NOK million 
Storebrand 

Group 
SPP 

Business 
New 

Capital 
Pro forma 

adjustments 

Pro 
forma 

Enlarged 
Group 

Risk-weighted calculation base — hypothesis ........  112,336 64,557 15,841 -15,841 176893 
Core capital ..............................................................  8,200 16,878 10,467 -16,397 19,148 
Subordinated loan capital.........................................  3,637 1,379 4,624  9,640 
Net primary capital ................................................  11,837 18,257 15,091 -16,397 28,788 

Capital ratio in % .....................................................  10.5%    16.3% 

Capital ratio in % after dividend MSEK 2000 ........      15.3% 

 
The core capital includes 75 per cent. of conditional bonus (NOK 14.3 billion) from SPP Livförsäkring 
AB at 30 June 2007 

7.6.3 Solvency margin 

Unaudited pro forma Storebrand Life Group as at 30 June 2007 

NOK million 
Storebrand 
Life Group SPP 

Enlarged 
Group 

Solvency requirement ................................................................................................  6,417 3,091 9,508 
Solvency Capital ........................................................................................................  10,925 7,557 15,117 
Solvency Margin ........................................................................................................  170.2% 244.5% 159.0% 
Solvency Margin after SEK 2,000 million ................................................................    137.7% 

 

7.7 Normalised earnings 

Background and methodology 

The purpose of presenting normalised earnings is to show theoretical earnings in an average year for the 
companies and business being acquired (as they appeared in 2006 and the first half of 2007).  As for 
many life insurance companies, SPP’s earnings are impacted by capital markets developments and other 
factors which frequently cause reported numbers to differ from what can be expected under more 
normal market and operating conditions. Further, as a consequence of SPP’s demutualisation as of 1 
January 2006, there is limited historical performance data that can be used to develop a view of long-
term sustainable profitability. Additionally, the transaction involves additional activities and earnings 
that are currently not captured by the legal entity of SPP; notably this involves earnings from asset 
management which is currently reported as part of Handelsbanken Asset Management, and earnings 
from Euroben which are currently reported as part of other entities within the Handelsbanken Group. 
Handelsbanken will continue to manage SPP’s investments for the full year 2008 on existing terms; 
however in order to demonstrate the longer term earnings of the acquired business the incremental 
normalised earnings from the asset management is described as if contracts had been renegotiated on an 
arm’s length basis with third party asset managers. Additional earnings that are expected to accrue to 
Storebrand when the underlying assets are moved to Storebrand Asset Management, representing the 
‘arms’ length’ profit on such asset management, is not included here but shown separately as part of cost 
synergies.  Thus the impact of synergies estimated in this document are not included in the normalised 
earnings below. 

Going forward, SPP’s performance will continue to be impacted by capital markets and developments in 
the Enlarged Group's business and other factors which may cause reported numbers to differ from the 
numbers presented below (please see "Risk Factors" in section 2 above). Notably, the normalised 
earnings for 2007 will likely differ materially from those that actually will be reported for the year and 
should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. 

Earnings components 

To better illustrate how SPP’s earnings are generated table 2 below uses an alternative reporting format 
compared to IFRS, which shows the key actual earnings components for SPP together with the 
additional earnings expected from asset management 

Normalised assumptions and profit drivers 
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All numbers in section 7.7 are esimates and included in this Infomration Memorandum for illustration 
reasons only. These numbers are based on assumptions wich management believes to be reasonable. 
These numbers should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. 

(i) Administrative result 

Revenues 

Administrative revenues mainly consist of premium fees and capital fees, of which some are expected to 
be replaced by per policy fees going forward.  The aggregate earnings contribution from the advisory 
businesses (SPP Pensionstjänst and SPP Konsult) are currently negative as these businesses are in a 
build-up phase. As this is expected to be a temporary impact, the ‘normalised’ earnings for these 
businesses are assumed to be zero. Longer term, SPP believes these businesses will be important profit 
contributors. Total normalised administrative revenues are approximately SEK 800 million for 2006 and 
approximately SEK 420 million for the first half of 2007; the normalised numbers differ from actual 
numbers, amongst other reasons, due to rounding and the exclusion of the impact of SPP Pensionstjänst 
and SPP Konsult. 

Expenses 

Administrative expenses essentially reflect reported IFRS operating costs, and hence include acquisition 
and administrative expenses.  Expenses have been successfully reduced over a period of time and the 
current run rate is materially lower than the full year 2006 level. However, Storebrand expects to 
undertake certain initiatives as part of its plans to increase business volumes and improve the IT systems 
which are likely to cause additional acquisition and administrative expenses going forward. Economies 
of scale are expected to partly offset such cost increases. The normalised earnings anticipate an 
administrative expense ratio of approximately 90 per cent. which is broadly unchanged from current 
levels. 

Total normalised administrative expenses were thus approximately SEK 730 million for 2006 and 
approximately SEK 375 million for the first half of 2007 with the latter higher than reported due to 
longer-term expense ratio. On this basis, the normalised administrative result was approximately 
SEK 60 million in 2006 and approximately SEK 45 million for the first half of 2007. 

(ii) Risk result 

The risk result incorporates the result arising from mortality, morbidity and disability experience. The 
disability result is largely a separate product with premium income of approximately SEK 500 million.  
Mortality and morbidity premiums are largely part of premiums on pension contracts and are not 
reported as a separate business line. These premiums amount to approximately SEK 300 million in 
aggregate, resulting in aggregate risk premiums of approximately SEK 800 million. SPP’s risk result has 
been very positive historically reflecting both the impact of increasing interest rates which have resulted 
in releases from the part of the disability reserves that are subject to discounting, as well as unusually 
favourable claims. Going forward, SPP expects a claims ratio on disability business of 80-90 per cent.  
The risk result exclusively reflects risk premiums less claims; operating expenses relating to these 
earnings are part of administrative expenses and investment income relating to the risk result is reported 
as part of the financial result. The normalised risk result is thus approximately SEK 100 million per 
annum. 

(iii) Financial result 

The financial result consists of profit sharing applied to technical reserves of the traditional product and 
100 per cent. of investment income from claims reserves, net of discounting. The profit sharing consists 
of 10 per cent. of investment income net of investment management expenses, under the condition that 
guaranteed levels are met. Based on current market returns and asset composition, the normalised 
earnings are based on a weighted investment return of 5.5 per cent. net of investment management 
expenses, under the condition that guaranteed levels are met.  The profit sharing is thus expected to 
contribute a normalised approximately SEK 400 million per annum taking into consideration that full 
profit sharing will not materilize for reserveswith guaranteed rate of 5.2 per cent. rate.  An additional 
normalised approximately SEK 50 million is expected from assets representing claims reserves (net of 
discounting). 
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(iv) Additional asset management result 

The asset management result effectively represents the difference between retail and wholesale pricing 
of asset management services. Asset management margin does not currently arise in SPP, but will be 
available for Storebrand and SPP as of 2009 when asset management contracts can be negotiated in the 
open market.  In aggregate, the overall normalised margin amounts to approximately SEK 200 million 
per annum. This amount does not capture all earnings on asset management as third party fees are 
assumed paid on 100 per cent. of the assets and include a competitive profit margin. Storebrand 
anticipates managing the majority of the assets of SPP and its subsidiaries from 2009, and reports the 
additional profit element arising from the ‘insourcing’ of SPP’s asset management as part of the cost 
synergies arising from the transaction. 

(v) Other result 

The other result consists of three parts:  return on own capital, interest cost on subordinated loan and 
Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) result. Return on own capital represents the 
risk free rate on tangible shareholders’ equity, the deferred capital contribution and subordinated loan. 
This is calculated at 4.5 per cent. before tax, using the 10 year normalised government bond yield.  
Following an adjustment for the intended SEK 2 billion reduction in excess capital, this amounts to 
normalised earnings of approximately SEK 290 million in 2006 and approximately SEK 180 million for 
the first half of 2007. Interest cost on subordinated loan is calculated at 5.5 per cent. on SEK 1.6 billion, 
reflecting normalised twelve month STIBOR plus 200 basis points. This amounts to approximately SEK 
90 million per annum Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) has not been 
aggregated into this analysis on a line by line basis and is instead added as one line. The year end 2006 
earnings of Euroben were SEK 10 million and first half of 2007 earnings of Euroben were SEK 20 
million. 

(vi) Total result 

The net normalised earnings, before tax and amortisation, with the above assumptions are thus 
approximately SEK 1,010 million for 2006 and approximately SEK 580 for the first half of 2007. 

Table 2.1 

Normalised year ended 31 December 2006 

Normalised 2006 result (SEK million)  (NOK million) 

Pre-tax profit Revenue Expenses Profit  Revenue Expenses Profit 

Administration result ~800 ~730 ~60  ~670 ~620 ~50 

Risk result   ~100    ~80 

Financial result   ~450    ~370 

Asset management result  ~180    ~150 

Other result     ~220    ~180 

Total pre-tax profit   ~1,010    ~840 

 

Table 2.2 

Normalised six months ended 30 June 2007 

 (SEK million)  (NOK million) 

Pre-tax profit Revenue Expenses Profit  Revenue Expenses Profit 

Administration result ~420 ~375 ~45  ~355 ~315 ~35 

Risk result   ~50    ~40 

Financial result   ~230    ~190 

Asset management result  ~100    ~90 

Other result   ~150    ~130 

Total pre-tax profit   ~580    ~490 
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All numbers in tables 2.1 and 2.2 represent the mid-point of calculated ranges and rounded to nearest 10 
million, except for normalised administration result for the six months ended 30 June 2007 which is 
rounded to nearest 5 million.  An exchange rate of 0.84 has been applied for the purpose of displaying 
figures in NOK. 

7.8 SPP market consistent embedded value 

The embedded value of a life insurance business is an estimate of the value of both its net assets and the 
income stream expected from policies already in force.  The basic formula for calculating embedded 
value is 

E = PV + NAV 

where E is the embedded value, PV is the present value of future cash flows on policies already in force 
and NAV is the company's shareholders surplus or net asset value (the total value of a company's assets 
less the total value of its liabilities) with investments valued at market value.  

The future cash flows do not include the value of policies that the company will sell in the future, only 
those which already have been sold. Furthermore, adjustments are made to the future cash flows based 
on assumptions regarding policy lapses and surrenders (transfers out), investment returns, price and 
salary inflation, expenses, taxation, and insurance risks such as mortality and morbidity rates (risk of 
disability or early death).  

Policies that the company can expect to sell in the future are an important component of the difference 
between the embedded value and the actual value of the business to investors. 

SPP Market Consistent Embedded Value ("MCEV") is estimated based on Storebrand and Watson 
Wyatt’s (third party consultants) preliminary assessment and is based on due diligence information.  
Storebrand's actuarial team together with their actuarial advisors expect to provide full embedded value 
disclosure (method to be determined) following completion early next year (preliminary) based on full 
year 2007 pro-forma together with 2006 comparable information. 

The Methodology used in the MCEV is prudent and market risk consistent.  Future cash flows to 
shareholders are projected assuming the investment return on assets is the risk free rate of return (i.e. 
removing the impact of equity risk premiums and corporate bond spreads).  The risk adjusted cash flows 
are discounted at the risk free rate to obtain the MCEV.  Under this approach the cost of financial 
options and guarantees is evaluated by means of a stochastic model which generated 1000 stochastic 
scenarios. 

Specific assumptions used in the modelling were: 

• Investment returns were based on forward swap rates at 31 May 2007 ranging from 3.99 per cent. to 
5.20 per cent; 

• Mortality assumptions were based on recent published Swedish mortality tables.  As a measure of 
conservatism white collar mortality assumptions were used for entire portfolio; 

• Disability assumptions were based on a long term assumed claims/premium ratio which was 
conservative relative to recent SPP experience; 

• Persistency and lapse assumptions based on experience in Sweden and other Nordic countries; and 

• Expenses were based on SPP's current operating experience.  Inflation in expenses was derived 
from Swedish government inflation linked bonds but assuming salary related expenses inflate by 2 
per cent. per annum more than general price inflation. 

Other issues relevant to the MCEV and the disclosed value of new business (VNB) are: 

• VNB is based on business written in 2006 on a basis consistent with the MCEV but takes no 
account of the growth in new business experienced in 2007; 
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• No allowance has been made for any cost or revenue synergies; 

• An additional allowance has been made for planned IT investment and consequent anticipated costs; 

• No allowance has been made for tax synergies between Storebrand and SPP; 

• Allowance has been made for the introduction of stock commissions and its impact on new business; 

• No allowance has been made for the impact of Solvency II and the positive diversification benefits 
arising from the combination of Storebrand and SPP; and 

• The MCEV was adjusted to allow for investment management arrangements post acquisition. 

Preliminary MCEV disclosure (as of 31 May 2007) 

Market Consistent Embedded value  
(NOK billion) as of May 31 2007 
Adjusted net worth 6.9 
Value of In-force 7.1 
   of which Cost of Volatility (1.4) 
   of which Cost of Capital (0.7) 
MCEV 14.0 

of which Euroben ~0.7 
Return on traditional Embedded Value ~10 per cent. per annum 
(NOK million)  
New business value (post Cost of 
Capital) 182 

  
Value of In-force by product mix 
(before Cost of Capital) as of May 31 2007 

Defined benefit 30 per cent. 
Defined contribution 18 per cent. 
Unit-linked 42 per cent. 
Disability 10 per cent. 
  
New business value by product mix as of May 31 2007 
Defined contribution 45 per cent. 
Unit-linked 55 per cent. 
 

Sensitivity of the MCEV to changes in key assumptions 

The following table shows the approximate change in the MCEV of SPP (including Euroben) at 31 May 
2007 to changes in a key assumptions: 

 NOK billion 
MCEV 14.0 
5 per cent. increase in mortality 0.3 
5 per cent. decrease in morbidity 0.2 
10 per cent. decrease in lapse rates 0.3 
10 per cent. decrease in expenses 0.5 
1 per cent. increase in forward interest rates (0.2) 
10 per cent. decrease in equity values (0.3) 

 
Note:  The changes for the increase in forward rates and decrease in equity values reflect the net impact 
of the change in value of the underlying asset and change in value of associated derivative instruments.  
As such this sensitivity should not be regarded as symmetrical. 
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8. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

8.1 Documents on display 

Copies of the following documents will during the life of this Information Memorandum be available 
for inspection at any time during normal business hours on any business day free of charge at the 
registered office of the Company: 

• Articles of Association of the Company; 

• The historical financial information for Storebrand and for its subsidiary undertakings for each of 
the three financial years preceding the publication of the Information Memorandum; and 

• Interim financial information for the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2007. 

8.2 Confirmation regarding sources 

The information in this Information Memorandum that has been sourced from third parties has been 
accurately reproduced and as far as the Company is aware and able to ascertain from information 
published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced 
information inaccurate or misleading.  The source of third party information is identified where used. 

8.3 Incorporation by reference 

The information incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum shall be read in connection 
with the cross-reference list below set out in the table below.  Except as provided in this section, no 
other information is incorporated by reference into this Information Memorandum. 

The Company incorporates its first and second quarter reports for 2007 and 2006 and the consolidated 
annual reports for the Company for 2006, 2005 and 2004. 

Section in the 
Information 
Memorandum 

Disclosure 
requirements of 
the Information 
Memorandum 

Reference document and link Page (P) in 
reference 
document 

    
7.1 Section 20.1:  

Audited historical 
financial 
information 

Consolidated Annual Report 2006: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=148309 

Consolidated Annual Report 2005: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=124583 

Consolidated Annual Report 2004: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=105297 

 

 
P54-106 
 
 
P56-99 
 
 
P52-56 

7.1 and 7.3 Section 20.4.1:  
Audit report 

Consolidated Annual Report 2006: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=148309 

Consolidated Annual Report 2005: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=124583 

Consolidated Annual Report 2004: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=105297 

Review Report to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
First  Quarter 2007: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=150413 

Review Report to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
Second Quarter 2007: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=157000 

 
P107 
 
 
P100 
 
P57 
 
 
 
 
P1 
 
 
 
 
P1 
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Section in the 
Information 
Memorandum 

Disclosure 
requirements of 
the Information 
Memorandum 

Reference document and link Page (P) in 
reference 
document 

7.2 Accounting 
Policies 

Consolidated Annual Report 2006: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=148309 

 

 
P58-63 

7.3 Section 20.6.1:  
Quarterly financial 
information  

Consolidated report for the Company for first quarter 2007: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=150413 

 
Consolidated report for the Company for second quarter 
2007: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=157000 

 
P1-12 
 
 
 
P1-12 

  Consolidated report for the Company for first quarter 2006: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=127953 

Consolidated report for the Company for second quarter 
2006: 

http://www.newsweb.no/index.jsp?messageId=133126 

P12-17 

 

 

 

P1-10 
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APPENDICES:  

1. SPP Financial Statements 2006, including Auditor's Report 

2. SPP unaudited interim financial statements first half 2007 

3. Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) Financial Statements 2006, 2005 and 2004; 
including Auditor’s Report 

4. Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) unaudited interim financial statements first 
half 2007 

5. Auditor’s Independent Assurance Report on pro forma financial information 
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Accounting policies
SPP 2006

This annual report has been prepared in conformity with the 
Swedish Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Companies (ÅRFL) 
and the instructions and general guidelines regarding the annual 
accounts of insurance companies issued by the Swedish Financial 
Supervisory Authority (FFFS 2005:34). FFFS 2005:34 implies 
that the Swedish Accounting Standards Board’s recommendation 
no. 32 and international accounting standards have been applied, 
with certain limitations (statutory IFRS). SPP applies the same 
accounting policies in the parent company and in the Group.

The annual accounts and the consolidated annual accounts 
were authorised for publication by the board on 12 February 
2007.  The Group's income statement and balance sheet and 
the parent company's income statement and balance sheet will 
be presented for adoption at the annual general meeting on 28 
March 2007.

CHANGED ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Effects of the demutualisation and the introduction of the 

Occupational Pensions Directive

As of 1 January 2006, SPP was demutualised into a profi t-dis-
tributing company, which means that the result risk has been 
transferred from the policyholders to the owner. When SPP be-
came a profi t-distributing company, the insurance contracts were 
amended, and all the surplus funds in SPP as at 31 December 
2005 were distributed to the policyholders. When SPP was run 
on mutual principles, underfunded insurance contracts were bal-
anced by the surplus from other policies. The EU Occupational 
Pensions Directive came into force in Swedish law on 1 January 
2006. One implication of this is that a market rate of interest 
must be used to calculate the insurance obligations. The insur-
ance obligations are at present valued at a risk-free current rate 
instead of as previously at a maximum rate established by the Fi-
nancial Supervisory Authority. The transition to a demutualised 
company and the introduction of the Occupational Pensions Di-
rective have reduced the opening equity by SEK 3,609 million 
which refers to the deferred capital contribution. The change in 
the company’s risk reserves, which entirely refers to the introduc-
tion of the Occupational Pensions Directive, has increased the 
opening equity by SEK 241 million. See also Note 29 Equity.

Effect of transition to statutory IFRS

Reporting of insurance contracts

SPP has carried out a complete review of its insurance contracts 
in order to be able to classify the contracts in accordance with 
IFRS 4. All customers with current insurance contracts that 
contain a considerable insurance risk, have been classifi ed as in-
surance. Remaining contracts have been classifi ed as investment 
contracts. SPP has carried out an extensive review of the various 
parts of the insurance contracts, adapting the insurance systems 
to make it easier to sort out risk elements from savings elements 
in each individual insurance contract. This has made it possible 
to apply separate accounting to the savings elements of the con-
tracts classifi ed as insurance contracts. SPP reports in-payments 
and out-payments from customers’ savings capital directly in the 
balance sheet instead of as previously via the income statement. 
The risk component is normally valued using the risk-taking in 
the calculation of the premium and is therefore zero. If there is 

reason to use assumptions which deviate from the assumptions 
used in calculating the premium, a special provision is made for 
the risk component.

Reporting of acquisition costs

SPP has reversed all acquisition costs recognised as assets, and 
has instead reported paid out commission in the balance sheet 
distributed over the life of the contract.

Consolidated fi nancial statements

New policies for establishing acquisition balance sheets have 
been applied. The most important changes are that acquisi-
tion balance sheets must be more detailed than in the past and 
that goodwill is no longer amortised. Now acquisition balance 
sheets must include all types of intangible assets which can be 
distinguished and valued separately, reported at the assessed fair 
values. This must be performed in the acquisition balance sheet 
without fulfi lment of the normal requirements where intangible 
assets should be recognised as assets. The intangible assets must 
be divided into assets with a defi nite useful life and assets with 
an indefi nite useful life. The latter category also includes good-
will. For intangible assets without a defi nite useful life, no amor-
tisation is to be made. Acquisition balance sheets pertaining to 
acquisitions before 2004 have been reviewed in order to identify 
intangible assets which could not be recognised as assets accord-
ing to the old accounting policies. This review has not identifi ed 
any new intangible assets in the old acquisition balance sheets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are to be divided up into two main categories: 
those with an indefi nable useful life, and those for which a use-
ful life may be assessed. Those for which a useful life may be 
assessed are subject to amortisation in the same way as before. 
There should be regular impairment tests of whether the set 
period of useful life is still reasonable, and of whether there are 
indications that the asset’s value in use may have dropped below 
the residual value carried in the accounts. For assets with an 
indefi nable useful life, an impairment test must be carried out at 
least once a year.

Effects on equity

The effect of the transition to statutory IFRS has implied a re-
duction of the opening equity by SEK 13 million. See also Note 
29 Equity.

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

The consolidated accounts encompass all companies in which 
SPP directly or indirectly has a controlling infl uence. A control-
ling infl uence normally exists when the holding amounts to 
more than 50% of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are consolidat-
ed in accordance with the acquisition accounting method.

Companies in which SPP directly or indirectly has a signifi -
cant infl uence are reported as associated companies. A signifi cant 
infl uence normally exists when the holding amounts to a mini-
mum of 20% and a maximum of 50% of the votes. Associated 
companies are reported in the consolidated accounts in accord-



12

ance with the equity method. All foreign operations have activi-
ties that could cause their functional currency to deviate from 
the currency that the Group uses for reporting. In line with the 
Group’s decentralised organisation, each operation is run inde-
pendently, and transactions between the parent company and 
the respective unit represent only part of their operations. Salary 
payments and purchases are normally made in local currency. 
When translating the foreign units’ balance sheets and income 
statements the current rate method has been used. Assets, liabili-
ties and minority share of the capital are converted at the clos-
ing-day rate. Shareholders’ equity is translated at the exchange 
rate on the date of investment and earning respectively. The 
income statement is translated according to the average exchange 
rate for the year. The resulting translation differences have been 
classed as equity.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

An intangible asset is an identifi able non-monetary asset without 
physical form. An asset is a resource that is expected to provide 
future economic benefi t over which there is control as a result of 
past events. When acquiring companies, an acquisition balance 
sheet is prepared in which identifi able assets and liabilities are 
measured at fair value at the time of acquisition. This measure-
ment is also performed when acquiring intangible assets that do 
not yet fulfi l the requirement for classifi cation as an asset. The 
reason for this is that this intangible right may nevertheless have 
a separable fair value. The part of the acquisition price that can-
not be attributed to identifi able assets and liabilities is recognised 
as goodwill. Acquired brands are recognised in the balance sheet 
at cost after deduction for any amortisation and impairment 
losses. Internally accrued values in the form of goodwill, trade-
marks, publishing rights, customer databases and similar are not 
reported as assets in the balance sheet. Investments in software 
developed in-house are carried as an expense on a current basis 
where the expenditure refers to maintenance of existing busi-
ness operations or an existing intangible asset. For development 
of new intangible assets, or new business operations for existing 
intangible assets, the costs accrued are capitalised from the time 
when it is probable that economic benefi t that can be reliably 
measured will arise. An impairment test is performed when there 
is any indication that the asset may have decreased in value. In 
addition, in cases where the intangible asset has an indefi nite 
useful life, an annual impairment test is performed at the same 
point in time each year.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT ASSETS

All investment assets, apart from investments in Group compa-
nies, are valued at fair value. This means that changes in value, 
both realised and unrealised, are reported in the income state-
ment. Investments in Group companies are valued at the lower 
of cost and fair value. Land and buildings are valued individu-
ally taking cash fl ows into account. Valuations are conducted by 
external valuers. Derivative transactions with a positive market 
value on the closing date are reported under Investment assets, 

and transactions with a negative market value are reported under 
Liabilities. Purchases and sales of money market and capital mar-
ket instruments on the spot market are subject to trade date ac-
counting. When investments are measured at fair value, deferred 
tax is calculated on the part of operations subject to income tax.

VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN FOREIGN 
CURRENCY

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are valued at the clos-
ing-day rate.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are reported as a consequence of past events when 
it is probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. The provision is recorded in the amount 
estimated to be most probable, taking into account the time of 
settlement. Technical provisions are described separately.

INCOME

Income is reported in the income statement when it is probable 
that future economic benefi ts will be gained and these benefi ts 
can be reliably measured.

PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Reported as premiums written are premiums and premium fees 
regarding risk for those insurance contracts that are classifi ed as 
insurance contracts according to IFRS 4.

OTHER TECHNICAL INCOME

Other income in the insurance operations is reported here. This 
includes the reporting of premium fees for contracts that are 
classifi ed as fi nancial as well as capital fees and other charges (not 
taxes).

INSURANCE CLAIMS

Risk costs regarding contracts that are classifi ed as insurance ac-
cording to IFRS 4 are reported as insurance claims.

CHANGES IN OTHER TECHNICAL PROVISIONS

The change consists of distributed yield relating to insurance 
with guaranteed interest and unit-linked insurance as well as the 
change in provisions for surplus premiums.

OTHER TECHNICAL COSTS

Amortisation of intangible assets is reported here.

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, 
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Depreciation

All assets that have been classifi ed as Property and equipment 
are depreciated over an estimated useful life. A linear deprecia-
tion plan is usually applied. The material assets that consist of 
components with different set periods of useful life are divided 
into different categories with separate depreciation plans. Nor-
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mally this only applies to properties. Personal computers are nor-
mally depreciated over three years and other equipment over fi ve 
years. Intangible assets are divided into two categories. The fi rst 
category applies to assets for which it is possible to assess a useful 
life. These are amortised over this set period of useful life. The 
other category involves intangible assets for which it is not pos-
sible to establish a defi nite useful life. These are not amortised. 
Instead, they are the object of annual impairment testing. Good-
will is not subject to amortisation. Intangible assets for which 
it is possible to establish an estimated useful life are amortised. 
Normally the useful life does not exceed fi ve years. Brand names 
are normally regarded as having a very long useful life, and thus 
the amortisation period can be considerably longer. The same 
applies to customer contracts in the insurance business. The am-
ortisation period is assessed on an individual basis at the time of 
new acquisition and also on a continuous basis if there are indi-
cations that the useful life period may have changed.

Impairment losses

This section describes the criteria applied to impairments of 
property, equipment and intangible assets as well as shares in 
subsidiaries, associated companies and any participation in joint 
ventures. Impairment losses are recognised when the recovery 
value is less than the book value. The recovery value is calculated 
as the higher of an asset’s value in use or net realisable value. 
The recovery value is determined when there is an indication 
that the asset has fallen in value.

NON-TECHNICAL ACCOUNT

Investment income that does not come from the yield on assets 
managed on behalf of the policyholders is reported in the non-
technical account.

TAXES

The company pays standard policyholder tax on the assets man-
aged on behalf of policyholders. The return on equity and result 
from risk insurance are taxed at the normal corporation tax rate 
of 28%. Deferred tax is tax referring to temporary differences 
between the value of an asset or liability in the accounts and its 

taxable value. Tax charges paid from the insurance to cover the 
yield tax are reported under Tax on the year’s profi ts.

TECHNICAL PROVISIONS

Technical provisions consist of life insurance provisions and pro-
visions for unsettled claims.

Mortality assumptions

Mortality assumptions vary depending on when various insur-
ance policies were taken out. The assumptions applied are based 
on joint industry statistics. For most of the portfolio, mortality 
assumptions are applied that were developed in 1990.

Provision for claims outstanding 

The provision for claims outstanding comprises claims paid up 
to the end of the fi nancial year but not yet paid, as well as the 
estimated future operating expenses for adjusting these claims. 
The provision also consists of a reserve for claims paid but not 
yet reported to the company at the close of the fi nancial year. 

LIABILITY RELATING TO INSURANCE POLICIES WITH 
GUARANTEED YIELD

Liability relating to insurance policies with a guaranteed yield is 
calculated for each individual policy as the higher of amount of 
the insurance capital or the guaranteed capital valued at a risk-
free current rate. In addition, the amortised cost is affected by 
yield tax, charges, mortality and other risk measurements. The 
guaranteed yield and all assumptions are agreed to when the 
policy is taken out. The company has different guaranteed yields 
in its portfolio, of which 3% and 5.2% are the predominant rates. 
These two rates represent 45% and 39% respectively of the total 
insurance portfolio; the other guaranteed yields represent 16%. 
The assumption on charges varies with the products and is gen-
erally in line with the percentage charges applied. The assump-
tion concerning tax varies depending when various insurance 
policies were taken out and the tax levy applicable at the time. 
The assumption on tax and charges reduced the guaranteed 
yield applied.
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Income statement
SPP 2006

GROUP 
PARENT 

COMPANY
SEK million 2006 2006

TECHNICAL ACCOUNT, LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Premiums written (net of reinsurance) Note 1 612 612

Investment income Note 2 4 607 4 065

Unrealised gains on investment assets Note 3 2 339 2 339

Change in value of investment assets for which policyholders bear the investment risk, unit-linked insurance assets 1 410 -

Other technical income Note 4 2 175 1 930

Claims paid (net of reinsurance) Note 5 -197 -197

Change in other technical provisions Note 6 -6 750 -4 791

Bonus and rebates -87 -87

Operating expenses Note 7 -636 -485

Investment charges Note 8 -839 -836

Unrealised losses on investments Note 9 -192 -192

Other technical expenses Note 10 -38 -

Investment income transferred to financial operations -34 -34

Share of profit of associates 15 -

Balance on the technical account, life insurance business 2 385 2 324

NON-TECHNICAL ACCOUNT

Balance on the technical account, life insurance business 2 385 2 324

Investment income Note 11 372 362

Unrealised gains on investment assets Note 12 41 35

Investment income transferred from insurance operations 34 34

Investment charges Note 13 -279 -280

Unrealised losses on investments Note 14 -336 -342

Profit before tax 2 217 2 133

Tax on the year’s profit Note 15 -46 -40

Profit for the year 2 171 2 093
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Analysis of results
SPP 2006

PARENT COMPANY

DIRECT INSURANCE OF SWEDISH RISKS

OCCUPATIONAL PENSION INSURANCE OTHER LIFE INSURANCE

Technical account, life insurance business
SEK million Total  2006

Defi ned 
benefi t 

insurance

Defi ned 
contribution 

traditional 
insurance

Occupa-
tional health 

insurance 
and waiver 
of premium 

insurance

Individual 
traditional life 

insurance

Group life and 
occupational 

group life 
insurance

Non-cancel-
lable disability 

and accident 
insurance 

and waiver 
of premium  

insurance

Premiums written (net of reinsurance) 612 130 20 454 2 1 5

Investment income 4 065 1 937 1 869 52 206 0 1

Unrealised gains on investment assets 2 339 1 146 1 064 0 129 0 0

Other technical income 1 930 146 1 683 0 101 - -

Claims paid (net of reinsurance) -197 -136 -57 1 -4 0 -1

Change in other technical provisions (net of reinsurance) -4 791 -2 277 -2 252 - -262 - -

Bonus and rebates -87 - - -87 - - -

Operating expenses -485 -166 -269 -24 -25 0 -1

Investment charges -836 -391 -394 -5 -46 0 0

Unrealised losses on investments -192 -88 -92 -3 -9 0 0

Investment income transferred to financial operations -34 -16 -16 - -2 - -

Balance on the technical account, life insurance business 2 324 285 1 556 388 90 1 4

PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Premiums written (gross of reinsurance) 802 130 20 644 2 1 5

Premiums ceded to reinsurers -190 - - -190 - - -

Total premiums written (net of reinsurance) 612 130 20 454 2 1 5

CLAIMS PAID 

Claims paid (gross of reinsurance) -428 -136 -57 -230 -4 0 -1

Reinsurers’ share 72 - - 72 - - -

Change in provision for claims outstanding

Change in provision for claims outstanding (gross of reinsurance) 189 - - 189 0 0 0

Reinsurers’ share -30 - - -30

Total claims paid (net of reinsurance) -197 -136 -57 1 -4 0 -1

Technical provisions 31 Dec 2006

Life insurance provisions 69 679 28 948 36 065 501 4 147 0 18

Provision for claims outstanding 1 825 - - 1 821 - 1 3

71 504 28 948 36 065 2 322 4 147 1 21

Technical provisions for which policyholders bear the risk 
31 Dec 2006

Conditional bonus 14 334 9 256 4 583 58 437 - -

14 334 9 256 4 583 58 437 - -
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Balance sheet
SPP 2006

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

SEK million 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2006

ASSETS

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets Note 16 876 -

Investment assets

Land and buildings Note 17 155 155

Shares and participating interests in Group companies Note 18 - 1 240

Shares and participating interests in associates Note 19 127 108

Shares and participating interests Note 20 30 030 29 789

Bonds and other fixed income securities Note 21 63 097 63 097

Derivatives Note 22 1 447 1 447

Other financial assets Note 23 17 876 17 876

112 732 113 712

Investments for which policyholders bear the investment risk

Unit-linked insurance assets 26 864 -

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

Claims outstanding 76 76

Receivables

Receivables relating to direct insurance operations Note 24 24 12

Other receivables Note 25 323 362

347 374

Other assets

Property and equipment Note 26 2 2

Cash and bank balances Note 27 2 550 2 209

2 552 2 211

Prepayments and accrued income

Accrued interest income 936 936

Prepaid commission expenses Note 28 150 62

Other prepayments and accrued income 7 7

1 093 1 005

Total assets 144 540 117 378
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GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

SEK million 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2006

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital (2,000 shares) 200 200

Profit brought forward 7 829 7 819

Profit for the year 2 171 2 093

Total equity Note 29 10 200 10 112

Subordinated liabilities

Perpetual subordinated loans 1 600 1 600

Technical provisions (gross of reinsurance)

Life insurance provisions Note 30 69 679 69 679

Provision for claims outstanding Note 31 1 825 1 825

71 504 71 504

Technical provisions for life insurance for which policyholders bear the risk

Conditional bonus Note 32 14 334 14 334

Unit-linked commitments Note 33 26 864 -

41 198 14 334

Provisions for other risks and charges Note 34 124 110

Deposits from reinsurers 76 76

Liabilities

Liabilities relating to direct insurance operations Note 35 735 676

Liabilities relating to reinsurance operations 60 60

Derivatives Note 36 534 534

Other liabilities Note 37 18 452 18 315

19 781 19 585

Accruals and deferred income Note 38 57 57

Total equity, provisions and liabilities 144 540 117 378

Memorandum items

Pledges and comparable collateral pledged for own liabilities and for commitments reported as provisions 
 Assets registered on behalf of policyholders 124 084 96 979

Other pledged assets Note 39 6 601 6 601

Other commitments Note 40 71 807 71 807
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Cash fl ow statement
SPP 2006

GROUP

SEK million 2006

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating profit 2 218

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Depreciation and impairment losses 42

Unrealised gains on investment assets 1 851

Paid income tax -46

Change in the assets and liabilities of operating activities:

Investment assets -66 549

Life insurance provisions and conditional bonuses 1 875

Unit-linked commitments 26 864

Other liabilities excluding insurance liabilities 18 168

Other 581

Cash flow from operating activities -14 996

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Change in property and equipment 4

Acquisition of SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB -1 239

Cash flow from investing activities -1 235

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Shareholders’ contribution 11 200

Cash flow from financing activities 11 200

Cash flow for the period

Cash funds at beginning of period 7 581

Cash flow from operating activities -14 996

Cash flow from investing activities -1 235

Cash flow from financing activities 11 200

Cash flow at end of period 2 550
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Notes
SPP 2006

NOTE 1  Premiums written (net of reinsurance)

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Paid-in and recognised premiums 802 802

Reversionary bonus for adjustment of paid-up values 0 0

Premium tax 0 0

Total premiums written (gross of reinsurance) 802 802

Premiums ceded to reinsurers -190 -190

Total premiums written (net of reinsurance) 612 612

All premiums regard risk insurance and are regular premiums.

Premiums written have been taken out in Sweden

Information about paid premiums reported in the balance sheet

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Paid-in and recognised premiums 6 928 3 804

Premiums written for direct insurance

Group

2006

Regular One-off premiums

Contracts for which the policyholder 
bears the investment risk 2 865 259

Contracts for insurance with guaranteed yield 2 610 1 194

Total 5 475 1 453

NOTE 2  Investment income

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Rental income from buildings and land 13 13

Dividends received 1 175 633

Interest income

Bonds and other fixed income securities 1 374 1 374

Other interest income 112 112

Total interest income 1 486 1 486

(of which interest income from Group companies) (62) (62)

Exchange gains, net 327 327

Capital gains, net

Shares and participating interests 1 603 1 603

Other financial investments 2 2

Total capital gains, net 1 606 1 606

Total 4 607 4 065

NOTE 3  Unrealised gains on investments

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Land and buildings 10

Shares and participating interests 1 979

Derivatives 350

Total 2 339

NOTE 4  Other technical income

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Premium fees 136 76

Capital fees 610 430

Other fees 1 419 1 419

Risk income 10 5

Total 2 175 1 930

NOTE 5  Claims paid (net of reinsurance)

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Claims paid (gross of reinsurance) -367 -367

Operating expenses for claims management -30 -30

Reinsurers’ share 72 72

Total claims paid (net of reinsurance) -325 -325

Change in provision for claims outstanding 
(gross of reinsurance) 189 189

Reinsurers’ share -30 -30

Change in provision for claims outstanding 
(net of reinsurance) 159 159

Change other reserves -31 -31

Total claims paid (net of reinsurance) -197 -197

Information concerning claims paid, reported in the balance sheet

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Claims paid -4 103 -3 823

Cancellations and repurchases -268 -56

Total  -4 371 -3 879

NOTE 6  Change in other technical provisions 

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

 2006 2006

Allocated yield for unit-linked insurance -1 952 -

Allocated yield for insurance with guaranteed yield -4 745 -4 745

Other changes -53 -46

Total -6 750 -4 791
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NOTE 7  Operating expenses

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Acquisition costs -213 -173

Change in prepaid commission expenses 5 1

Administrative expenses -521 -406

Reinsurance commissions and 
profit participating interests 93 93

Total  -636 -485

Operating expenses for claims management -30 -30

Investment management charges -184 -181

Property management charges -5 -5

Share of profits of associated companies 15 -

Total operating expenses -840 -701

The company’s total operating expenses for purchases, administration, claims manage-
ment and treasury and property management are broken down into the following items:

Net fee and commission income -34 -19

Staff costs -246 -246

Cost of premises -22 -22

Depreciation -4 -4

Other -534 -410

Total -840 -701

The total amount for future minimum lease fees is SEK 104m, SEK 40m of which matures 
within a year and 64m between one and five years. The leasing cost is an operational leas-
ing agreement and refers to rent for premises. The cost has a variable fee tied to inflation 
and real estate tax.

Operating expenses for claims management are reported under the heading Insurance 
claims, and operating expenses related to treasury and property management are reported 
under Investment charges.

Staff costs

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Salaries and fees -140

Social security costs -49

Pension costs -40

Provision to profit-sharing foundation -5

Other staff costs -12

Total -246

Pension costs relate to paid pension premiums. There are no additional pension obliga-
tions. The pension plan for employees follows the plan for bank employees.

The SPP Group’s pension commitments are covered by continuous insurance.
The above information refers to SPP Livförsäkring AB. The employees of the fol-

lowing companies are employed by SPP Livförsäkring AB: SPP Liv Pensionstjänst 
AB, SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB and SPP Konsult AB. These companies buy the 
corresponding services from SPP Livförsäkring AB. SPP Kundcenter AB has no 
operations.

Of which salaries and fees to the board and chief executive
Salaries and fees -4
Pension costs -2
Total -6

convenes when its chairman calls a meeting and its assignments include establishing 
principles for the salaries, benefits and pensions of chief executives of subsidiaries. 
Based on these guidelines the board of SPP decides the terms for the chief executive. 

TERMS AND REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Terms 
SPP has no agreements on severance pay.
At Handelsbanken the lowest pension age for the Bank’s executive vice presidents 
is 60. Between the ages of 60 and 64, their retirement pension is 65% of their 
salary immediately before retirement. From the age of 65, the pension is 10% of the 
annual salary up to 7.5 income base amounts. They also receive a pension under 
the general national insurance scheme. A retirement pension of 65% is paid on the 
portion of the salary in excess of 7.5 income base amounts. 

The pensions for the chief executive of SPP and two of the EVPs (former EVPs of 
Handelsbanken and thus covered by the Bank's agreement as above) are accrued 
gradually during the years up to the age of retirement and are fully accrued by the age 
of 60. The company is charged annually for the cost at the same rate as the pension 
is accrued. Accrued pension commitments are guaranteed by the Bank’s pension 
foundation and pension fund, and are vested. If the executives leave the Bank before 
the stipulated retirement age, a paid-up policy is issued for the pension accrued.
The two other chief executives and the others in the management team have a 
retirement age of 65 and are included in the same retirement plan as the other 
employees. 

Remuneration 
In 2006 the chief executive Michael Zell received a total salary of SEK 3,600,000 of 
which profit-related salary amounted to SEK 0. In addition, benefits were provided 
with a total value of SEK 190,000. Six other senior executives, two of which are 
employed at SPP, received remuneration and other benefits of SEK 8,205, of which 
other benefits comprised SEK 584,000. The group of other senior executives com-
prises the joint management team for SPP and Handelsbanken Liv.

Non-executive board members, not employed by the Handelsbanken Group, re-
ceived fees totalling SEK 355,000 and 30,000 for participation in the audit committee. 

Board members who are employees of the Bank receive remuneration and pen-
sion benefits by reason of their employment. No further remuneration or pension 
benefits are paid for serving on the board. 

The chief executive and other senior managers, in common with other employees 
in the Handelsbanken Group, were allocated one unit in Handelsbanken’s profit-
sharing system Oktogonen. One unit for an employee in Sweden amounted to SEK 
21,932.

Pension plan - other employees
From the age of 65, a retirement pension is paid in accordance with the pension 
agreement between the Employer’s Association of the Swedish Banking Institutions 
(BAO) and Union of Finance Sector Employees and between BAO and SACO (the 
Swedish Confederation of Professional Associations). The amount is 10% of the 
annual salary up to 7.5 income base amounts. The retirement pension is 65% of the 
annual salary on the portion of the salary in the range of 7.5–20 income base amounts, 
and 32.5% of the annual salary in the range 20–30 income base amounts. On the por-
tion of the salary in excess of 30 income base amounts no retirement pension is paid. 

Number of employees (average during year)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Sweden 296

UK 1

Total 297

All employees are office staff.

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY
2006

Gender breakdown Men Women

Sweden 139 157

UK 1 0

Total 140 157

Staff costs in respective countries

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Sweden -244

UK -2

Total -246

SPP 2006

PRINCIPLES FOR REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
The remuneration level for senior management is revised annually according to the 
decision-making process that applies throughout the Handelsbanken Group. One 
main principle in the process is that remuneration may only be issued in the form of 
fixed salary and customary employee benefits. Variable remuneration benefits such 
as bonus and percentage of profits are not paid.

Decision-making process 
Handelsbanken’s board appoints a special remuneration committee composed of two 
board members, one of whom is appointed chairman. The remuneration committee 
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Sickness absence rate in the Swedish operations 

ABSENCE DUE TO SICKNESS %

Age Men Women Total

–29 2.4 2.7 2.5

30–49 1.6 3.5 2.7

50– 3 4.1 3.5

Total 2.2 3.7 3

Of whom on long-term sick leave, percentage of total sickness absence

–29 2.1

30–49 1

50– 3.7

Total 1.7

Gender breakdown, senior executives

Senior executives in SPP and Handelsbanken Liv total 7 people, of whom 3 are employed 
at SPP.

Men Women

Senior management 6 1

of which SPP 3 -

Board of directors 8 3

Fees to auditors

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

KPMG Bohlins AB, Audit -0.3 -0.2

KPMG Bohlins AB, consulting costs -0.2 -0.2

PricewaterhouseCoopers AB, Audit -0.3 -0.3

Internal audit, Handelsbanken -2.4 -2.1

Total -3.2 -2.8

Audit assignments refer to auditing of annual accounts and the accounting records 
and the administration of the board of directors and the chief executive, other 
assignments that are the responsibility of the company’s auditors and advice and 
other assistance resulting from observations in the course of such an audit or the 
performance of other such assignments. The remainder is other assignments.

NOTE 8  Investment charges

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Operating expenses for buildings and land -5 -5

Investment management charges -184 -181

Interest expense

Other interest expense -30 -30

Total interest expense -30 -30

(of which costs to Group companies) (-1) (-1)

Capital losses, net

Other financial investments -620 -620

Total capital losses, net -620 -620

Total  -839 -836

NOTE 9  Unrealised losses on investments

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Bonds and other fixed income securities -192

Total -192

NOTE 11  Investment income

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Dividends received 24 19

Interest income

Bonds and other fixed income securities 241 241

Other interest income 42 37

Total interest income 283 278

(of which interest income from Group companies) (36) (34)

Capital gains, net

Bonds and other fixed income securities 65 65

Total capital gains, net 65 65

Total 372 362

NOTE 12  Unrealised gains on investments

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Shares and participating interests 6 -

Fixed income securities 35 35

Total  41 35

SPP 2006

NOTE 10  Other technical charges

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

 2006 2006

Amortisation of intangible assets -38 -

Total -38 -
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NOTE 13  Investment charges

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Investment management charges -25 -25

Interest expense

Other interest expense -96 -94

Total interest expense -96 -94

(of which costs to Group companies) (-74) (-74)

Exchange losses, net -14 -14

Capital losses, net

Shares and participating interests -144 -147

Total capital losses, net -144 -147

Total  -279 -280

NOTE 14  Unrealised losses on investments

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Shares and participating interests - -6

Derivatives -336 -336

Total  -336 -342

NOTE 15  Tax on the year’s profits

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Tax expense for the period -46 -40

Adjustment of tax for previous years 0 -

Total -46 -40

NOTE 16  Other intangible assets

GROUP 

 2006

Acquisition value at beginning of year -

Acquisition value of future intangible assets 915

Total cost of acquisition 915

Accumulated amortisation at beginning of year -

Amortisation for the year -38

Total amortisation -38

Book value 876

The intangible asset is the result of the acquisition of SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB from 
Handelsbanken Liv. 

The amortisation is reported under the heading Other technical charges.

NOTE 17  Land and buildings

Group and parent company Fair value
Acquisition

value
Tax assess-
ment value

Book
value SEK/m2

Office and commercial properties 155 155 95 24

No part of the property is used in the company’s own operations.
The property has been appraised externally.

NOTE 18  Shares and participating interests in Group companies

Specification of the parent company’s direct holdings of shares and participating interests in Group companies:

 
Corporate 

identity number
Registered 

offi ce
Number 

of shares
Share 

of capital
Book 

value 2006

SPP Kundcenter AB 556550-1243 Stockholm 1 000 100% 0

SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB 556254-6969 Stockholm 8 000 100% 1

SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB 516401-8599 Stockholm 800 100% 1 239

Total 1 240

All shares are unlisted so no market value has been given.     

PARENT COMPANY

Cost of acquisition 2006

Opening balance 1

Acquisition of SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB 1 239

Closing acquisition values 1 240

SPP Liv Fondförsäkring AB was acquired from Handelsbanken Liv on 1 January 2006.

SPP 2006
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NOTE 19  Shares and participating interests in associated 
 companies

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Opening balance 112 108

Share of profits 15 -

Closing balance 127 108

Nordben Life and Pension Insurance Co Limited is domiciled on Guernsey. SPP’s share-
holding amounts to 3,000,000 shares with a share of capital of 50%.

NOTE 20  Shares and participating interests

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

Fair value 2006 2006

Swedish shares and participating interests 10 015 10 013

Foreign shares and participating interests 20 015 19 776

Total 30 030 29 789

Of which unlisted shares and participating interests 484 484

 

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

Cost of acquisition 2006 2006

Swedish shares and participating interests 8 039 8 036

Foreign shares and participating interests 18 238 18 015

Total 26 277 26 051

Of which unlisted shares and participating interests 340 340

For a complete specification of shares and participating interests, see page 27.

NOTE 21  Bonds and other fixed income securities

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY
Fair value 2006

Swedish government 37 458

Swedish mortgage institutions 13 688

Other Swedish issuers 4 403

Foreign governments 172

Other foreign issuers 2 463

Units in Swedish mutual funds 4 913

Total 63 097

Of which unlisted 392

 

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

Amortised cost 2006

Swedish government 37 608

Swedish mortgage institutions 13 841

Other Swedish issuers 4 286

Foreign governments 169

Other foreign issuers 2 465

Units in Swedish mutual funds 4 891

Total 63 260

Of which unlisted 314 

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Book value exceeds the nominal amount 9 149

Book value below the nominal amount 260

 

Interest rate adjustment periods as at 31 December

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

Fair value 2006

0–3 months 4 900

3 months–1 year 8 444

1-5 years 19 780

5–10 years 13 965

More than 10 years 16 008

Total 63 097

NOTE 22  Derivative instruments with positive values

2006

Group and parent company Fair value Nominal value

Put options 194 374

Call options 357 3 005

Equity index futures 27 1 864

Interest rate swaps 265 14 161

Interest rate swaption 46 3 707

Currency forwards 558 22 650

Total 1 447 45 761

Of which cleared 103 254

NOTE 23  Other financial assets

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Repos 17 876

Total 17 876

NOTE 24  Receivables relating to direct insurance operations

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Claim policyholders 24 12

Total 24 12

NOTE 25  Other receivables

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Claim on Group companies 0 85

Prepaid tax 15 10

Claim outstanding shares and fixed income securities 266 266

Other receivables 42 1

Total 323 362

SPP 2006
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NOTE 26  Property and equipment

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Opening cost of acquisition 48

Cost of acquisition of new assets 0

Cost of acquisition of assets sold 
during the year -22

Total cost of acquisition 26

Depreciation for the year -4

Accumulated depreciation according to plan -38

Accumulated depreciation of assets sold 
during the year 18

Total depreciation -24

Book value 2

The item refers entirely to equipment.

NOTE 27  Cash and bank balances

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Funds in accounts with Group companies 2 216 1 921

Other cash funds 334 288

Total 2 550 2 209

NOTE 28  Deferred commission expenses

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Capitalised acquisition cost according 
to the new accounting policy 95 95

Capitalised acquisition cost, assets 
acquired during the year 105 -

Capitalised acquisition costs for the year 19 7

Total cost of acquisition 219 102

Depreciation according to new accounting policy -34 -34

Depreciation of assets acquired during the year -21 -

Depreciation for the year -14 -6

Total depreciation -69 -40

Book value 150 62

Of which book value with remaining 
depreciation period in excess of two years 150 62

Capitalisation of commission expenses according to new accounting policies based on 
IAS 18. The effect of the changed accounting policy has been reported via shareholders’ 
equity.

NOTE 29  Equity

Group
Share 

capital
Solvency 

reserve

Reserve for 
unrealised 

gains
Other  
funds

Profi t 
brought 
forward

Profi t for 
the year

Total 
2006

Closing balance 31 December 
according to adopted balance sheet 200 -205 1 931 200 148 756 3 030

Appropriation of profits 956 -200 -756 -

Transfer of solvency reserve to profit brought forward -27 27 -

Correction opening balance value Nordben 7 7

Closing balance 31 December 2005 prior to distribution 200 724 1 931 - 182 - 3 037

Distribution to policyholders -724 -1 931 -172 -2 827

Closing balance 31 December 2005 after distribution 200 - - - 10 - 210

Effect of demutualisation and introduction of the Occupational 
Pensions Directive -3 368 -3 368

Effect of transition to statutory IFRS -13 -13

Opening balance 1 January 2006 200 - - - -3 371 - -3 171

Received shareholder contribution 11 200 11 200

Profit for the year 2 171 2 171

Closing balance 200 - - - 7 829 2 171 10 200

Parent company  
Share 

capital
Solvency 

reserve

Reserve for 
unrealised 

gains
Other 
funds

Profi t 
brought 
forward

Profi t for 
the year

Total 
2006

Closing balance 31 December 2005
 according to adopted balance sheet 200 -232 1 931 200 172 756 3 027

Appropriation of profits 956 -200 -756 -

Closing balance 31 December 2005 prior to distribution 200 724 1931 - 172 - 3027

Distribution to policyholders -724 -1 931 -172 -2 827

Closing balance 31 December 2005 after distribution 200 - - - - - 200

Effect of demutualisation -3 368 -3 368

Effect of transition to statutory IFRS -13 -13

Opening balance 1 Jan 2006 200 - - - -3 381 - -3 181

Received shareholder contribution 11 200 11 200

Profit for the year 2 093 2 093

Closing balance 200 - - - 7 819 2 093 10 112

SPP 2006
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Changed accounting policies, specification relating to the effect of demutualisation and introduction of the Occupational Pensions Directive
When SPP was demutualised, the insurance contracts were amended, and all the surplus funds in SPP as at 31 December 2005 were allocated to the policyholders. This 
individualisation leads to a change in accounting policy with the purpose of reflecting SPP’s commitment. The change implies that the reported liability per customer will be 
at least the amount of the guaranteed assets. In the mutually run SPP, underfunded insurance contracts were balanced by the surplus from other policyholders. This deficit 
is not realised, and is instead dependent on future yield. Any remaining deficits will not be realised until the insurance is due to be paid out. The EU Occupational Pensions 
Directive came into force in Swedish law on 1 January. One implication of this is that a market rate of interest must be used to calculate the insurance liabilities. For the insur-
ance liabilities that were previously measured using a maxiumum interest rate established by the Supervisory Authority, there is now a risk-free market interest rate.

As the demutualisation was performed at the same time as the Occupational Pensions Directive was introduced, it is not possible to express the exact impact of each 
change but all in all they decreased the Group’s shareholders capital by SEK 3,368m.

Specification relating to the effect of demutualisation and introduction of the Occupational Pensions Directive
Effects on profi t 
brought forward

Initial deferred capital contribution 3 610

Impact of changed accounting policy relating to claim reserve -294

Tax impact of changed accounting policy relating to claim reserve 33

Compensation to policyholders for surplus value in associated companies 14

Compensation to policyholders for surplus value in subsidiaries 5

Total 3 368

Specification to effect of transfer to statutory IFRS
Effects on profi t 
brought forward

Reversal of the parent company’s prepaid acquisition costs 750

Reversal of the parent company’s depreciation of prepaid acquisition costs -676

Capitalisation of commission expenses -95

Depreciation of commission expenses 34

Total 13

Sensitivity analysis – the Group’s equity Effect on equity

Price fall shares 10% -40

Interest rate rise 1 percentage point -237

Increased yield requirement on property 2 percentage points -7

Exchange rate fall 10% -5

Net exposure interest rate adjustment periods Group 0–3 mths 3 mths–1 yr 1– 5 yrs 5–10 yrs
More than 

10 yrs Total

Assets

Bonds and other fixed income securities 4 900 8 444 19 780 13 965 16 008 63 097

Liabilities

Life insurance provisions and conditional bonuses -580 -1 419 -9 478 -13 529 -59 007 -84 013

Net exposure 4 320 7 025 10 302 436 -42 999 -20 916

SPP 2006

NOTE 30  Life insurance provisions

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY
 2006

Opening balance 82 117

Incoming payments 3 804

Outgoing payments -3 879

Allocated yields 4 744

Change in deferred capital contribution -1 569

Other changes -1 204

Less conditional bonus -14 334

Closing balance 69 679

NOTE 31  Provision for claims outstanding

2006

Group and parent company
Non-notifi ed 

claims

Provision 
for non-life 

annuities and 
sickness an-

nuities Total

Opening balance 100 2 208 2 308

Changed accounting policies - -294 -294

Change for the year -22 -167 -189

Total 78 1 747 1 825

The effect of the new accounting policy has been reported via shareholders’ equity.
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NOTE 34  Provisions for other risks and charges

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Provision for pensions 0 0

Provision for income and policyholder tax 12 -

Other provisions 112 110

Total 124 110

NOTE 35  Liabilities relating to direct insurance operations

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Owed to policyholders 732 673

Owed to insurance brokers 3 3

Total 735 676

NOTE 36  Derivative instruments with negative values

2006

Group and parent company Fair value Nominal value

Equity index futures 250 6 364

Interest rate futures 5 332

Interest rate swaps 239 16 382

Currency forwards 40 2 968

Total 534 26 046

Of which cleared 23 3 116

NOTE 38 Other accruals and deferred income

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Accrued operating expenses 37 37

Accrued staff costs 19 19

Accrued interest expense 1 1

Other accruals 0 0

Total 57 57

SPP 2006

NOTE 32 Conditional bonus

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

 2006

Opening balance 9 625

Change for the year 4 709

Closing balance 14 334

NOTE 33 Unit-linked commitments

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

 2006 2006

Opening balance - -

Commitments acquired during the year 22 633 -

Incoming payments 3 125 -

Outgoing payments -492 -

Change in value including dividends 1 952 -

Other changes -354 -

Closing balance 26 864 -

Of which due within twelve months 584 -

NOTE 37 Other liabilities

GROUP
PARENT 

COMPANY

2006 2006

Repos 17 882 17 882

Preliminary taxes 191 114

Owed to Group companies 36 36

Other liabilities 343 283

Total 18 452 18 315

NOTE 39  Other pledged assets

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2006

Loan secured by shares 6 601

Total 6 601

NOTE 40  Other commitments

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

 Nominal value 2006

Put options 374

Call options 3 005

Equity index futures 8 228

Interest rate futures 332

Interest rate swaps 30 543

Interest rate swaption 3 707

Currency forwards 25 618

Total 71 807
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Specifi cation of shares and 
participating interests

SPP 2006

31 December 2006
SEK million

PARENT COMPANY

Swedish listed shares Number Book value 

Finance and real estate

Bure 20 000 000 67

Kaupthing Buna 800 000 65

Nordea Bank 22 576 2

SEB A 5 000 1

Swedbank 1 452 0

Total 135

Industrial goods and services

Ångpanneföreningen B 439 358 64

Assa Abloy B 4 497 1

Atlas A 3 151 1

Atlas B 2 000 0

Ballingslöv 350 000 71

Gunnebo Ind AB 200 000 39

Observer 1 885 000 73

Sandvik 9 835 1

Scania B 3 266 2

Securitas B 659 120 70

Skanska B 8 668 1

SKF B 947 0

Studsvik 137 900 35

Volvo B 2 325 1

Total 359

Information technology

Boss Media 512 927 7

Ericsson B 99 891 3

Micronic Laser Systems 100 000 8

Total 18

Durables

Electrolux B 9 411 1

ENIRO 720 000 65

H&M B 1 268 086 439

Husqvarna B 10 365 1

Metro A 1 622 000 15

Metro B 2 300 000 21

Total 542

Materials

Boliden 5 000 1

Höganäs B 323 500 58

Total 59

Telecom operators

TeliaSonera 18 000 1

Total 1

Other

Tricorona AB 2 825 000 14

Total 14

Swedish unlisted shares Number Book value

NC6 ICA Meny AB 386 842 3

NC6 Capio AB 1 767 868 16

NC6 Capio AB 530 011 5

Bergvik Skog 578 434

Total 458

Total Swedish shares 1 586

Swedish mutual fund units Number Book value

HBF Hedgefond 9 210 806 899

SPP Fond i Fond Generation 70 50 010 6

SPP Fond i Fond Generation 80 50 166 6

XactOMXSB 20 774 493 7 516

Total 8 427

Total Swedish participating interests 8 427

Total Swedish shares and participating interests 10 013

Foreign listed shares Number Book value

Australia

Rio Tinto PLC 10 000 4

Total 4

Belgium

Belgacom 1 700 0

Delhaize 813 0

Dexia New 5 583 1

Fortis 9 572 3

Fortis Banque 5 407 2

GBL 1 392 1

Interbrew 1 778 1

KBC Bancass 1 829 2

Solvay Et Cie 760 1

Umicore 541 0

Total 11

Denmark

Amagerbanken NY 130 000 59

Danske Bank 1 624 886 494

DS Norden 6 400 37

Novo-Nordisk B 1 749 1

Själsögruppen 27 000 60

Vestas Wind Systems 2 048 1

Total 652

Finland

Affecto Genima 200 000 6

Comptel 500 000 8

Elcoteq 122 828 11

Fortum 5 105 1

Metso Oy 4 437 1

Nokia 40 706 6

Outokumpu Oyj 275 000 74

Outukumpu technology 418 481 86

Perlos 245 654 8

PKC Group 567 510 63

Rapala 698 123 39

Sampo A 5 277 1

Stora EnsoOy R 5 000 0

Uponor Oy A 1 371 065 351

YIT 2 256 540 426

Total 1 081
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Foreign listed shares Number Book value

France

Accor 1 962 1

Air Liquide 463 730 753

Alcatel-Lucent 23 000 2

Alstom 1 102 1

Atos Origin 2 671 1

Axa 16 782 5

Bouygues 2 277 1

Cap Gemini 2 952 1

Carrefour 5 834 2

Credit Agricole 5 872 2

Danone Groupe 2 635 3

Eur Aeronautic 5 587 1

Euronext New 904 1

France Telecom 16 131 3

Gaz de France 1 939 1

L Oreal 2 165 1

Lafarge Coppee 1 505 1

Lagardere 1 124 1

LVMH 920 1

Michelin 3 157 2

Mittal Steel PA 4 809 1

Pernod Ricard 729 1

Peugeot 3 948 2

Publicis 1 400 0

Renault 2 087 2

Saint-Gobain 3 000 2

Sanofi Synthel 8 545 5

Schneider Sa 1 577 1

Societe Generale 3 524 4

Suez Lyonnaise 9 825 3

Thales 788 0

Thomson Multimedia 5 165 1

Total Fina Elf 21 532 11

Vallourec SA 370 1

Veolia Environ 2 863 2

Vinci 2 886 3

Vivendi 12 101 3

Total  826

Greece

Alpha Credit Bank 3 900 1

Bank Piraeus 2 284 0

Eurobank 1 953 0

Hellenic Teleco 3 200 1

NatBankOfGreece 3 754 1

OPAP 2 069 1

Total 4

Ireland

Allied Irish Bank 9 500 2

Bank of Ireland 9 635 1

CRH Irland 2 613 399 744

Elan 5 466 0

Irish Life & Pe 2 847 1

Total 748

Foreign listed shares Number Book value

Italy

Autostrade 6 194 1

B M.Paschi 11 427 0

Banca Popolare di Milano 4 936 1

Bco Pop Verona 4 078 1

Capitalia 17 312 1

Endesa 9 398 3

Enel AZ Ragg 41 913 3

Eni S.P.A. 20 339 5

Fiat 13 439 2

Finmeccanica 3 421 1

Generali Assicurazioni 9 038 3

Iberdrola 8 020 2

Intesa SanPaolo 37 857 2

Mediaset 6 793 0

Mediobanca 5 104 1

San Paolo-Imi 11 427 2

Telecom Ita AOR 101 491 2

Telecom Ita Risp 57 452 1

Unicredit 73 604 4

Total 35

Malaysia

Promet 48 745 0

Total 0

Netherlands

Abn Amro Hold 17 106 4

Aegon NV 13 655 2

Ahold 15 417 1

Akzo-Nobel 2 745 1

ASML 4 681 1

CTA Ing Groep 18 782 6

DSM 1 415 0

Elsevier 6 953 1

Heineken 2 230 1

KPN N.V. 19 323 2

Numico 1 862 1

Philips 16 201 4

RoyDutShlA AMS 36 778 9

TNT 4 182 1

Unilever Cert 28 098 5

Vedior 24 0

Wolters Kluwer 1 035 0

Total 39

Norway

Cermaq 650 000 65

Deep Sea Supply 2 099 639 44

DNB NOR 6 000 0

Fast S&T ASA 300 000 5

Geo Asa 593 819 37

Norsk Hydro 9 815 2

Ocean Rig 1 086 540 55

ODIM 203 290 40

Statoil 6 397 1

Tandberg Television 90 000 8

Telenor 7 587 1

Total 258

SPP 2006
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Foreign listed shares Number Book value

Portugal 

Banco Comercial Portugues 22 384 0

Electricidade de Portugal 29 964 1

Portugal Telec 8 477 1

Total 2

Switzerland 

ABB Ltd 29 128 3

Adecco 3 583 2

CS Group 11 217 5

Holcim 929 1

Nestle Namereg 4 003 10

Nobel Bio CHF 638 1

Novartis 22 537 9

Partners Group 80 000 66

Richemont 2 705 1

Roche GS 7 187 9

Swiss Re 3 221 2

Syngenta REG 1 018 1

UBS AG 18 064 7

Zurich Financial 1 393 3

Total 120

Spain

ACS 1 034 0

Altadis 3 136 1

Banco Popular Espanol 4 654 947 577

Banco Santander CH 58 500 8

BBVA 32 800 5

BNP 8 000 6

Ebro Puleva 2 713 910 470

Gas Natural SDG 2 532 1

Repsol 9 830 2

Telefonica 42 274 6

Union Electrica 1 500 1

Total 1 077

UK

3I Group 8 840 1

Alliance Boots 5 430 1

Amvescap 8 065 1

Anglo American 13 745 5

Astrazeneca 14 428 5

Aviva 22 889 2

Bae Systems 30 920 2

Barclays Bank 60 810 6

Barratt Developments 3 758 1

Bg Group 44 669 4

BHP Billiton 25 000 3

Biffa Plc 3 372 0

Bp Amoco 192 070 15

British Land 5 442 1

British American Tobacco 15 116 3

British Sky Bro 13 226 1

British Teleco 82 835 3

Bunzl New 5 753 461 484

Cadbury Schweppes 20 176 1

Centrica 33 959 2

Compass Group 22 537 1

Foreign listed shares Number Book value

UK continued

Corus Group 16 057 1

Davis serv 5 946 551 401

Diageo 5 749 127 772

Dixon Intl Plc 24 884 1

EMAP New 3 913 0

Emi Group 257 0

Enterprise Inn 4 024 1

Experian 8 885 1

Friends Provident 19 421 0

Gallaher Group 10 631 2

GlaxoSmithKline 52 543 10

Hays 18 039 0

HBOS Plc 37 555 6

Home Retail Group 8 885 0

HSBC Hldg Ord 111 000 14

ICI 11 110 1

Imperial Tobac 7 912 2

Inchcape 7 687 0

Intercontinental Hotels Group NEW 1 505 0

Intl Power 15 000 1

ITV 61 382 1

Johnson Mattey 3 143 212 594

Ladbrokes 6 166 0

Land Secs Grp 4 585 1

Legal&G Group 65 294 1

Lloyds TSB Grp 53 539 4

LogicaCMG 41 426 1

Marks&Spencer New 16 976 2

Mitchell&Butler 5 399 1

Nat Grid Transco 25 087 2

Next 3 500 1

Northern Rock 3 074 476 486

Old Mutual Plc 50 997 1

Persimmon PLC 4 415 1

Prudential Corp 24 000 2

R B of Scotland 30 506 8

Reckitt Benckis 5 628 2

Reed Elsevier 12 500 1

Rexam 6 840 0

Rolls Royce 16 566 1

Rolls Royce B 891 251 0

Rolls Royce scrip certificate 2006 624 538 0

Royal Sun 32 109 1

RoyalDutchShl B 26 705 6

SABMILLER 5 118 1

Sainsbury (J) 14 376 1

Scot Power New 16 057 2

Scot&Newcastle 7 787 1

Scot&Sth Energy 7 797 2

SevernTrent 2 348 0

Signet Group 18 670 674 296

Smith & Nephew 5 325 0

Smiths Group 5 832 1

Tesco 80 210 4

Unilever Ord 1 0

Unite Utilities 10 000 1

VodafoneNEW 492 268 9

William Hill 5 031 0

SPP 2006
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Foreign unlisted shares Number Book value

Denmark

NC6 Dangaard 415 468 4

NC6 Nycomed 2 462 251 22

Total 26

Total foreign shares 8 657

Foreign mutual fund units Number Book value

DBDJEurostox50 5 000 2

HB Sicav II, Fund of Hedgefund 8 750 000 901

HBF Europa Protect 30 000 3

HBF KlickEu90A 30 000 3

Ishares MSCI Emerging Markets 2 574 300 2 011

Ishares MSCI India index fund 5 126 000 209

PG Prime Serie 900 000 000 1 000

S&P Depository Receipt (ETF) 5 500 000 5 333

SPP EMU Blandfond 818 652 96

Topix ETF 14 239 000 1 390

Xact FTSE Euro 110 000 61

Xact OBX 1 560 000 64

XACTOMXH25 175 000 46

Total 11 119

Total foreign participating interests 11 119

Total foreign shares and participating interests 19 776

Total shares and participating interests 29 789

Foreign listed shares Number Book value

UK continued

Wimpey 8 345 1

Wolseley 3 119 272 515

WPP Group 11 274 1

Xstrata PLC 6 744 2

Yell Group PLC 8 180 1

Total 3 710

Thailand

Univestland Pu 93 880 0

Total 0

Germany

Allianz AG 4 131 6

Basf 5 919 4

Bayer Ag 7 540 3

Commerz Bank 5 786 1

Continental AG 1 242 1

Daimlerchrysler 6 408 3

Deutsche Bank 4 223 4

Deutsche Boers 1 449 2

Deutsche Post 7 535 1

Deutsche Tele 25 909 3

E.ON 5 863 5

Fresenius Medical Care 1 472 1

Henkel Pref 671 1

Hypo Real Est 1 408 1

Infineon 12 553 1

Linde AG 1 065 1

Lufthansa 2 088 0

MAN AG Ord 1 261 1

Man Group 17 850 1

Metro 1 474 1

Munchner Ruckv 2 264 3

Porsche AG pre 142 1

Rwe 4 207 3

SAP Ag 7 088 3

Siemens 7 397 5

Thyssenkrupp 4 597 1

Volkswagen 2 060 2

Total 59

USA

CarnivalCorp A 4 717 2

Prog Energy Der 6 476 0

Total 2

Austria

Erste Bank 1 983 1

Telecom Austria 3 972 1

OMV AG 2 492 1

Total 3

Additional in the Group

Swedish mutual fund units Number Book value

Other Swedish mutual fund units 3

Total Swedish mutual fund units 3

Foreign mutual fund units Number Book value

SHB Generationsfond Fond i Fond 40 tal 5 138 1

SPP Generationsfond 40 tal 112 153 21

SPP Generationsfond 50 tal 230 238 63

SPP Generationsfond 60 tal 212 623 69

SPP Generationsfond 70 tal 104 167 15

SPP Generationsfond Fond i Fond 40 tal 105 409 11

SPP Generationsfond Fond i Fond 50 tal 103 921 11

SPP Generationsfond Fond i Fond 60 tal 101 431 11

SPP Generationsfond Fond i Fond 70 tal 102 008 12

SPP Generationsfond Fond i Fond 80 tal 103 445 12

CIF Global Equity 18 322 3

CIF Global Equity B 4 739 1

Schroders Pacific Equity 20 772 1

Schroders US Smaller Comp 2 099 1

Other foreign mutual fund units 6

Total foreign mutual fund units 238

Total shares and participating interests in the Group 30 030

SPP 2006
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Income statement
SPP 2005

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

SEK million 2005 2005

TECHNICAL ACCOUNT, LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Premiums written (net of reinsurance) Note 1 4 406 4 406

Investment income Note 2 6 136 6 136

Unrealised gains on investment assets Note 3 1 762 1 759

Claims paid (net of reinsurance) Note 4 -3 696 -3 696

Life insurance provisions Note 21 -3 623 -3 623

Bonuses and rebates (net of reinsurance) -63 -63

Operating expenses Note 5 -853 -838

Investment charges Note 6 -959 -959

Unrealised losses on investments Note 7 -1 886 -1 886

Share of profit of associates 9 -

Balance on the technical account, life insurance business 1 233 1 236

Non-technical account

Balance on the technical account, life insurance business 1 233 1 236

Investment income 4 -

Investment charges -1 -

Profit before tax 1 236 1 236

Tax Note 8 -480 -480

Profit for the year 756 756
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Balance sheet
SPP 2005

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

SEK million 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2005

Assets

Investment assets

Land and buildings 145 145

Shares and participating interests in Group companies Note 9 - 1

Shares and participating interests in associates Note 10 105 108

Shares and participating interests Note 11 23 704 23 704

Bonds and other fixed income securities Note 12 50 673 50 673

Derivatives Note 13 228 228

74 855 74 859

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions

Claims outstanding 109 109

Receivables

Receivables relating to direct insurance operations Note 14 48 48

Other receivables Note 15 80 80

128 128

Other assets

Property and equipment Note 16 10 10

Cash and bank balances Note 17 7 581 7 491

7 591 7 501

Prepayments and accrued income

Accrued interest income 886 886

Deferred acquisition costs Note 18 74 74

Other prepayments and accrued income 21 14

 981 974

Total assets 83 664 83 571
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GROUP PARENT COMPANY

SEK million 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2005

EQUITY, PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES

Equity Note 19

Share capital (2,000 shares) 200 200

Solvency reserve -205 -232

Other reserves

Reserve for unrealised gains Note 20 1 931 1 931

Other funds 200 200

Profit brought forward 148 172

Profit for the year 756 756

3 030 3 027

Subordinated liabilities

Perpetual subordinated loans 1 600 1 600

Technical provisions (gross of reinsurance)

Life insurance provisions Note 21 75 828 75 828

Provision for claims outstanding Note 22 2 307 2 307

78 135 78 135

Provisions for other risks and charges Note 23 176 176

Deposits from reinsurers 109 109

Liabilities

Liabilities relating to direct insurance operations Note 24 218 218

Liabilities relating to reinsurance operations 9 9

Derivatives Note 25 55 55

Other liabilities Note 26 283 193

565 475

Accruals and deferred income 49 49

Total equity, provisions and liabilities 83 664 83 571

Memorandum items

Pledges and comparable collateral for own 
liabilities and for commitments reported as provisions
  Assets registered on behalf of policyholders 82 265 82 265

Other pledged assets Note 27 466 466

Other commitments Note 28 22 036 22 036

SPP 2005
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Notes
SPP 2005

NOTE 1  Premiums written (net of reinsurance)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Paid-in premiums 4 569

Reversionary bonus for 
adjustment of paid-up values 1

Premium tax 0

Total premiums written 
(gross of reinsurance) 4 570

Premiums ceded -164

Total premiums written 
(net of reinsurance) 4 406

Premiums written have been taken out in Sweden

Premiums written for direct insurance
Group and parent company

2005

Regular premiums One-off premiums

Group insurance

Bonus contracts 3  809 761

NOTE 2  Investment income

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Operating surplus from buildings and land

Rental income 14

Operating expenses -7

Total operating surplus from 
buildings and land 7

Dividends received 456

Interest income

Bonds and other 
fixed income securities 1 330

Other interest income 152

Total interest income 1 482

(Of which interest income 
from Group companies) (142)

Capital gains, net

Shares and participating interests 1 896

Bonds and other fixed income securities 2 295

Total capital gains, net 4 191

Total investment income 6 136

NOTE 3  Unrealised gains on investment assets

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Shares and participating interests 1 018 1 015

Derivatives 744 744

Total 1 762 1 759

NOTE 4  Claims paid (net of reinsurance)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Claims paid (gross of reinsurance) -3 955

Cancellations and repurchases -16

Operating expenses for claims management -29

Reinsurers’ share 44

Claims paid (net of reinsurance) -3 956

Change in provision for claims
 outstanding (gross of reinsurance) 265

Reinsurers’ share -5

Change in provision for claims 
outstanding (net of reinsurance) 260

Claims paid (net of reinsurance) -3 696

NOTE 5  Operating expenses

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Acquisition costs -43 -43

Change in deferred acquisition costs -58 -58

Administrative expenses -875 -860

Reinsurance commissions and profit 
participating interests 123 123

Total operating expenses in 
the insurance operations -853 -838

Operating expenses for 
claims management -29 -29

Investment management charges -162 -162

Share of profit of associates 9 -

Total operating expenses -1 035 -1 029

The company’s total operating expenses for purchases, administration, claims 
management and treasury management are broken down into the following items:

Commission expenses -28 -28

Staff costs -383 -383

Cost of premises -202 -202

Depreciation -18 -18

Other -404 -398

Total -1 035 -1 029

Operating expenses for claims management are reported under the heading 
Claims paid and operating expenses related to treasury management are reported 
under Investment charges.

(Amounts in SEKm unless otherwise stated)
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Staff costs

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Salaries and fees -219

Social security costs -78

Pension costs -45

Provision to profit-sharing foundation -7

Other staff costs -34

Total -383

Of which salaries and fees to the board 
and chief executive

Salaries and fees -2

Pension costs 0

Total -2

Remunerations 2005
In 2005 the chief executive Göran Holgerson received a total salary of SEK 1,456,000 
of which profit-related salary amounted to SEK 0. In addition, benefits were provided 
with a total value of SEK 123,000.  

Ten other senior executives received remuneration and other benefits of SEK 
10,039 thousand, of which other benefits comprise SEK 1,050,000. The group of 
other senior executives comprises the head of treasury, the regional heads and the 
senior actuary.

Non-executive board members, outside the Handelsbanken Group, received fees 
totalling SEK 385,000. No fees were paid to the chairman of the board. No fees 
were paid to employee representatives on the board and their deputies. 

The chief executive and other senior managers, in common with other employees 
in the Handelsbanken Group, were allocated one unit in Handelsbanken’s profit-
sharing system Oktogonen. One Swedish unit corresponded to SEK 35,000. 

Number of employees (average during year)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Number of employees

Sweden 517

UK 1

Total 518

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Gender breakdown Men Women

Sweden 258 259

UK 1 -

Total 259 259

Staff costs in respective countries

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Sweden -380

UK -3

Total -383

FEES TO AUDITORS

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

KPMG Bohlins AB, Audit -0.2 -0.2

KPMG Bohlins AB, consulting costs -0.3 -0.3

PricewaterhouseCoopers AB, Audit -0.3 -0.3

Internal audit, Handelsbanken -1.5 -1.5

NOTE 7  Unrealised losses on investments 

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Bonds and other fixed income securities -1 876

Property -10

Total -1 886

NOTE 8  Tax 

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Yield tax -480 -480

Income tax 0 -

Total -480 -480

NOTE 9  Shares and participating interests in Group companies

Specification of the parent company’s holdings of shares and participating interests in Group companies:

 
Corporate iden-

tity number:
Registered 

offi ce
Number of 

shares
Share 

of capital
Book 

value 2005

SPP Kundcenter AB 556550-1243 Stockholm 1 000 100 % 0

SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB 556254-6969 Stockholm 8 000 100 % 1

1

All shares are unlisted so no market value has been given.     

PARENT COMPANY

Cost of acquisition 2005

Opening balance 1

Shareholders’ contribution paid 3

Impairments for the year -3

Closing balance 1

SPP Livförsäkring AB has provided a shareholders’ contribution of SEK 3 million to SPP Liv Pensionstjänst AB. An impairment loss on the shareholding was effected by 
a corresponding amount.

NOTE 6  Investment charges

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Investment management charges -162

Interest expense

Other interest expense -72

Total interest expense -72

(Of which interest expenses 
to Group companies) (-64)

Exchange losses, net -361

Capital losses, net

Other financial investments -364

Total capital losses, net -364

Total investment charges -959

SPP 2005
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NOTE 10  Shares and participating interests in 
 associated companies

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Opening balance 102 108

Share of profits 9 -

Amortisation of goodwill -6 -

Closing balance 105 108

The closing balance of shares in associates includes goodwill of SEK 22 million. 
Nordben Life and Pension Insurance Co Limited is domiciled on Guernsey. SPP’s 
shareholding amounts to 3,000,000 shares with a share of capital of 29%.

NOTE 11  Shares and participating interests

2005

Group and parent company Fair value Cost of acquisition

Swedish shares and participating interests 11 938 11 472

Foreign shares and participating interests 11 766 10 473

Total 23 704 21 945

Of which unlisted shares and 
participating interests 289 289

NOTE 12  Bonds and other fi xed income securities

2005

Group and parent company Fair value Cost of acquisition

Swedish government 29 516 29 599

Swedish mortgage institutions 16 541 16 866

Other Swedish issuers 2 778 2 800

Foreign governments 99 93

Other foreign issuers 847 838

Units in Swedish mutual funds 892 891

Total 50 673 51 087

Of which unlisted 307 307

The book value of fixed income securities exceeds or is lower than the nominal 
value by SEK 4,296m and 78m respectively. 

Interest rate adjustment periods

0–1 yrs 15 299

1–2 yrs 6 133

2–5 yrs 16 559

5–10 yrs 4 431

10 yrs– 8 251

Total 50 673

NOTE 13  Derivative instruments with positive values

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Book value Nominal value

Interest rate forward contracts 0 1

Currency forwards 228 18 592

Total 228 18 593

NOTE 14  Receivables relating to direct 
 insurance operations

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Claims on policyholders 48

Total 48

NOTE 15  Other receivables

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Claims on Group companies 8 67

Other 72 13

Total 80 80

NOTE 16  Property and equipment

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Cost of acquisition

Opening balance 162

Scrapping -115

Purchase/sales during the year 1

Closing balance 48

Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance -125

Scrapping 105

Depreciation for the year -18

Closing balance -38

Book value 10

NOTE 17  Cash and bank balances

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Funds in accounts with Group companies 7 130 7 041

Other cash funds 451 450

Total 7 581 7 491

NOTE 18  Deferred acquisition costs

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Opening book value 132

Capitalisation for the year 21

Depreciation for the year -79

Closing book value 74

of which book value with remaining 
depreciation period > 2 years 32

SPP 2005
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NOTE 20  Reserve for unrealised gains

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Shares and participating interests 1 759

Derivatives 172

Total 1 931

NOTE 21  Life insurance provisions (gross of reinsurance)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

 2005

Opening balance 72 204

Change for the year 3 623

Rounding difference 1

Total 75 828

NOTE 22  Provision for claims outstanding 
 (gross of reinsurance)

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

Notifi ed 
claims

Non-notifi ed 
claims

Provision 
for non-life 

annuities and 
sickness an-

nuities
Total 
2005

Opening balance 0 239 2 347 2 586

Assigned insurance 
portfolios 0 -2 -11 -13

Change for the year - -137 -128 -265

Rounding difference - -1 - -1

Total - 99 2 208 2 307

NOTE 23  Provisions for other risks and charges

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Provision for pensions 0 0

Yield and income tax liability 22 22

Other provisions 154 154

Total 176 176

NOTE 25  Derivative instruments with negative values

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Book value Nominal value

Interest rate forward contracts 0 1

Currency forwards 55 3 442

Total 55 3 443

NOTE 24  Liabilities relating to direct insurance 
 operations

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Owed to policyholders 216

Owed to insurance brokers 2

Total 218

NOTE 26  Other liabilities

GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2005 2005

Owed to Group companies 7 9

Preliminary taxes 196 118

Other 80 66

Total 283 193

NOTE 27  Other pledged assets

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Loan secured by shares 466

Total 466

NOTE 28  Other commitments

GROUP AND PARENT COMPANY

2005

Interest-rate related forward contracts 2 

Currency-related forward contracts 22 034

Total 22 036

SPP 2005

NOTE 19  Equity

OTHER RESERVES

 Equity
Solvency 

reserve

Reserve for 
unrealised 

gains Other funds

   Profi t 
brought 
forward

Profi t for the 
year Total 2005

GROUP
Opening balance 200 -425 2 131 -1 411 164 2  130 2 789

Appropriation of profits 735 1 411 -16 -2 130 -

Reversionary bonus -339 -339

Payment of client company funds -120 -120

Withdrawals from indexation funds -48 -48

Portfolio transfer -8 -8

Provisions to  reserve for unrealised gains -200 200 -

Profit for the year 756 756

Closing balance 200 -205 1 931 200 148 756 3 030

PARENT COMPANY
Opening balance 200 -404 2 131 -1 411 172 2 098 2 786

Appropriation of profits 687 1 411 -2 098 -

Reversionary bonus -339 -339

Payment of client company funds -120 -120

Withdrawals from indexation funds -48 -48

Portfolio transfer -8 -8

Provisions to reserve for unrealised gains -200 200 -

Profit for the year 756 756

Closing balance 200 -232 1 931 200 172 756 3 027
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Recommendation for 
appropriation of profi ts

SPP 2006

The following amount is available in the parent company for distribution by the annual general meeting:

(SEK)
Profi t brought forward  –3,381,109,023
Received shareholder contribution  11,200,000,000
Profi t for the year  2,093,280,662 

 9,912,171,639

The board and chief executive propose that SEK 1,085,500 million per share be distributed to the shareholder, a total of SEK 
2,171,000,000. The remaining SEK 7,741,171,639, including the shareholder contribution received of SEK 11,200,000,000 would 
be carried forward. The record day for dividend is Friday, 29 March 2007 and the dividend will be paid on 30 March 2007. 

When assessing the amount of the company's proposed dividend, account has been taken of the nature of operations, their scope, 
consolidation requirement and risk-taking. Our assessment is that the above appropriation of profi ts is prudent and well-adapted to 
the operations as a going concern. 

Unrealised gains and losses on assets and liabilities have had a net effect on the shareholders’ equity of SEK –2,348 million.

STOCKHOLM, 13 FEBRUARY 2007

Björn C Andersson
Chairman

Håkan Sandberg
Deputy chairman 

Björn Bergman

Yonnie Bergqvist Åke Danielsson Holger Eriksson

 Barbro Johansson Anki Jönsson Carl-Johan Tibblin

Kerstin Wahlund Michael Zell
Chief executive
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Audit report
SPP 2006

To the general meeting of the shareholders of SPP Livförsäkring AB, 
corporate identity number 516401-8524

STOCKHOLM 28 MARCH 2007   

KPMG Bohlins AB
Peter Zell

Authorised public accountant

Catarina Ericsson
Authorised public accountant

Auditor elected by the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority

We have audited the annual accounts, the consolidated accounts, 
the accounting records and the administration of the board of 
directors and the chief executive of SPP Livförsäkring AB for the 
year 2006. These accounts and the administration of the compa-
ny and the application of the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for 
Insurance Companies when preparing the annual accounts and 
the consolidated accounts are the responsibility of the board of 
directors and the chief executive. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on the annual accounts, the consolidated accounts 
and the administration based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards in Sweden. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that 
the annual accounts and the consolidated accounts are free of 
material misstatement. During the year, the internal auditing 
department of Handelsbanken has continuously examined the 
internal controls and accounts. We have received the reports 
that have been prepared. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounts. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies 
used and their application by the board of directors and the chief 
executive and assessing signifi cant estimates made by the board 
of directors and the chief executive when preparing the annual 
accounts and consolidated accounts as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of information in the annual accounts and 

the consolidated accounts. As a basis for our opinion concern-
ing discharge from liability, we examined signifi cant decisions, 
actions taken and circumstances of the company in order to be 
able to determine the liability, if any, to the company of any 
board member or the chief executive. We also examined whether 
any board member or the chief executive has, in any other way, 
acted in contravention of the Swedish Insurance Business Act, 
the Swedish Annual Accounts Act for Insurance Companies or 
the Articles of Association. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinions set out below.

The annual accounts and the consolidated accounts have been 
prepared in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act 
for Insurance Companies and thereby give a true and fair view 
of the company’s and the Group’s fi nancial position and results 
of operations in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards in Sweden. The administration  report is consistent 
with the other parts of the annual accounts and the consolidated 
accounts.

We recommend to the general meeting of shareholders that 
the income statement and balance sheet of the parent company 
and the Group be adopted, that the profi t of the parent company 
be dealt with in accordance with the proposal in the administra-
tion report and that the members of the board of directors and 
the chief executive be discharged from liability for the fi nancial 
year.



 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

SPP unaudited interim financial statements first half 2007 



SPP Liv
Legal result

2007-06

SEK million

Income Statement

SPP Group
200701-200706 200601-200606 Changes

Administration result 63 -12 -629 %
Risk result 128 213 -40 %
Financial result -3 1 426 -
Other 148 3 4833 %
Result before tax 336 1 630 -79 %
Tax 185 -45 -510 %
Profit 521 1 585 -67 %

SPP AB
Administration result 16 -62 -125 %
Risk result 129 215 -40 %
Financial result -1 1 427 -
Other 135 14 864 %
Result before tax 278 1 593 -83 %
Tax 182 -45 -504 %
Profit 461 1 548 -70 %

Balance Sheet

SPP Group

Assets Equity, Provisions and Liabilities
Land and buildings 155 Equity 8 550
Shares and participating interests 33 040 Untaxed reserves 0
Interest bearing bonds 58 102 Subordinated loans 1 600

91 297 Life insurance provisions 69 381
Unit-linked insurance assets 30 954 Conditional bonus 16 556

Unit-linked commitments 30 954
Other financial assets 17 018 Other liabilities 12 228

139 269 139 269

SPP AB

Assets Equity, Provisions and Liabilities
Land and buildings 155 Equity 8 402
Shares and participating interests 33 996 Untaxed reserves 0
Interest bearing bonds 58 102 Subordinated loans 1 600

92 253 Life insurance provisions 69 381
Conditional bonus 16 556
Other liabilities 11 952

Other financial assets 15 638 107 891
107 891
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Euroben Financial Statements 2006 
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended  
31 December 2005. 
 
Principal activities 
 
The principal activity of the company is the underwriting of pensions and saving products. 
 
Review of business and future developments  
 
The results of the year are set out on pages 9 and 10. The Directors consider the results to be satisfactory 
and do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 
 
The Directors expect that the present level of activity will increase in the foreseeable future. 
 
Risk Management 
 
Interest rate risk 
The company guarantees a minimum payment on maturity of the Europlan products. Movement in interest 
rates affect the amount of these payments. The company holds bonds and equities yielding a rate and 
duration similar to that of the payment guarantee to policyholders.  However the risk to interest rate 
movements cannot be eliminated altogether because of duration and uncertainty of the liability cashflows. 
The result is an asset /liability mismatch risk which is managed but not eliminated. 
  
Market risk 
The company’s Europlan products also hold a percentage of equities depending on the risk profile chosen 
by the client.  The company and policyholders expect that the market will rise but there is no guarantee on 
the performance of the equities in the portfolio.   
There is no market risk taken by the company in respect of the Portfolio Bond products. 
The company’s revenues are dependent on the values of the assets under management and therefore 
market values will impact on the profits. 
 
Credit risk 
The shareholders capital is invested in accordance with the Board’s investment mandate and on the advice 
of Handelsbanken Asset Management. Meeting are held quarterly with the Board and Asset management 
to determine the investment strategy. 
All investments are in the custody of subsidiaries of the parent company, Handelsbanken and it has a 
Moody’s rating of Aa1. 
 
Currency risk 
Policyholder’s assets and liabilities are matched in the currency in which they arise so there is no risk to 
the company. 
The company income is currently in Swedish Kronor (SEK) and it has some expenses in Euro and NOK.  
These expenses, approximately 3MSEK, are not hedged and the company is exposed to fluctuations in 
exchange rates on this amount.  This risk is considered immaterial in relation to the total expenses and the 
profit of the company.  All gains and losses arising from currency transactions are reported in the profit 
and loss account. 
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Underwriting risk 
A very small number of Europlan products do contain death and disability benefits. While there is a 
reinsurance agreement in place with Hannover Re we have not used this to date as the sums at risk are 
negligible. 
 
Post balance sheet events 
 
No significant events have taken place since the year end. 
 
Directors, secretary and their interests 
 
Henrik Sandberg and Stefan Nilsson resigned as directors from the board on 19th April and 31st December 
2005 respectively. 
Bo Frogner was appointed a director to the Board 19th April 2005 and Michael Zell was appointed to the 
Board as a director on 16th February 2006. 
 
The Directors and secretary who held office at 31 December 2005 had no interest in the shares in, or 
debentures or loan stock of, the company or of any Group companies at the beginning or end of the year. 
 
Accounting records 
 
The Directors believe that they have complied with the requirements of section 202 of the Companies Act, 
1990 with regard to books of account by employing personnel with appropriate expertise and by providing 
adequate resources to the financial function. The books of account of the company are maintained at 1 
North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland. 
 
Auditor 
 
The auditor, KPMG, Chartered Accountants, will continue in office in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 160(2) of the Companies Act, 1963. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Björn C. Andersson Michael Zell   20th April 2006 
Chairman of the Board Director   
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations.   
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law 
the directors have elected to prepare the company financial statements in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, comprising applicable law and the accounting standards issued 
by the Accounting Standards Board and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.   

The company’s financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company and of its profit or loss for that period.   

In preparing each of the financial statements, the directors are required to:   

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   

• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  and   

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 
the company will continue in business.    

The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account that disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements 
comply with the Companies Acts 1963 to 2005 and the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings:  
Accounts) Regulations 1996.  They are also responsible for taking such steps as are reasonably open to 
them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.   

The directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report that complies with the requirements of 
the Companies Acts 1963 to 2005.   

 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
Björn C. Andersson Michael Zell  
Chairman of the Board Director 
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We have audited the financial statements of Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2005 
which comprise a Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet and the related notes.  These financial 
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.   

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 193 of the 
Companies Act 1990.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.   

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors   

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice in Ireland), are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 4.   

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory 
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).   

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have 
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 2005 and the European 
Communities (Insurance Undertakings:  Accounts) Regulations 1996.  We also report to you whether, in 
our opinion: proper books of account have been kept by the company; whether at the balance sheet date, 
there exists a financial situation requiring the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the 
company; and whether the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial 
statements. In addition, we state whether we have obtained all the information and explanations necessary 
for the purposes of our audit, and whether the company’s financial statements are in agreement with the 
books of account.   

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information specified by law regarding directors’ 
remuneration and directors’ transactions is not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information 
in our report. 
 
We read the Directors’ Report and consider implications for our report if we become aware of any 
apparent misstatements within it.   

Basis of audit opinion   

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued 
by the Auditing Practices Board.  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  It also includes an assessment of the significant 
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of 
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed.   

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or 
error.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in 
the financial statements.   

 

 

(Continued) 
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Opinion   

In our opinion:   

• the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice in Ireland, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2005 and of its profit for 
the year then ended;   

• the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 
2005 and 

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of 
our audit. In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company. The financial 
statements are in agreement with the books of account. 

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements. 

The net assets of the company, as stated in the company balance sheet are more than half of the amount of 
its called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 December 2005 a 
financial situation which under Section 40 (1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would require 
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the company. 

 

 
KPMG  20th April 2006 
Chartered Accountants 
Registered Auditors 
 
 



Euroben Life & Pension Limited 
 
 
Statement of accounting policies  
For the year ended 31 December 2005 
 

 

7 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material in relation to the company’s financial statements. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1963 to 
2005, as amended by the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 1996. 
 
The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards 
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments, and comply with 
financial reporting standards of the Accounting Standards Board, as promulgated by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Ireland.  
 
Currency 
 
The functional currency is Swedish Kronor (SEK). 
 
Premiums 
 
Premium income is credited to the technical account - life assurance business when due. 
 
Claims 
 
Death claims are recorded on the basis of notification received up to the balance sheet date. 
 
Investment income and charges 
 
Investment income, expenses and charges are accounted for on an accruals basis and included in the 
technical account-life assurance business. Investment income, expenses and charges include dividends, 
interest, gains and losses on investments and related expenses. Gains and losses on the realisation of 
investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and original cost. 
 
Foreign currencies 
 
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Swedish Kronor at the rates of 
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  Transactions during the period are translated into Swedish 
Kronor using the rate of exchange at the end of each month with exchange gains and losses included in 
either the technical account or the non-technical account according to the transaction type. 
 
Technical provisions 
 
Technical provisions are included at amounts with reference to values determined by the Appointed 
Actuary.  
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Investments 
 
Investments are included in the balance sheet at market value.  
 
Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of the 
investments and their purchase price or, if they have been previously valued, their valuation at the last 
balance sheet date. The total is then adjusted to take account of gains or losses recognised in prior 
accounting periods in respect of investments sold in the current accounting period. Movements in 
unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in the technical account - life assurance business. 
 
Taxation 
 
The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year.   
 
Deferred taxation 
 
Provision is made for deferred tax using the liability method to recognise timing differences between 
profits stated in the financial statements and profits computed for taxation purposes. 
 
In accordance with FRS 19 “Deferred Tax”, except where otherwise required by accounting standards, 
full provision without discounting is made for all timing differences which have arisen but not reversed at 
the balance sheet date.  Provision is made at the rates of taxation expected to prevail at the time of 
reversal. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable.  The recoverability of 
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors. 
 
Pension 
 
The cost of providing benefits in the defined contribution plan is charged to the profit and loss account in 
the year to which the expense relates. 
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Profit and loss account: technical account - life assurance business
for the year ended 31 December 2005

N ote

SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0

Gross premiums written 1 2  0 5 7  1 8 0 5 4 0  7 4 6      
Outward  reinsurance premium 1 4             (2 0 )              

Ne t  pre m ium s  writ t e n  and e arne d 2  0 5 7  1 9 4 5 4 0  7 2 6     

Inve s tm e nt  inc om e 2 5 6  2 0 1      4 6  2 1 8        
Unre alis e d gains  on  inve s t m e nt 8 2 7 2  1 2 3    6 6  3 2 4        

3 2 8  3 2 4    1 1 2  5 4 2     

Claims paid :
Gross amount (3 1 4  0 7 1 )   (2 0 2  9 2 2 )     
Reinsurers' share -           -             
Net claims paid (3 1 4  0 7 1 )   (2 0 2  9 2 2 )     

Change in the provision for claims:
Gross amount -           -             
Reinsurers’ share -           -             

-           -             

(3 1 4  0 7 1 )   (2 0 2  9 2 2 )    

Te c hnic al provis ion  
Life  as s uranc e  provis ion , ne t  o f re ins uranc e 14 (2 1 9  5 1 2 )   (2 1 3  3 0 4 )     
Condit ional bonus e s 14 1 3  8 4 0      (3 0  4 4 8 )       
Te c hnic al provis ion  for linke d liabilit ie s ,  ne t  
   o f re ins uranc e 14 (1  8 1 4  3 5 6 ) (1 7 8  5 6 2 )     

Ne t  c hange  in  t e c hnic al provis ions (2  0 2 0  0 2 8 ) (4 2 2  3 1 4 )    

Ne t  ope rat ing e xpe ns e s 3,7 (3 2  5 8 5 )     (2 4  7 7 5 )       
Inve s tm e nt   e xpe ns e s  and c harge s 5 (1  2 1 0 )       (8 8 )              

(3 3  7 9 5 )     (2 4  8 6 3 )      

Balanc e  on  t e c hnic al ac c ount  -
 life  as s uranc e  bus ine s s 1 7  6 2 4      3  1 6 9         

Claim s  inc urre d, ne t  o f re ins uranc e

Claim s  inc urre d, ne t  o f re ins uranc e

Earne d pre m ium s , ne t  of re ins uranc e

Ye ar e nde d 
3 1  De c e m be r

2 0 0 5

Ye ar e nde d 
3 1  De c e m be r

2 0 0 4
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Profit and loss account: non technical account
for the year ended 31 Decem ber 2005 Ye ar e nde d Ye ar e n de d 

N ote 3 1  De c e m be r 3 1  De c e m be r
2 0 0 5 2 0 0 4

SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0
Balanc e  on  t he  t e c hnic al ac c ount  -
 life  as s uranc e  bus ine s s 1 7  6 2 4      3  1 6 9         

Administrative expenses 4 (6 6 4 )          (5 4 0 )           
                               

1 6  9 6 0      2  6 2 9         

Tax on profit on ord inary activities 6 (6  1 9 4 )       (4  6 4 5 )        
                               

1 0  7 6 6      (2  0 1 6 )        

On behalf of the board

Björn C. Andersson Michael Zell
Chairm an of the Board Director

Profit  on  ordinary  ac t ivit ie s  be fore  t axat ion

Profit  /  (los s ) for t he  ye ar

There were no recognised  gains or losses in the financial year and  the preceding financial year other than those 
dealt with in the profit and  loss account.

All items dealt with in arriving at the profit /  (loss) on ord inary activities before tax for the financial year and  the 
preceding financial year relate to continuing operations.
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 Decem ber 2005

N ote 2 0 0 5 2 0 0 4
SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0

As s e t s

Inve s tm e nt s
Other financial investments 8 1  1 9 1  5 0 3 1  1 7 4  0 2 7  

As s e t s  he ld to  c ove r linke d liabilit ie s 8 2  2 3 7  7 0 0 4 2 3  3 4 4     

De bt ors
Debtors arising out of d irect insurance operations 1 5 6          2 9              
Other debtors 9 -             8 0  3 6 2        

1 5 6          8 0  3 9 1       
Othe r as s e t s
Cash at bank 1 2 8  6 3 5    2 5 9  7 5 1     

Accrued  interest 2 0  2 5 8      2 1  6 7 2        
Other prepayments and  accrued  income 2  3 1 2        1  4 5 3          

2 2  5 7 0      2 3  1 2 5       
                             

Tot al as s e t s 3  5 8 0  5 6 4 1  9 6 0  6 3 8  

Pre paym e nt s  and ac c rue d inc om e
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 Decem ber 2005

N ote 2 0 0 5 2 0 0 4
SEK'0 0 0 SEK'0 0 0

Capit al and re s e rve s
Called  up share capital 10 5  6 2 0        5  6 2 0          
Capital contribution 11 2 5 6  4 5 5    1 5 6  4 5 5      
Profit and  loss account (2 5  8 9 5 )     (3 6  6 6 1 )       

    e quit y  in t e re s t s 12 2 3 6  1 8 0    1 2 5  4 1 4     

Te c hnic al provis ions
Life assurance provision 14 1  0 5 6  5 2 5 8 3 7  0 1 3      
Conditional Bonuses 14 2 2  4 8 2      3 6  3 2 2        
Technical provision for linked  liabilities 14 2  2 3 7  7 0 0 4 2 3  3 4 4      

3  3 1 6  7 0 7 1  2 9 6  6 7 9  

Cre dit ors
Creditors arising out of d irect insurance operations 5  2 1 3        2 6 4  0 7 8      
Other creditors 9  9 7 9        2 6 7  0 4 7      
Provisions for taxes 4  9 5 7        3  8 9 9          

2 0  1 4 9      5 3 5  0 2 4     

Other accruals 7  5 2 8        3  5 2 1         

Tot al liabilit ie s 3  5 8 0  5 6 4 1  9 6 0  6 3 8  

On behalf of the board

Björn C. Andersson Michael Zell
Chairm an of the Board Director

Ac c ruals  and de fe rre d inc om e

Share holde rs ’ funds  at t ribut able  t o
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1 Premiums 

2 Investment income
 Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000
Interest income on debt securities and other fixed 
income securities 41 320          26 415          
Dividends on shares and holdings in equity funds 2 976            1 189            
Realised gain on investments 11 396                17 674                
Other income 509                     940                     

56 201                46 218                

3 Net operating expenses
 Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Administrative expenses (32 585)              (24 775)              

4 Statutory and other information
 Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Auditors' remuneration 495 370

Directors' remuneration 169 170

5 Investment expenses and charges  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Other expenses (1 210)                (88)                     

(1 210)                (88)                     

All premiums consist of single and regular premiums written yearly and  monthly, resulting from contracts 
concluded  in Sweden. Premiums of SEK 1,641,567,000 in 2005 relate to unit linked  business and  SEK 415,613,000 
relate to non-linked  business (2004: SEK 157,741,000 unit linked  business and  SEK 383,005,000 non-linked  
business).
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6 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

(b) Factors affecting tax charge in year  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 16 690 2 629

Current tax expected based on a rate of 12,5% (2004: 12,5%) 2 120 329

Utilisation of tax losses carried forward (2 120) (329)

0 0

Tax attributable to life assurance business - Sweden 6 194 4 645

6 194 4 645

7 Staff numbers and costs  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Administration 6 482                6 440                

Average number of employees 4 4

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: 2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Wages and salaries 2 681                2 772                
Social security costs 1 156                1 181                
Other pension costs 1 837                1 687                

(a) A nalysis of charge in year

The company is subject to an Irish corporation tax rate of 12,5% (2004: 12,5%). There is no Irish tax charge 
due to accumulated  losses. The tax charge relates to a Swedish tax charge in respect of the company´s life 
assurance business.
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8 Investments
Carrying Carrying Unrealised Unrealised

value value Cost Cost gain/(loss) gain/(loss)
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000

Shares and holdings in investments fund 132 468        165 417       126 043            188 873            29 881        4 096          
Debt securities and other fixed income
securities 1 059 035 1 008 610 1 021 616         982 178            10 987        26 802        

Total other financial investments 1 191 503     1 174 027    1 147 659         1 171 051         40 868         30 898         

Assets held to cover linked liabilities 2 237 700     423 344       1 971 019         387 918            231 255      35 426        

Grand total investments 3 429 203     1 597 371    3 118 678         1 558 969         272 123      66 324        

9 Other debtors
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

Unsettled transactions -                    80 361              
Other debtors -                    1                       

-                    80 362              

10 Called up share capital
2005 2005 2004 2004

EUR'000 SEK'000 EUR'000 SEK'000
Authorised
1,000,000 "A" ordinary shares of  €1 each 1 000            1 000                

1,000,000  "B" ordinary shares of  €1 each 1 000            1 000                

317,435 "A" ordinary shares of  €1 each 317               2 810           317                   2 810                

317,435 "B" ordinary shares of  €1 each 317               2 810           317                   2 810                
Total 5 620     5 620          

Allotted, called up and fully paid - equity
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11 Capital contributions
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

At beginning of year 156 455       156 455            
Contribution during the year 100 000       -                    

At end of year 256 455       156 455            

12A Reconciliation of movement in shareholders' funds
2005 2004

SEK'000 SEK'000

10 766        (2 016)              

Capital contribution 100 000 -                   

Net increase/(decrease) in shareholders’ funds 110 766      (2 016)              

Opening shareholders’ funds 125 414       127 430            

Closing shareholders’ funds 236 180       125 414            

All figures are attributable to the equity element of shareholders’ funds.

12B Profit and loss account 

Profit / (Loss) for the year 10 766        (2 016)              

Profit and loss account at the beginning of the year (36 661)       (34 645)            

Profit and loss account at the end of the year (25 895)       (36 661)            

Total recognised gains and losses for the year

The company received  one contribution by way of a non refundable capital contribution on 28 August 
2000 and  one on 31 December 2005. Those contributions were made unconditionally and  do not represent 
a loan to the company or otherwise constitute a debt owed by the company. The d irectors have 
undertaken not to d istribute the capital contributions without the prior permission of the Minister for 
Enterprise, Trade and Employment.
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13 FRS 27 Disclosure requirements

Capital Position Statement
Reconciliation of shareholder's funds as at 31 december 2005 to available capital  on  local 
regulatory bases in company's life assurance business.

2005

SEK'000

Shareholder funds 236 180            

Adjustments -                   

Total available capital based on Irish regulatory requirements 236 180            

Minimun solvency required by Financial Regulator 109 963            

13 FRS 27 Disclosure requirements 

Product descriptions and the basis for valuing of policyholder liabilities.
The information below describes the products, the basis for the valuation of the liabilities and the assumptions used in 
determining those liabilities.  The company has two primary products Europlan and Portfolio bonds which are 
described below in A and B.

A Europlan
Europlan is a life annuity policy, written both on a fixed term basis and on a deferred basis for whole of life.  The 
policy is denominated in Swedish Kroner.  In return for a single premium, the policy pays a level income each month 
from a given date until the earlier of death or expiry of the policy.  In the case of fixed term annuities there is a fixed 
maturity date, which is usually on achievement of the normal retirement age.

The income payable under the policy may be increased at any time, but is conditional on payment of an additional 
single premium at the prevailing premium rates.  The policy has an optional death benefit equal to the value of the 
annuity reserve. The policy has optional spouse’s and dependent’s annuity benefits on the death of the life assured.  
The policy has optional disability benefits.

Policies are entitled to the investment surplus on reserves represented by the returns in excess of the returns to Euroben 
assumed in the premium rates.  This investment surplus is available to policyholders to purchase new annuity benefits.  
This investment surplus is recoverable by the company to cover any future investment shortfalls if it has not already 
been used by the policyholder.

Basis for Technical Provisions and Assumptions
The Technical Provision is the sum of the long-term business provision and the conditional policyholder liability.

The long-term business provision is based on the Irish regulatory solvency basis. The valuation is then modified for 
“Modified Statutory Basis” reporting purposes to remove certain of the margins for prudence within the assumptions 
and contingency reserves, both of which are required under the solvency basis applied for regulatory purposes, but not 
for financial accounting.

The long term business provisions are the discounted value of future claim payments..  The interest rate used for 
discounting claim payments is derived from the yield on the assets held adjusted for future expenses, tax and a profit 
allowance.  The mortality assumptions vary by age and gender, and are based on standard Swedish mortality rates.

The conditional policyholder liability represents the excess of the Europlan investments over the long term business 
provision.  This amount is available to policyholder on a conditional basis only and is distributed at the discretion of 
the company, for example if a policyholder transfers their policy to another provider.
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13 FRS 27 Disclosure requirements continued

A Europlan (continued)

The conditional policyholder liability represents the excess of the Europlan investments over the long term business 
provision.  This amount is available to policyholder on a conditional basis only and is distributed at the discretion of 
the company, for example if a policyholder transfers their policy to another provider.

Guarantees
The products contain investment, mortality and expense guarantees.  All these guarantees are based on the 
assumptions used within the calculation of the premium rate.

A small number of policies have transfer guarantees, which provide guarantees on the interest rate used within the 
calculation of transfer payments.

Sensitivity of results to changes in market conditions
In determining the amount of long-term non-linked liabilities on an Irish regulatory solvency basis, the following 
scenarios were tested to take into account the nature and term of the assets representing those liabilities:

1. A reduction in fixed-interest yields of 1.0% combined with a fall in equity and property values of 15%;
2. A reduction in fixed-interest yields of 0.5% combined with a fall in equity and property values of 25%;
3. A rise in fixed-interest yields of 3.0% combined with a fall in equity and property values of 25%;

The most onerous scenario was number two above where the result was that an additional reserve of 23 MSEK for 
resilience as found to be necessary.  This additional reserve is funded from the assets covering the policyholder’s 
conditional liability.  

B Euroben Portfolio Bond

Description of product
The Euroben Portfolio Bond (EPB) is a single premium unit-linked whole life assurance product.  The policy value is 
linked to the value of the policyholder’s own personal portfolio of assets.  
The Kapital Pension product is a variant of the EPB product and contains a minimum regular income guarantee from 
ages 55 to 60.

Basis for Technical Provisions and Assumptions
The unit liability is equal to the value of units allocated to each policy.  Non-unit reserves for linked policies were 
calculated on a per policy projected cashflow basis.  The following economic assumptions were used:-

Expense inflation: 2.5% per annum
Investment Return: 3.5% per annum
Interest Rate:  2.25% per annum

Non-unit reserves have been allowed for only to the extent, that surrender penalties allow and such that in aggregate, 
they produce a positive value.

Sensitivity of results to changes in market conditions
In determining the amount of non-unit liabilities for linked business an immediate fall of 20% in the unit value was 
assumed to test the nature and term of the assets representing those liabilities.  Any additional reserve amount is 
implicit within the non-unit reserves calculated.
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14 Technical provisions Conditional Technical

Life bonuses provision for
Claims assurance life linked

outstanding provision assurance liabilities Total

SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000

Gross amount
At beginning of year -                837 013       36 322              423 344            1 296 679    
Movement in the provision -                219 512       (13 840)            1 814 356         2 020 028    

At end of year -                1 056 525    22 482              2 237 700         3 316 707    

15 Pensions

16 Post balance sheet events

17 Cash flow statement

18 Ultimate parent undertaking

19 Approval of financial statements

In the manner prescribed under Financial Reporting Standard No.1 (Revised 1996) "Cash Flow Statements", a separate cash flow 
statement is not presented by the company as the information is included in the consolidated cash flow statement of its ultimate parent 
undertaking, whose report and consolidated financial statements are publicly available.

No significant events affecting the company have taken place since the year end.

The company’s parent undertaking is Handelsbanken Livförsäkringsaktiebolag (Handelsbanken Liv) and the ultimate parent undertaking of 
Handelsbanken Liv is Svenska Handelsbanken AB. The consolidated financial statements may be obtained from The Secretary, Matsack 
Trust Limited, 30 Herbert Street, Dublin 2, Ireland.

    The financial statements were approved by the board on 20 April 2006.

Pension obligations for employess are funded through an external pension scheme which is a defined contribution scheme.  The assets 
of the scheme are vested in indepentdent trustees for the sole benefit of those employees and their dependants.  The total cost to the 
company for the year ended 31 December 2005 was SEK 1,837,132 (2004: SEK 1,687,138) and contributions amounting to SEK 
101,556 (2004: SEK 75,832) were outstanding at year end.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended  
31 December 2004. 
 
Principal activities 
 
The principal activity of the company is the underwriting of pensions and saving products. 
 
Review of business and future developments  
 
The results of the year are set out on pages 9 and 10. The Directors consider the results to be satisfactory 
and do not recommend the payment of a dividend. 
 
The Directors expect that the present level of activity will increase in the foreseeable future. 
 
Post balance sheet events 
 
No significant events have taken place since the year end. 
 
Directors, secretary and their interests 
 
The Directors continue in office in accordance with the Articles of Association. 
 
The Directors and secretary who held office at 31 December 2004 had no interest in the shares in, or 
debentures or loan stock of, the company or of any Group companies at the beginning or end of the year. 
 
Accounting records 
 
The Directors believe that they have complied with the requirements of section 202 of the Companies Act, 
1990 with regard to books of account by employing personnel with appropriate expertise and by providing 
adequate resources to the financial function. The books of account of the company are maintained at 1 
North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland. 
 
Health and safety of employees 
 
The well being of the company's employees is safe guarded through the strict adherence to health and 
safety standards. The Safety, Health and Welfare at Work Act, 1989 imposes certain requirements on 
employers and the company is taking the necessary action to ensure compliance with the Act, including 
the adoption of a safety statement.
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Auditors 
 
The auditors, KPMG, Chartered Accountants, will continue in office in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 160(2) of the Companies Act, 1963. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Björn C. Andersson Stefan Nilsson   19 April 2005 
Chairman of the Board Director   
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Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, in accordance 
with applicable Irish law and accounting standards, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the company and of the profit or loss for that year.  In preparing those financial statements, the 
Directors are required to: 
 
 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 
 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 

the company will continue in business. 
 
 
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2003 and all Regulations to be construed as one 
with those Acts, including the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 
1996.  They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard 
the assets of the company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
Björn C. Andersson Stefan Nilsson  
Chairman of the Board Director 
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We have audited the financial statements on pages 7 to 17. 
 
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 193 of the 
Companies Act, 1990.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose.  To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions 
we have formed.  
 
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors  
 
The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and, as described on page 4, the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable Irish law and accounting standards.  Our responsibilities, as 
independent auditors, are established in Ireland by statute, the Auditing Practices Board and by our 
profession’s ethical guidance. 
 
We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are 
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts.  As also required by the Acts, we state whether 
we have obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit, whether the financial 
statements agree with the books of account and report to you our opinion as to whether 
 

 the company has kept proper books of account; 

 the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements; 

 at the balance sheet date a financial situation existed that may require the company to hold an 
extraordinary general meeting, on the grounds that the net assets of the company, as shown in the 
financial statements, are less than half of its share capital. 

 
We also report to you if, in our opinion, information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration 
and transactions with the company is not disclosed. 
 
Basis of audit opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.  
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by 
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 
 
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or 
error.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in 
the financial statements. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company 
as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2003 and all Regulations to be construed as one with those 
Acts, including the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 1996. 
 
We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.  In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company.  The financial statements 
are in agreement with the books of account. 
 
In our opinion, the information given in the directors’ report on pages 2 and 3 is consistent with the 
financial statements. 
 
The net assets of the company, as stated in the balance sheet on page 12, are more than half of the amount 
of its called up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 December 2004 a 
financial situation which, under section 40(1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983, would require 
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the company. 
 
 
 
KPMG  19 April 2005 
Chartered Accountants 
Registered Auditors 
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The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material in relation to the company’s financial statements. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1963 to 
2003, as amended by the European Communities (Insurance Undertakings: Accounts) Regulations, 1996. 
 
The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards 
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments, and comply with 
financial reporting standards of the Accounting Standards Board, as promulgated by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Ireland. Certain prior year comparatives have been restated in order to be 
consistent with the current year presentation. 
 
 
Currency 
 
The functional currency has been changed from Norwegian Kroner (NOK) to Swedish Kronor (SEK) on 1 
January 2004.  The comparatives for 2003 are restated using the net investment method.  
 
Premiums 
 
Premium income is credited to the technical account - life assurance business when due. 
 
Claims 
 
Death claims are recorded on the basis of notification received up to the balance sheet date. 
 
Investment income and charges 
 
Investment income, expenses and charges are accounted for on an accruals basis and included in the 
technical account-life assurance business. Investment income, expenses and charges include dividends, 
interest, gains and losses on investments and related expenses. Gains and losses on the realisation of 
investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and original cost. 
 
Foreign currencies 
 
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Swedish Kronor at the rates of 
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  Transactions during the period are translated into Swedish 
Kronor using the rate of exchange at the end of each month with exchange gains and losses included in 
either the technical account or the non-technical account according to the transaction type. 
 
Technical provisions 
 
Technical provisions are included at amounts with reference to values determined by the Appointed 
Actuary.  
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Investments 
 
Investments are included in the balance sheet at market value.  
 
Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of the 
investments and their purchase price or, if they have been previously valued, their valuation at the last 
balance sheet date. The total is then adjusted to take account of gains or losses recognised in prior 
accounting periods in respect of investments sold in the current accounting period. Movements in 
unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in the technical account - life assurance business. 
 
Taxation 
 
The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year.   
 
Deferred taxation 
 
Provision is made for deferred tax using the liability method to recognise timing differences between 
profits stated in the financial statements and profits computed for taxation purposes. 
 
In accordance with FRS 19 “Deferred Tax”, except where otherwise required by accounting standards, 
full provision without discounting is made for all timing differences which have arisen but not reversed at 
the balance sheet date.  Provision is made at the rates of taxation expected to prevail at the time of 
reversal. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable.  The recoverability of 
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors. 
 
Pension 
 
The cost of providing benefits in the defined contribution plan is charged to the profit and loss account in 
the year to which the expense relates. 
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Profit and loss account: technical account - life assurance business
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Note

SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000

Gross premiums written 1 540 746          777 841           
Outward reinsurance premium (20)                 (69)                  

Net premiums written and earned 540 726          777 772           

Investment income 2 46 218            37 437             
Unrealised gains on investment 8 66 324            31 727             

112 542          69 164             

Claims paid:
Gross amount (202 922)         (111 530)          
Reinsurers' share -                 -                   
Net claims paid (202 922)         (111 530)          

Change in the provision for claims:
Gross amount -                 -                   
Reinsurers’ share -                 -                   

-                 -                   

(202 922)         (111 530)          

Technical provision 
Life assurance provision, net of reinsurance 13 (213 304)         (511 311)          
Conditional bonuses 13 (30 448)           (5 873)             
Technical provision for linked liabilities, net 
   of reinsurance 13 (178 562)         (182 240)          

Net change in technical provisions (422 314)         (699 424)          

Net operating expenses 3,7 (24 775)           (32 446)            
Investment  expenses and charges 5 (88)                 (1 044)             
Unrealised losses on investments 8 - -                  

(24 863)           (33 490)            

Balance on technical account -
 life assurance business 3 169              2 492               

(as restated)

Year ended 
31 December

2003

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance

Year ended 
31 December

2004
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Profit and loss account: non technical account
for the year ended 31 December 2004 Year ended Year ended 

Note 31 December 31 December
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

Balance on the technical account -
 life assurance business 3 169              2 492               

Administrative expenses 4 (540)               (477)                
                               

2 629              2 015               

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6 (4 645)            (919)                
                               

(2 016)            1 096               

(34 645)           (41 662)            

Movement in translation reserve - 5 921               

(36 661)           (34 645)            

On behalf of the board

Björn C. Andersson Stefan Nilsson
Chairman of the Board Director

Profit and loss account at beginning of year

Profit and loss account at end of year

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Retained (loss)/profit for the year

There were no recognised gains or losses in the financial year and the preceding financial year other than those dealt with in 
the profit and loss account.

All items dealt with in arriving at the loss on ordinary activities before tax for the financial year and the preceding financial 
year relate to continuing operations.
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2004

Note 2004 2003
SEK'000 SEK'000

Assets

Investments
Other financial investments 8 1 174 027        734 523            

Assets held to cover linked liabilities 8 423 344           244 782            

Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 29                   1 382               
Other debtors 9 80 362             8                      

80 391             1 390               
Other assets
Cash at bank 259 751           36 333              

Accrued interest 21 672             24 191              
Other prepayments and accrued income 1 453              741                  

23 125             24 932              
                               

Total assets 1 960 638        1 041 960          

Prepayments and accrued income
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2004

Note 2004 2003
SEK'000 SEK'000

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10 5 620              5 620               
Capital contribution 11 156 455          156 455           
Profit and loss account (36 661)           (34 645)            

    equity interests 12 125 414          127 430           

Technical provisions
Claims outstanding -                 -                  
Life assurance provision 13 837 013          623 709           
Conditional Bonuses 13 36 322            5 874               
Technical provision for linked liabilities 13 423 344          244 782           

1 296 679       874 365           

Creditors
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 264 078          33 277             
Other creditors 267 047          1 110               
Provisions for taxes 3 899              918                  

535 024          35 305             

Other accruals 3 521              4 860               

Total liabilities 1 960 638       1 041 960         

On behalf of the board

Björn C. Andersson Stefan Nilsson
Chairman of the Board Director

Accruals and deferred income

Shareholders’ funds attributable to
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Euroben Life & Pension Limited

Notes
forming part of the financial statements

1 Premiums 

2 Investment income
Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

Interest income on debt securities and other fixed 
income securities 26 415       3 801        
Dividends on shares and holdings in equity funds 1 189         10 198      
Realised gain on investments 17 674              16 657      
Other income 940                   6 781              

46 218              37 437            

3 Net operating expenses
Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

Administrative expenses (24 775)           (30 342)          
Other costs -                   (2 104)            

(24 775)           (32 446)          

4 Statutory and other information
Year ended  Year ended

31 December 31 December
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

Auditors' remuneration 370 224

Directors' remuneration 170 253

All premiums consist of recurring single and annuity premiums written yearly and monthly, resulting from 
contracts concluded in Sweden. Premiums of SEK 157,741,000 in 2004 relate to unit linked business and 
SEK 383,005,000 relate to non-linked business (2003: SEK 158,101,000 unit linked business and SEK 
619,740,000 non-linked business, as restated). Premium of SEK 537,323,000 relates to single premiums 
(2003: SEK 777, 841,000) and SEK 3,423,000 relates to annuity premiums (2003: 0).
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5 Investment expenses and charges Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2004 2003
(as restated)

SEK'000 SEK'000

Other expenses (88)                  (1 044)            

(88)                  (1 044)            

6 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

(b) Factors affecting tax charge in year  Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2004 2003
(as restated)

SEK'000 SEK'000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2 629 2 015

Current tax expected based on a rate of 12,5% (2003: 12,5%) 329 251

Utilisation of tax losses carried forward (329) (251)

0 0

Tax attributable to life assurance business - Sweden 4 645 919

4 645 919

7 Staff numbers and costs Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2004 2003
(as restated)

SEK'000 SEK'000

Administration 6 440               5 595              

Average number of employees 4 4

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: 2004 2003
(as restated)

SEK'000 SEK'000

Wages and salaries 2 772               2 341              
Social security costs 1 181               804                 
Other pension costs 1 687               2 215              

(a) Analysis of charge in year

The company is subject to an Irish corporation tax rate of 12,5% (2003: 12,5%). There is no Irish tax charge due 
to accumulated losses. The tax charge relates to a Swedish tax charge in respect of the company´s life assurance 
business.
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8 Investments
Carrying Carrying Unrealised Unrealised

value value Cost Cost gain/(loss) gain/(loss)
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000

Shares and holdings in investments fund 165 417      135 027       188 873           162 579         4 096                 3 680      
Debt securities and other fixed income
securities 1 008 610 599 496       982 178           599 866         26 802               (390)

Total other financial investments 1 174 027   734 523       1 171 051        762 445         30 898                3 290      

Assets held to cover linked liabilities 423 344      244 782       373 749           230 613         35 426               28 437    

Grand total investments 1 597 371   979 305       1 544 800        993 058         66 324               31 727    

9 Other debtors
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

Unsettled transactions 80 361 -                
Other debtors 1                      8                    

80 362             8                    

10 Called up share capital
2004 2004 2003 2003

(as restated)
EUR'000 SEK'000 EUR'000 SEK'000

Authorised
1,000,000 "A" ordinary shares of  EUR1 each 1 000          1 000               

1,000,000  "B" ordinary shares of  EUR1 each 1 000          1 000               

317,435 "A" ordinary shares of  EUR1 each 317             2 810           317                  2 810             

317,435 "B" ordinary shares of  EUR1 each 317             2 810           317                  2 810             

11 Capital contributions
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

156 455       156 455           

Allotted, called up and fully paid - equity

Capital contributions at beginning and end of year

The company received a contribution by way of a non refundable capital contribution on 28 August 2000. This contribution 
was made unconditionally and does not represent a loan to the company or otherwise constitute a debt owed by the company. 
The directors have undertaken not to distribute the capital contribution without the prior permission of the Minister for 
Enterprise, Trade and Employment.
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12 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders' funds
2004 2003

(as restated)
SEK'000 SEK'000

(2 016)         1 096              

Net (decrease)/ increase in shareholders’ funds (2 016)         1 096              

Opening shareholders’ funds 127 430       147 000           

Movement on translation reserve - (20 666)

Closing shareholders’ funds 125 414       127 430           

All figures are attributable to the equity element of shareholders’ funds.

13 Technical provisions Conditional Technical
Life bonuses provision for

Claims assurance life linked
outstanding provision assurance liabilities Total

SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000 SEK'000

Gross amount
At beginning of year (as restated) -              623 709       5 874               244 782          874 365              
Movement in the provision -              213 304         30 448               178 562           422 314              

At end of year -             837 013       36 322             423 344          1 296 679           

14 Pensions

Pension obligations for employees are funded through an external pension scheme, which is a
defined contribution scheme.  The assets of the scheme are vested in independent trustees 
for the sole benefit of those employees and their dependants.  The total cost to the company for
the year ended 31 December 2004 was SEK 1,687,138 (2003: SEK 2,214,547 as restated) and contributions
amounting to SEK 75,832 (2003: SEK 59,618 as restated) were outstanding at the year end.

Total recognised gains and losses for the year
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15 Post balance sheet events

16 Cash flow statement

17 Ultimate parent undertaking

18 Approval of financial statements

In the manner prescribed under Financial Reporting Standard No.1 (Revised 1996) "Cash Flow Statements", a separate cash flow 
statement is not presented by the company as the information is included in the consolidated cash flow statement of its ultimate parent 
undertaking, whose report and consolidated financial statements are publicly available.

No significant events affecting the company have taken place since the year end.

The company’s parent undertaking is Handelsbanken Livförsäkringsaktiebolag (Handelsbanken Liv) and the ultimate parent 
undertaking of Handelsbanken Liv is Svenska Handelsbanken AB. The consolidated financial statements may be obtained from The 
Secretary, Matsack Trust Limited, 30 Herbert Street, Dublin 2, Ireland.

    The financial statements were approved by the board on 19 April 2005.



 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Handelsbanken Life & Pension Limited (formerly Euroben) unaudited interim 
financial statements first half 2007 



Handelsbanken Life & Pension Ltd
Legal result

2007-06

SEK million

Income Statement

200701-200706
Parent Company
Administration result 11,1
Risk result -1,2
Financial result 1,2
Other 12,5
Result before tax 23,6
Tax -0,1
Profit 23,5

Parent Company

Assets Equity, Provisions and Liabilities
Land and buildings 0,0 Equity 541,1
Shares and participating interest 2 743,5 Untaxed reserves 0,0
Interest bearing bonds 7 176,8 Subordinated loans 0,0
Shares FFR 5 048,6 Security provisions 7 040,8

14 968,8 Security bonus 0,0
Conditional bonus 2 662,5
Unit-linked commitments 5 048,6

Other assets 381,4 Other liabilities 57,1
15 350,2 15 350,2



 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 5 

Auditor’s Independent Assurance Report on pro forma financial information 
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